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THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED IS BUILDING A NEW
DESTINATION ON MACAU'S COTAI STRIP TO HOUSE
A UNIQUE COLLECTION OF REFINED AND REMARKABLE
LUXURY EXPERIENCES.
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RUJSINFSS OVFRVIEW
ESY Gl

The 13 Holdings Limited ("The 13" or the “Company”) is a hospitality, entertainment and construction group that combines a unique ultra-

luxury hotel and entertainment development on Macau's Cotai Strip ("THE 13 Hotel”) with the Hong Kong-based legacy business of Paul

Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE").

T=EBERLNT (+=1RTARF)) HBEE. RENERER, B TRFIRUNRPIBEEKSHEREBILRG. &
BEFENBERREFRER (+=FEBE), URFRERXERERNE (RERR)) UEBSERNERES.

THE 13
The Market

The Macau gaming market is the single largest gaming
destination in the world. For the year ended December 2015,
Macau generated gross gaming revenues of US$29 billion,
approximately five times greater than that of the Las Vegas
Strip over the same period. In addition, Macau generates the
world's highest gaming revenue per visitor at approximately six
times that of the Las Vegas Strip. There were 106 hotels and
guesthouses operating in Macau at the end of March 2016 with
a total of 32,000 guest rooms. Macau receives approximately
31,000,000 visitors annually with approximately 66% of
coming from Mainland China and 24% coming from Hong
Kong and Taiwan.

THE 13 Hotel

THE 13 Hotel and entertainment complex, located at the
southern end of Macau's famous Cotai Strip, houses a unique
collection of refined and remarkable luxury experiences.
Designed by internationally acclaimed luxury architect, Peter
Marino, it will include a hotel with about 200 duplex suites, an
invitation-only "L'Atelier” offering only couture, bespoke and
limited edition products from the major luxury brands and the
only branch of a legendary Paris institution of haute cuisine.

The Company appointed internationally acclaimed architect
Peter Marino as the Executive Design Theme Architect and the
Interior Design Theme Consultant. Mr. Marino is the principal
of Peter Marino Architect PLLC, an architecture, planning and
design firm based in New York City, whose clients include some
of the most iconic names in the fashion and art worlds. He is
responsible for the flagship stores of many of the world's leading
luxury brands including Chanel, Louis Vuitton, Christian Dior,
Ermenegildo Zegna, Graff and Loewe.

With a gross floor area of approximately 945,000 square feet,
THE 13 Hotel is designed to ensure the highest level of luxury and
privacy, THE 13 Hotel will offer approximately 200 duplex suites
and villas beginning at approximately 2,000 gross square feet
ranging up to approximately 10,000 gross square feet and a
royal villa of over 20,000 gross square feet. Guests will arrive

in one of the hotel's fleet of signature-red Rolls-Royce extended
wheel base Phantoms with the option for private check in. Al
guests will arrive in their rooms via lifts that open directly into the
suites.
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L'Atelier

The complex will house the ultra-exclusive by-invitation-only/
by-private-appointment only L'Atelier. For the first time under
one roof, clients will have the opportunity to view and purchase
in complete privacy couture, bespoke and limited-edition
products presented by a hand-picked selection of the world's
greatest masters of luxury — products and services that the top
European Fashion and jewellery houses currently deliver only to
top VIP customers in their headquarter maisons and ateliers.

The restaurant

The complex will house the fabled L'Ambroisie, the only Parisian
restaurant to have maintained three Michelin stars continuously
since 1988. Chefs Bernard and Mathieu Pacaud are, for the
first time, presenting their masterpieces of classic French haute
cuisine anywhere other than L' Ambroisie Paris.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING AITED

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE") is a subsidiary of the
Company and is one of the leading management contractors

in Hong Kong and Macau. PYE traces its origins o Shanghai
in 1946 and has played a major role in shaping the skyline and
world-class infrastructure of Hong Kong over the past seven
decades.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, PYE is dedicated to providing
full-fledged engineering and property services, with operations
in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Guangzhovu,
Chongging, Nantong, Shenzhen, Macau, Singapore and
Malaysia.

With seven decades of experiences, PYE prides itself on its

ability to deliver integrated property development solutions from
concept to completion as well as on-going management.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

PYE SEGMENT REVENUE
(HK$ MILLION)

PYE SEGMENT PROFIT
(HK$ MILLION)

(LOSS) EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST
AND TAX (HK$ MILLION)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS (HK$'MILLION)

SHARES OUTSTANDING
(MILLION)

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
(HK$)

LOSS PER SHARE
(HK CENTS)
- BASIC

TOTAL ASSETS
(HK$'MILLION)

NET CURRENT ASSETS
(HK$ MILLION)

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS
(HK$'MILLION)

OPERATING CASH OUTFLOW
(HK$ MILLION)

NET CASH (OQUTFLOW) INFLOW
(HK$'MILLION)

CURRENT RATIO

GEARING RATIO

LONG TERM DEBT/EQUITY RATIO
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10,695.6

197.8

37.4

(29.9)

921

6.4

(5.5)

12,375.2

3,014.6

5,885.9

(363.5)

239.0

0.34

0.26

Percentage

change
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

EARNING (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
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THE 13
May 2015

Special preview of the Hotel at Metropole Hotel in Monaco

June 2015
Superstructure fopped out and below ground excavation
completed

October 2015
The “Inner Skin" curtain wall was largely completed and
commencement of interior works

November 2015
Private preview of the Hotel at the Burj Al Arab, Dubai

February 2016
Official naming of Macau Hotel as "THE 13"

March 2016
Joint press conference with Rolls-Royce Motor Cars Limited
at the Geneva Auto Show to ceremonially deliver the first of
the custom red Rolls-Royce Extended Wheel Base Phantoms

THE 13 HC
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
ST 118 2

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP

Construction management contracting projects secured during
the year:

Construction management services for The University of
Chicago Center in Hong Kong
Main contract works (Lot 7) for the Concordia Development

at Coloane, Macau *

Main contract works for the residential deve|opmenf at Kai

Tak Area 1l Site 3

Main contract works for the residential deve|opmenf at 128

Pok Fu Lam Road
Proposed hotel development at Sai Kung

Site formation and foundation works for Ocean Park Tai
Shue Wan Development

Project being carried out through joint venture

THE 13 HC
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Stephen Hung /i k s Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Joint Chairman Bt & + & Joint Chairman B f&E T+ &
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CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
TR E

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

In February 2016, we officially named our Macau hotel “THE
13" and subsequently renamed the Company "The 13 Holdings
Limited” with approval of shareholders and other regulatory
authorities at the end of March 2016. We believe “THE 13" most
accurately reflects our Macau Hotel's combination of Baroque
inspiration and contemporary accents. Further it sh’engfhens the
brand by being global, universal and not tied to a specific era
or culture. We feel "“THE 13" is a better reflection of our brand's
combination of innovation married to traditional values of
bespoke quality.

At the same time we also publicly released the first images of
the interiors or our hotel. The images of La Villa Du Comte, our
entry-level accommodation, attracted widespread global media
coverage and ample speculation on whether or not THE 13 Hotel
would lay claim to the title of “the most luxurious hotel in the
world".

UNIQUE HOTEL PROJE \U

We have made substantial progress in development of the
hotel in Macau since last financial year-end. Construction is

proceeding on schedule for completion in 2016.

As part of our ongoing campaign to bring elite international
visitors to Macau, we held special previews of our hotel at the
Metropole Hotel in Monaco in May 2015 which was honored
by the attendance of His Serene Highness Prince Albert |

of Monaco, and at the Burj Al Arab, Dubai in November
2015, which was honored by the attendance of His Highness
Dr. Sheikh Sultan Bin Khalifa Bin Zayed Al Nahyan of Abu
Dhabi. On 1 March 2016, we and Rolls-Royce Motor Cars
Limited jointly held a press conference at the Geneva Auto
Show to ceremonially deliver the first of THE 13's 30 custom red
Rolls-Royce Extended Wheel Base Phantoms.

CONSTRUCTION ANL NG BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the segment revenue at
PYE decreased approximately 7% to approximately HK$9,960
million from approximately HK$10,696 million in 2015 due to
keen competition in the market. At the year ended 31 March
2016, the value of contracts on hand was about HK$23,521
million. Subsequent to the year end, PYE further secured new
contracts with total value of approximately HK$2,653 million.

PYE is one of the leading management contractors in Hong
Kong and Macau and is working closely in partnership with the
Company on THE 13 Hotel, allowing the Company to benefit
from PYE's expertise.
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CONSOLIDATED FIGURE

We recorded a basic loss per share of 21.7 HK cents in 2016
versus basic loss per share of 5.5 HK cents in 2015. This was
primarily due to the decrease in the profit margin in PYE and
pre-opening expenses in relation to hotel under development
segment.

We expect consolidated losses to continue until THE 13 Hotel is
operational and generating revenue. We believe that our niche
strategy targeting a global clientele of customers seeking a
unique luxury experience remains well positioned in the Macau
market.

MACAU MARKET

The Macau gaming market has been going through a difficult
phase since the middle of 2014. Gross gaming revenues ("GGR")
have fallen substantially as the appetite for gaming has been
indirectly curbed by the uncertainty surrounding the structural
reforms currently taking place in China. However, recent data
shows that gross gaming revenues in Macau have begun to
stabilize and that mass market GGR is once again growing.
While we cannot predicf if this trend will continue, we do believe
that our niche strategy targeting a global clientele of customers
seeking a unique luxury experience is well positioned to compete

in a slow market.

Again, as at year-end March 31, 2016, we will not pay a
dividend as we are still developing THE 13 Hoftel.

THE 13
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CHAIRMEN'S STATEMENT
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Finally, we thank our employees for their dedication and hard =%, HPRFHZETIERNERESE D, URER
work, and our shareholders, customers and business partners for B, ERREBBHHRMOFES R

their continued support.

Stephen Hung and Peter Lee Coker Jr. 7t 7k B Xz Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Joint Chairmen BEEE
Hong Kong, 15 June 2016 5%, ZEF—"FB+HH

THE 13 HOLL AITED




Walter Craig Power
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director) TTIEER, Gl TE= )
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to report the annual results of The 13 Holdings
Limited (the "Company’, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group") for the year ended 31 March 2016, together with
comparative figures for 2015. The consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, financial position, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Group, all of which are audited,
’roge’rher with exp|ono’rory notes, are set out on pages 85 to
216 of this annual report, which have been reviewed by the

Company's Audit Committee.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
POSITIONS

Hotel Development

ANCE AND

The Group is building an exclusive luxury hotel and
entertainment complex on a site of some 65,000 square feet
located on the Cotai Strip in Macau ("THE 13 Hotel") which

is expected to be opened in the fourth quarter of 2016. In
February 2016, we officially named our Macau hotel “THE 13
and subsequently renamed the Company “The 13 Holdings
Limited” with approval from shareholders and other regulatory
authorities at the end of March 2016. The directors believe
that the completion of THE 13 Hotel followed by a fully
operational hotel in Macau with provision of ancillary retail and
entertainment facilities wi||, in due course, generate strong cash
flows for the benefit of all shareholders.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the hotel development
segment recorded assets of approximately HK$8,509 million
and liabilities of approximately HK$3,462 million, mainly

the cost of land, hotel under development, deposits paid for
acquisition of hotel fixture, furniture and equipment in Macau,
the |iobi|ify portion of convertible bonds issued for Financing the
hotel development and bank borrowings for hotel development.
Also included in segment assets and liabilities are transactions
with Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited ("PYE") in respect of
construction of THE 13 Hotel. There was no segment profit from
hotel development for the year ended 31 March 2016.

As at 31 March 2016, approximately HK$2,562 million was

drawn from a six-year term loan facility of HK$3,045 million

provided by a Mainland China-based bank.

THE 13
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ENGINEERING BUSINE

The construction industry experienced a slight slowdown

despite sustained efforts by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region to provide significant business
opportunities by boosting land supply and maintaining a
re|oﬂve|y high level of copi’r0| works expendifure. Failure of

the Government to smoothly facilitate funding approval of
Government tenders undermined these efforts, creating potential
vulnerabilities in the market.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, segment revenue at

PYE and its subsidiaries (‘"PYE Group”) decreased 7% to
approximately HK$9,960 million from approximately
HK$10,696 million in 2015 as a result of the decrease in
order book after the completion of a large project in Macau.
Segment operating profit decreased approximately 20% to
approximately HK$158 million (2015: HK$198 million) as a
result of the provision made for the lead-in-water incident and
increase in legal and professional fees.

THE GROUP
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded

consolidated revenue including joint operations of approximately
HK$6,812 million (2015: HK$9,323 million), representing a

decrease of approximately 27% from that of last year as a result
of the decrease in order book after completion of a large project

in Macau.

Gross profit decreased approximately 30% to approximately
HK$198 million (2015: HK$284 miillion) due primarily to

costs and provisions for remedial measures resulting from

lead contamination in potable water occurring under certain
construction contracts and an increase in legal and professional
fees. Gross profit margin slightly decreased to 2.9% (2015: 3.0%).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year

was approximately HK$197 million (2015: HK$30 million),
representing an increase of approximately 6 times resulting
mainly from the decrease in segment margins at PYE Group
and pre-opening expenses in hotel under development segment.

Basic loss per share was 21.7 HK cents.

The Group maintained a strong financial position with total
assets standing at approximately HK$12,547 million. Current
assets were approximately HK$4,202 million, or approximately
1.2 times the current liabilities. The equity attributable to owners
of the Company slightly decreased to approximately HK$5,709

million or 3%.

TH

TIERD—IRERS

BEEERFHTHE BT BB BN T E R AR
HEBKINEARTREBERAIUHSEKEREK, 7AM
BISERKRBFDEMRE. BT REIRGHEETRREET
BHESEN, HIH T ULEN, AHGHERERNE

BES—ANFE-A-T+—HLEE, REZENEN
B B (MREREEE) WOBBRARH S —AEEN
10696 B TR D T%E#799.60EE 7T, TWHERFEEL
SEZEMP—IBATIBE®BR TIMERY. D& ad R
DEI0%ERNSSEE T (CE—HF 1198FET) , 19
R K B E R B R U oA B R B E BRI AT

KREH

BE_E-ANE-HA=-t—HLEE, £EERESHKE
WA (EIHEEEET) 16812 E T (CFE—LF | 93.93
BET), BEFTRDNT%, NERTFESNEEER
FI—IEARAIEE® T,

EMBDHI30%ZEMN.08E BT (CTFE—RF [ 284128
), TERERETERIRESNAERRKEMHRKEI
MR 2 AR R, N EARRFERERBINPIE.
EFEHATH®REL9% (CTE—EF 13.0%)0

ANBHEE NELFEREBEN A 97EET (CTE—hH
£ 1300087270, WeE, TZERRRRERSE
EEDEEMNED N RS BED ST .
AR B EE 18 421,751,

AEBRPFIERIHER, EEBEMERRINS47E
B, MEIEENA4200EETT, HERRFEBEN.2
T, RNEHEE AEIRREE AR D EX57.096= 5 7T
3%




CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
{TIEAS RN =

Net cash flow used in operating activities was about HK$231
million and net cash outflow in respect of investing activities was
approximately HK$2,427 million. Net cash inflow in respect

of financing activities was approximately HK$1,325 million,
resulting in a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of about
HK$1,333 million for the Group for the year ended 31 March
2016.

REVIEW OF OPERATIC

Hotel Development

The Group has made substantial progress in development of its
hotel project during the year ended 31 March 2016 and expects
the hotel will be openecl in the fourth quarter of 2016. Virfuo”y
all work at the moment is devoted to completing the interior
finishes of the hotel.

Rolls-Royce Motor Cars Limited has completed most of the
Company's signature red Phantoms and is starting fo ship them
as they complete. On 1 March 2016, the Company and Rolls-
Royce Motor Cars Limited jointly held a press conference at
the Geneva Auto Show to ceremonially deliver the first of the
Company's 30 custom red Rolls-Royce Extended Wheel Base

Phantoms.

The Group has substantially completed the hiring of its senior
management team inc|uding the second |c1yer of managers
supporting departmental heads. All have been intimately
involved in the design and development process to ensure that
THE 13 Hotel is not only unique but also supports the high level
of service and functionality the guests will expect. On 31 March
2016, total staff in the hotel under development segment was
over 200 including directors of the Company.

Engineering Business - PY

The Management Contracting division remained the core
business and the major contributor of revenue this year. Revenue
of this division amounted to approximately HK$9,944 million
(2015: HK$10,665 million), down by about 7%. The revenue
included approximately HK$3,148 million (2015: HK$1,372
million) for THE 13 Hotel project in Macau. The division reported
an operating profit of approximately HK$158 million (2015:
HK$196 million), including approximately HK$132 million (2015:
HK$42 million) for THE 13 Hotel project in Macau. As at 31
March 2016, the value of contracts on hand was approximately
HK$23,481 million, while the value of works remaining stood at
approximately HK$7,585 million.
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During the year under review, the Management Contracting
division secured new construction contracts with an aggregate
value of approximately HK$4,881 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 7% as compared to the amount of
approximately HK$5,253 million for last year as a result of lead-
in-water incident. Subsequent to year end, the division secured
further contracts of approximately HK$2,653 million. Set out
below are some of the new contracts secured during the year
and up to the date of this report:

+ Construction management services for The University of
Chicago Center in Hong Kong

+ Main contract works (Lot 7) for the Concordia Development
at Coloane, Macau *

+ Main contract works for the residential development at Kai

Tak Area 1l Site 3

+ Main contract works for the residential development at 128

Pok Fu Lam Road
+ Proposed hotel development at Sai Kung

+  Site formation and foundation works for Ocean Park Tai
Shue Wan Development

Project being carried out through joint venture

The Property Development Management division reported a
profit of approximately HK$1 million for the year under review.
The value of contracts on hand for Property Development
Management division at the year end was approximately

HK$40 million.

The Property Investment division reported a loss, through

its joint venture, of approximately HKS$1 million for the year
under review. The joint venture holds an investment property

in Hangzhou, the Pioneer Technology Building, which is an
office building with gross floor area of about 20,000 square
meters. The building generated rental income of about HK$12
million (2015: HK$13 million) during the year and its occupancy
reached about 90% as at 31 March 2016.

EVENT AFTER THE REP -RIOD

There are no major subsequen’r events since the end of the
reporting period and up fo the date of this report.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPIT =S

Under its prudent funding and treasury policies, the Group
maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet requirements for
working capital. As at 31 March 2016, cash, bank balances
and deposits stood at approximately HK$959 million, of
which approximately HK$851 million, HK$76 million, HK$23
million, HK$5 million, HK$3 million and HK$1 million were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Macau
Patacas, Singapore Dollars, Malaysian Ringgit and Japanese
Yen, respectively. The Group had total bank borrowings

of approximately HK$3,021 million at year-end of which
approximately HK$459 million are repayable within one year.
In addition, the Group also has outstanding convertible bonds
with face value of approximately HK$2,219 million and liability
component as at 31 March 2016 of HK$486 million. The
convertible bonds mature in February 2025.

All of the Group's borrowings, other than the convertible bonds,
as at 31 March 2016 bear interest at floating rates and are
denominated either in Hong Kong Dollars or Renminbi. The
Renminbi borrowings are direc’r|y tied in with the Group's
business in the Mainland China. The convertible bonds

are inferest free. The Group's gearing ratio, based on total
borrowings of approximately HK$3,507 million and equity
attributable to owners of the Company of around HK$5,709
million, increased from approximately 0.34 as at 31 March 2015
to about 0.61 as at 31 March 2016 primarily due to increase in
total borrowings related to hotel development.

EMPLOYEES
The Group had 1,816 full-time employees, including the directors

of the Company but excluding contracted casual labour in
Macau, as at 31 March 2016. The Group offers competitive
remuneration packages based on overall market rates,
employee performance, and the performance of the Group.
Remuneration packages are comprised of salary, performance-
based bonuses, and other benefits including training, provident
funds and medical coverage. Three share incentive schemes
(namely share option scheme, share award scheme and share
financing plan) are in place to motivate and reward eligible

employees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group pledged hotel under
development, property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments and bank deposits of approximately HK$6,139
million, HK$1 million, HK$1,699 million and HK$17 million,
respectively, and charged the Group's benefits over certain
construction contracts and the Group's interests over certain
subsidiaries to secure the general banking facilities granted to
the Group.
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CONTINGENT LIABILIT

The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of indemnities of
approximately HK$28 million given to banks for performance
bonds granted to an associate and joint operations and
contingent liabilities in respect of corporate guarantees of
0pproximofe|y HK$20 million given to a bank for bonking
facilities granted to an associate as at 31 March 2016.

COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2016, the Group has expenditure contracted

for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and
hotel under development of approximately HK$767 million and
HK$596 million, respectively.

KEY RISKS AND UNCEF

Apart from the financial risks disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements including currency risks, credit
risks, interest rate risks and the liquidity risks, the Group is also
exposed to the following risks:

The Company has not yet commenced operations of its
hotel under development. As the hotel has no operating
hisfory, there is no evidence for how it will perform, once
opened; and

+ In respect of the construction business, increasing
competition in terms of price and human resources could
exert future pressure on the level of new contracts awarded

and margins.

SECURITIES IN ISSUE

During the year ended 31 March 2016, 62,856,000 share
options were granted and 679,000 share options lapsed.

As at 31 March 2016, there were 920,867,010 shares in issue.
Additional shares may be issued by way of: i) exercise of share
options of the Company for up to 89,682,000 shares of the
Company depending on the fulfilment of vesting conditions
attached to the options; ii) exchange for up to 10% of the
shares in Falloncroft Investments Limited ("Falloncroft”) for

up to 88,235,294 shares of the Company depending on the
ultimate equity capitalization of Falloncroft and achievement
of certain performance targets related to hotel development;
and i) conversion of three 2025 convertible bonds which if fully
converted would result in the issuance of 465,814,719 shares of
the Company.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for

the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR R N OF THE

COMPANY'S LISTED SEC
During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no purchases,

sales or redemptions by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,

of the Company's listed securities.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the global economic growth will likely be
volatile. Following improvement of the US economy, the US
Federal Reserve is expected to begin raising interest rates. In

addition there is uncertainty generated by:

continued sovereign credit issues in the Eurozone along with

the generally slow pace of structural reforms;

risk of a destabilized Eurozone fo”owing the exit referendum
in the United Kingdom

continued conflicts in the Middle East; and

the s|owing growfh and structural reforms foking p|oce in

China.

Hotel Development

Macau remains the largest gaming market in the world
generating gross gaming revenue ("GGR") of US$27 billion for
the 12 months to May 2016. This represents a decline of 25%

over the prior 12-month period.

Macau recorded 30.7 million visitors for the 12 months ended
April 2016 which represents a 2% decline over the prior
12-month period. It would appear that the decline in GGR has
resulted from a decline in the average amount Wagered rather

than a decrease in Macau visitation.

Despite the anticipated volatile market conditions, the Company
feels that its niche strategy of targeting a global clientele of high
net worth customers seeking a unique luxury experience is well
posiﬁoned to compete in a slow market.

We also expect that Macau will eventually return to long-
term growth driven by the introduction of new transportation
imcrosfrucfure, continued increase in hotel room and
development of neighbouring Henggin Island which will
transform Macau into a leading tourism hub in Asia.
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Engineering Business - PYE
Despite continuing challenges in the construction industry, the
overall prospects of PYE Group's key markets remain positive.

In Hong Kong, the Chief Executive emphasised in 2016 Policy
Address that the Government will continue to boost land

and housing supplies through various development plans. In
Mainland Ching, the Belt and Road Initiative was addressed in
the 13th Five-Year Plan. The first stage will focus on construction
of road and rail networks and related infrastructure. Hong
Kong's construction industry will be a key beneficiary. In Macau,
the Government is now proactively promoting tourism, the arts,
cultural tourism and higher education businesses to break away
from an unhealthy over-reliance on the gambling industry, and
the construction industry will continue to play an important

role in the process. In the meantime, the Singapore market is
expected to maintain its steady growth rate.

The year 2016 marks PYE Group's 70th Anniversary - the right
time for us to step into the next stage of our evolution. We will
continue to adopt a cautious expansion strategy and secure
premium contracts in these markets. We believe that our solid
Foundcl’rion, ou’rsfcmding track record, and excellent team will
steer PYE Group towards an even brighter future. Management
will remain open to new ideas and methods of coping with the
ever-changing business environment while striving fo create
greater value for our shareholders and stakeholders.

Walter Craig Power
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director)

Hong Kong, 15 June 2016
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MR STEPHEN |
KRR A

Joint Chairman (Executive Director)
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Stephen Hung, aged 57, has been the Joint Chairman (Executive Director) of the
Company since February 2013. He is also the Chairman of the Executive Committee
of the Company, and a member of the Nomination Committee, Finance and
Investment Committee of the Company, and a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 33 years of experience in the finance and investment industries.
He is the Chairman of The Taipan Investment Group and the Vice Chairman of Rio
Entertainment Group, which operates the Rio Hotel & Casino through its aoffiliates in
Macau. Mr Hung was formerly co-head of investment banking for Asia at Merrill Lynch
and subsequently formed his own investment banking firm, Amida Capital Limited in
1992. From 2000 to 2002, Mr Hung served as the Vice Chairman of eSun Holdings
Limited (0571.HK). From 2000 to 2004, he also served as a non-executive director
of AcrossAsia Limited (8061.HK). Mr Hung graduated from University of Southern
California, Los Angeles with a master’s degree in business administration in 1981. Mr
Hung is also a director of | Hung Limited, S Hung Limited, Pride Wisdom Group
Limited and Chief Wise Limited, all of which have interests in the shares/underlying
shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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MR PETER LEE RJR.
Peter Lee Coke

Joint Chairman (Executive Director)
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Peter Lee Coker Jr., aged 47, has been the Joint Chairman (Executive Director) of the
Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Finance and Investment
Committee, Disclosures Committee and Executive Committee of the Company, and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 25 years of experience in
the finance and investment industries. He is the Managing Partner of Pacific Adveriers,
and is also a partner of TDR Capital Investment Ltd (a Shenzhen-based private equity
firm). Mr Coker served as an officer of the Bridge Companies prior to joining Wellington
Securities (New Zealand) in 2002. During his service with the Bridge Companies, Mr
Coker held the title of Managing Director-Asia, Chief Executive Officer of E-Bridge and
Managing Director of Bridge Asia where he was responsible for the firm's equity business
in Japan and South East Asia/Australia. From 2000 to 2001, Mr Coker served as the
Chairman of IRESS Market Technology Limited (formerly BridgeDFS) (ASX: IRE).
From 2002 to 2005, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of Wellington Securities (New
Zealand). From 2006 to 2009, Mr Coker served as the Chairman of Global Trading
Offshore Pte (Singapore). Mr Coker graduated from Lehigh University in the United
States with a Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990.
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MR LAU KO YUl OM
BsRbLE
Deputy Chairman (Executive Director)
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Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, aged 65, is the Deputy Chairman (Executive Director) of the
Company. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee, Finance and Investment Committee, Disclosures Committee, Corporate
Governance Committee, PYE Committee and Executive Committee of the Company.
He is also the Deputy Chairman and non-executive director of a subsidiary of the
Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lau has over

41 years international corporate development and management experience in
infrastructure developments as well as construction and engineering services involving
the road, rail, port, power, telecommunications, mining and resources sectors in the Asia
Pacific Region. Mr Lau has been the Deputy Chairman of the Company since January
2005. He has been re-designated from Non-Executive Director of the Company to
Executive Director of the Company since February 2013. Mr Lau is the Chairman and
Managing Director of PY| Corporation Limited (0498 .HK), a significant developer and
operator of major bulk cargo ports in the Yangtze River Region in China. He is also the
Deputy Chairman and non-executive director of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited
(0310.HK) and he was an independent non-executive director of China National
Building Material Company Limited (3323.HK) until November 2011.
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MR WALTER Cl DWER

Walter Craig P t

Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director)
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Walter Craig Power, aged 62, has been the Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director)
of the Company since February 2013, He is also a member of the Finance and
Investment Committee and Executive Committee of the Company, and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He is one of the longest serving casino executive
expatriates in Macau's gaming industry. Arrived in Macau in January 2003, Mr
Power has held the positions of Chief Operating Officer of New Cotai Entertainment,
an investor and developer of Macau Studio City, as well as Senior Vice President of
Operations of Venetian Macau Limited. Mr Power was instrumental to the success

of the development, opening and operation of the Sands, the first western casino in
Macau. During his tenure at the Sands, he was responsible for casino operations,

hotel operations, all food and beverage outlets and security operations. He was also a
member of the Compliance and Credit Committee. Being one of first western executives
to enter the Macau gaming market, and having worked in Macau for over ten years,
Mr Power is known internationally for his extensive knowledge of Macau gaming to
include junket, VIP, and mass market operations. A 24-year gaming industry veteran,
Mr Power accumulated extensive international gaming experience through executive
operational positions at casino resorts in the United States, Argentina, South Africa and
the Philippines, in addition to his work in Macau. Mr Power, a former United States
Marine Corps Maijor and Naval Aviator, received his BA and MBA from the University
of Michigan. He is also a graduate of the casino industry’s Executive Development
Program offered by the University of Nevada/Reno.
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RIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS

IRJAMES CHIU
HEHES TAZAD
Independent Non-Executive Director

BIIETES
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James Chiu, OBE, JP, aged 77, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since March 2006. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and PYE Committee of
the Company. He is also the Chairman and independent non-executive director of a
subsidiary of the Company, and an independent non-executive director of a subsidiary
of the Company. Ir Chiu has served Hong Kong's construction industry for 52 years. He
was the Managing Director of the General Electric Company of Hong Kong Limited
from 1984 10 1998.

Ir Chiu has held a number of important industry roles. He was a president of The Hong
Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited, The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers and a Chairman of the British Chamber of Commerce in Hong
Kong. Currently, he is a Council Member of Hong Kong Electrical & Mechanical
Contractors Association, Hong Kong Electrical Contractors” Association Limited and
Hong Kong & Kowloon Electric Trade Association. He is also a director of BEAM
Society Limited.

Ir Chiu is an Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, and a Fellow of
Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences.
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RIOGRAPHY OF DIRFCTORS

MR IAIN FERG RUCE
TRt

Independent Non-Executive Director
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lain Ferguson Bruce, aged 75, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the Finance and Investment
Committee and Disclosures Committee of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and PYE
Committee of the Company. He is also an independent non-executive director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr Bruce joined KPMG in Hong Kong in 1964 and was
elected to its partnership in 1971. He was the Senior Partner of KPMG from 1991 until

his retirement in 1996 and served as Chairman of KPMG Asia Pacific from 1993 to 1997.
Since 1964, Mr Bruce has been a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland, and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

with over 51 years of international experience in accounting and consulting. He is also

a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute. He is an Independent Noon-Executive Director of Citibank (Hong
Kong) Limited and MSIG Insurance (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr Bruce serves as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on the boards of several publicly listed companies
in Hong Kong, including, Wing On Company International Limited (0289.HK), Tencent
Holdings Limited (0700.HK) and Goodbaby International Holdings Limited (1086.HK).
He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Noble Group Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, and
Yingli Green Energy Holding Company Limited, a company whose shares are traded on
the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Bruce was an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China Medical Technologies, Inc., a China-based medical device company that was
listed on NASDAQ, up to 3 July 2012. He was also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (0345.HK) and retired from that
company's board on 4 September 2014. He was also an Independent Non-Executive

Director of Sands China Ltd. (1928.HK) until 11 March 2016.
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RIOGRAPHY OF DIRFCTORS

PROFESSOR L CKFAN
FISHHE

Independent Non-Executive Director
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Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP, aged 71, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since January 2005. He is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Company, and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and PYE Committee of the Company. He is also an
independent non-executive director of a subsidiary of the Company. Professor Lee is the
chair professor of geotechnical engineering and is the Chancellor of the Chu Hai College
of Higher Education. He is also an academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering.
Professor Lee graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1968 and subsequently
received his master's degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1970 and a Ph.D. from
the University of Western Ontario, Canada in 1972. Professor Lee is an internationally
renowned expert in geotechnical engineering. He worked for Ontario Hydro in Canada
for some 20 years before he joined his alma mater in 1994. He has participated in the
design of many massive dams and nuclear power stations. He has served as a specialist
consultant or an advisor to many international bodies such as the United Nations
Development Plan, World Bank, Asian Development Bank, etc. on numerous energy
and infrastructure projects in many parts of the world. Professor Lee’s

eminent achievement in civil engineering has been highly recognized; he was awarded
the KY Lo Medal in 2000 by the Engineering Institute of Canada and was elected

the academician of the Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2003 in recognition of his
contributions to the engineering profession. He has been appointed as Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government in July 2003, and
he has been awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star in July 2005 and
July 2013 respectively.

Professor Lee is currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Institute for Promotion of Chinese
Cu|fure, member of the Commission on Sfrq’regic Deve|opmenf, and the President of the
Fu Hui Charity Foundation.
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RIOGRAPHY OF DIRFCTORS

MR FRANCIS ¢ IMACHER
FRANCIS GOU {ER 4

Independent Non-Executive Director
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MR CHAN KO
fRE DI E
Independent Non-Executive Director
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Francis Goutenmacher, aged 74, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company since February 2013. He is also a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Goutenmacher has been with Richemont
Luxury Group, S.A. ("Richemont”), one of the world leading luxury goods groups, for
over 30 years. He has been the managing director and chief executive officer of several
prestigious brands, like Cartier and Piaget, encompassed by Richemont. After retiring
as the regional chief executive of Richemont Asia Pacific Limited, Mr. Goutenmacher is
now running a marketing consultancy firm, Gouten Consulting Limited, and is a director
of this consultancy company. Mr Goutenmacher holds a Bachelor's degree from Ecole
Nationale des Arts Decoratifs in Paris, France. He is an independent non-executive
director of I.T Limited (0999.HK) and Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited
(0157.HK).
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Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny, aged 56, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since November 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr Chan has over 31 years of experience in investment
banking and investment management industry. He is a co-founder of Crosby Capital
Limited, and the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Crosby Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited, a regulated entity of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission. Mr Chan is the President of the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private
Equity Association. He is also the Secretary General of the Asia Venture Capital and
Private Equity Council. Mr Chan is a member of the Innovation and Technology
Commission and the Steering Committee of the Asian Financial Forum of Hong Kong
Trade Development Council. He is a member of the Choate Rosemary Hall Parent
Advisory Council. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of CNQC International
Holdings Limited (1240.HK) with effect from 26 January 2016 and a Director of Repton
International (Asia Pacific) Limited. Mr. Chan holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from City University Business School in the United Kingdom, a postgraduate
diploma from The Securities Institute of Australia and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons) degree
in Economics from the London Metropolitan University.
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BIOGRAPHY OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR RICHARD L
B+ 75eA

Chief Financial Officer
IR

MS MUI CHING + OANNA
MEFRAL/ A
Corporate Counsel and Company Secretary
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Richard Liao, aged 52, has been the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
May 2013. He is also a member and alternate secretary of the Executive Committee of
the Company. Mr Liao has over 29 years of experience in finance and private equity.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr Liao was a Managing Partner of Brookfield Asset
Management (*Brookfield”) and Head of Real Estate Investment for Brookfield in
Europe. Prior to his appointment at Brookfield in 2010, Mr Liao served as Managing
Director, Real Estate Investment Banking for Bank of America Merrill Lynch ("Merrill
Lynch”), London, a position he held since 2005 and was employed for the preceding

7 years at Citigroup in both London and New York as a Managing Director of Real
Estate Investment Banking. Before moving to New York in 1998, Mr Lico spent 11
years in Hong Kong initially with Merrill Lynch and then co-founded Amida Capital
Group Limited with Mr Hung in 1992. Mr Liao graduated from Harvard College with
Bachelor of Arts degree in 1986.
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Mui Ching Hung, Joanna, aged 47, is the Corporate Counsel and Company Secretary of
the Company. She is also the secretary of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Disclosures Committee, PYE Committee and Executive Committee of the Company,
and the secretary of various subsidiaries of the Company. She is responsible for legal,
regulatory compliance, corporate governance and company secretarial matters of the
Group. Ms Mui has over 24 years’ experience in company secretarial field. She joined
the Group in 1997. Ms Mui holds a Bachelor (Hons) Degree in Law and a Master of Arts
Degree in Language and Law. She is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The 13 Holdings Limited (the "Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the "Group”) is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance because we believe that

is the best way to enhance shareholder value. The Company
places strong emphasis on an effective board (the “Board”) of
directors (the "Directors”) of the Company, accountability, sound
internal control, appropriate risk-assessment procedures, and
transparency to all shareholders.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the "Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2016 and has adopted most of the recommended best
practices stated therein.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors to ensure independent viewpoints in all
discussions. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
nine Directors, including four Executive Directors and five
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Board members are
listed below:
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HITES

Stephen Hung (Joint Chairman)
HOKEF (B S £ )

Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Joint Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. (BfE =)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman)
AER BIER)

Walter Craig Power (Chief Executive Officer)
Walter Craig Power (1TIEFEEY)

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on pages
23 to 30 of this annual report and on the Company’s website.
In addition, a list containing names of Directors and their roles
and functions is published on the websites of the Company and
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BUIEMITES

James Chiu

TR

Lee Chack Fan

=535

lain Ferguson Bruce

mEL

Francis Goutenmacher

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny
P& R
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Throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, at least one-

third of the Board was made up of Independent Non-
Executive Directors, one of whom had appropriate professional
quadlifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise, as required by the Listing Rules. There is no
relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

The composition of the Board (with five Independent Non-
Executive Directors out of nine Directors) exceeds the new
Listing Rules requirement to have independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board.

The Company has established a policy concerning diversity of
Board members (the “Board Diversity Policy”). In the Board
Diversity Policy:

1. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance.

2. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

3. In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
bockground, e’rhnicify, professiono| experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

4. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objectives criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skill, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.
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The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the TEHINESERELTILZIER

71-80

Board:

Independent
Non-Executive

French
EE
us

Directors

ESJE|
BiL "
= British
IERITES B
61-70

Executive Chinese
Directors AR 51-60
BITESR

N WA~ U1 O 4 O O

] 41-50
No. of Directors Designation Ethnicity Age
EEAH kv Bk Fip
Role and Responsibilities ABKEE
The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company's strategic EE2AEREA N R RN ER G E
direction and the controls opp|ied to its activities, and ensuring i, MEREEBEARBIEINH. ARNBIHBEHRCE
that Management has appropriate processes in place for EBERASEEHRIEEREF.
risk-assessmen’r, management, and internal control over the
Company's day-to-day affairs.
The Board has in place a list of decisions that are to be retained EEECRBMPFANE —RIAENAELEREE,
for the Board decision. These matters include: HrafE
1. Corporate strategy; 1. RNEEE
2. Financial reporting and control; 0. HAFSEERR K12 ;
3. Major financial arrangements; 3. BERMBLHE;
4. Risk management; 4. RAREIRE,
5. Succession planning; 5. MEAHE;
6. Notifiable transactions under Chapters 14 and 14A of the 6. FHRBISB4NMAAZEFTREN BT NHINRS ;
Listing Rules; and K
7. Recommendations to shareholders regarding the 7. PANEBEREEAN TS, RE. EAEENERERR
appointment of external auditor, dividend payments, capital BEm R IR IR,
reorganizations and schemes of arrangement.
The Board has delegated all day-to-day operations and EFEEHARBEBc—VHEEENREETEER
management of the Company’s business to Management under FTUARRNBTEREEAENEEEES.

the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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Chairmen and Chief Execut

The Joint Chairmen of the Company are Mr Stephen Hung
and Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr. The Chief Executive Officer of the
Company is Mr Walter Craig Power.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the positions of
the Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
held by different individuals, with separate duties. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairmen and Chief Executive
Officer is clearly established and set out in writing.

The role of the Joint Chairmen of the Company is to oversee
the Company’s strategic direction and the controls applied to its
activities. The Joint Chairmen provides leadership for the Board
and ensures that the Company establishes sound corporate
governance practices and procedures. They also encourage alll
Directors to make a full and active contribution to the affairs of

the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall
performance of the Company and plays a leading role in
delivering a growth strategy. He provides leadership for
Management, oversees the day-to-day operations of the Group,
and monitors the achievement of Company's objectives set by

the Board.

Independent Non-Executiv

The Independent Non-Executive Directors were appointed for

a term of approximately three years expiring at the conclusion
of the third annual general meeting from the date of their
appointment/re-election, subject to the Company’s Bye-laws.
Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement from office by rotation at least once every three years
and are eligible for re-election by shareholders.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has given
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors. As a good corporate governance practice, every
member of the Nomination Committee abstains from assessing
his own independence.
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Board Process

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year.
Regular Board meetings are usually scheduled at the beginning
of the year to give all Directors adequate time to plan their
schedules to attend. Directors receive at least 14 days prior
written notice of regular Board meetings and an agenda. The
Board papers, including supporting analyses and relevant
bockground information, are normally sent to all Directors

at least 3 days before the Board meeting. For other Board
meetings, Directors are given as much notice as possible in the
circumstances.

In order to have an effective Board, Directors are provided with
information on activities and developments in the Group's
business on a regular and timely basis to keep them apprised
of the latest developments of the Group. The Directors have
full access to information on the Group and are able to seek
independent professional advice whenever they deem it

necessary.

In addition, in order to enable the Board and each Director to
discharge their duties, it has been the Company's practice to
provide all Directors with monthly updates giving a balanced

and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,

positions and prospects since 2007, way ahead of the
implementation of new Code on 1 April 2012.

To avoid conflicts of interest, Directors who have declared
their material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to
be discussed are not counted in the quorum of meetings and
abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions.
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Details of Directors” attendance at Board meetings, Board BEEEREE_S—"F_A-1+—HLEFEANHRE
committee meetings and shareholders” meetings during the year EEETm. EELERERMREAGCFHBERIIN
ended 31 March 2016 are set out in the following table: e

Meetings attended/held during the year ended 31 March 2016

BE_E—E=B=+— Eifﬁzmﬁjr—/¢17uauﬁ

Finance & Corporate

Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination  Investment  Disclosures ~ Governance C PYFH AGM SGM
iﬁgﬁ Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ;;ml “ & e
ERZEE FMZEe REZET UHLRE NEZEE (¥EhR .. BEAE KRS
=g =51 B
Number of meetings
held during the year
P 5 3 4 2 2 2 2 4 1 1
FRET
BREZRE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #{TE&E =
Stephen Hung
S 5/5 2/2 2/2 11 11
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 5/5 2/2 2/2 N 7l
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 5/5 4/4 2/2 9/9 2/2 2/2 4/4 11 on
=S
Walter Craig Power 5/5 2/2 N N
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS &1 1T ==
James Chiu
N 5/5 3/3 4/4 2/2 4/4 1N 11
IS
Lee Chack Fan
e 5/5 3/3 4/4 2/2 4/4 on 11
lain Ferguson Bruce
P 5/5 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2 4/4 11 on
e
Francis
5/5 3/3 2/2 1 11
Goutenmacher
Chan Kok Chung,
Johnny 5/5 3/3 11

BRER
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(EELRE

In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman holds regular
meetings with Independent Non-Executive Directors without the

presence of Executive Directors in March 2016.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings with
sufficient details of matters discussed are kept in safe custody

by the Company Secretary, and are open for inspection by
Directors.

Induction and Development

Management and the Company Secretary liaise with the newly
appointed Directors to acquaint them with their duties and
responsibilities as Directors and the business operations of the
Company. On appointment to the Board, Directors receive a
package of orientation materials on the Group and provided
with a comprehensive induction on the business operations and
practices of the Group, as well as the general and specific duties
of directors under general law and the Listing Rules. All Directors
are also given a Directors’ Manual on their appointment

which set out, amongst other fhings, directors’ duties, terms of
reference of the Board Committee and corporate governance
practices of the Group.

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development ("CPD"),
details on legal and regulatory changes are provided to all
Directors. Directors are also recommended and encouraged

to attend forums or seminars re|oﬁng to the ro|es, functions

and duties of a listed company director. The costs of such
forums or seminars are borne by the Company. The Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company is responsible

for reviewing and monitoring the Directors training and

deve|opmen’r.
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The Directors are required to provide the Company with details BEEARANEIREEESIRES CCPDEIFFE. B
of the CPD training undertaken by them. Based on the details BB CHE BE_S—R"GF-EB=ft—HItEE
so provided, the CPD training undertaken by the Director during BEEET CCPDEIIMENT

the year ended 31 March 2016 is summarised as follows:

ATTENDING PRESENTATION/SEMINARS

DIRECTORS READING REGULATORY RULES AND ~ RELEVANT TO THE GROUPS' BUSINESS OR

8=

THEIR UPDATES DIRECTORS' DUTIES

BFEEERALREFER HEEAREE RN EEH SR
= =

Stephen Hung

AN

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

=R
Walter Craig Power

James Chiu

A

Lee Chack Fan

= a3

lain Ferguson Bruce

e+

Francis Goutenmacher

AN N N Y N N NN
D N N N N NN

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny

AN

v

& =

The Company has received confirmation from each current ANBBRESHIEERER, RERBES—F=
Director that he has given sufficient time and attention to the A=+ —HIEEFEEREHEARNBZEHNETEZEFE
affairs of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016. &*ﬁ 7o BH, BEEEAFEARN j?&%ﬁﬁéﬂf@ﬁﬁ
Besides, Directors have disclosed to the Company their interests NEVNERTES NEMBER B, LEAR

as director and other office in other public companies and MTAEBEE,

organisation in a timely manner and update the Company on
any subsequent changes.

BOARD COMMITTEES EEZ89

To facilitate the work of the Board, Board committees have AFEEETEFERIEN, it U EmY I REESRE
been set up with written terms of reference which clearly LEEEEE, EWMATEEESAB. ERNEEE
define the ro|e, cufhorify, and functions of each committee. %%%géﬁiq/gmﬁgﬁxg&%ﬂ/%é jZLE%o ﬁ%ﬁ%
Each Board committee is required to report their decisions or ENRBES - ANF AT HLIFENHFEEEZE
recommendations to the Board. Details of Directors’ attendance Eg U %EZIKE%&%ZSL o

at the Board committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2016 are shown on page 37 of this annual report.

The role and function of, and a summary of work done by, each EEEZESENRNHE_SNF_A=1+—HIHFEZ
Board committee during the year ended 31 March 2016 are set ACEENETERENT .
out below:
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Audit Committee

Composition

The Audit Committee consists of five members, all of whom are
Independent Non-Executive Directors, and is chaired by an
Independent Noon-Executive Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce,
Mr Francis Goutenmacher and Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny.
None of them is a partner or former partner of Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the Company's external auditor.

Role and Function

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include oversight
of the Group's financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, review of the Group's financial information, and
review of the relationship with the external auditor of the
Company. This Committee also meets regularly with the
Company's external auditor to discuss the audit process and
accounting issues.

In view of the implementation of the consultation conclusion of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on "Risk Management and
Internal Control” for accounting periods beginning on or after

1 January 2016, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were revised with effect from 1 April 2016. The revised terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2016:

1. Review of the annual results of the Group for the year ended

31 March 2015;

2. Review of the interim results of the Group for the six months

ended 30 September 2015;

3. Review of the Group's financial information, financial
reporting system, internal control procedures, and financial
and accounting policies and practices;

4. Approval of remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor;

5. Recommendation to the Board to re-appoint the external
auditor at the 2015 annual general meeting;

6. Review of the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, and
review of policy on engaging the external auditor to supply
non-audit services;
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7. Review of the audit plan for the financial year ended 31
March 2016;

8. Review of the Company's systems of financial controls,
internal control and risk management;

9. Review of the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, fraining programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function;

10. Review of internal/external auditor’s significant findings
and recommendations, and monitoring of the subsequent
imp|emen’roﬁon;

1. Review of the effectiveness of the internal audit function of
the Company;

12. Approval of the 2017 internal audit plans;
13. Review of the continuing connected transactions;
14. Review of the whistleblowing policy; and

15. Meeting with the external auditor, in the absence of
Management.

Remuneration Committee

Composition

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, the
majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
This Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director.

The current members of this Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Professor Lee Chack

Fan.

Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee has been established to ensure
there is a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy
on the remuneration of Executive Directors and for fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors. This Committee is
mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the Company'’s policy and structure for remuneration

of Directors and Senior Management, and making
recommendations on the manpower deployment plan. This
Committee also determines, with delegated responsibility,
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors

and Senior Monogemen’r, and makes recommendations on
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.
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Summary of Work Done
The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the year

ended 31 March 2016 included:

(a) Approved the grant of share options to the Executive
Directors;

(b) Recommended the grant of share options to the
Independent Non-Executive Directors;

(c) Reviewed and approved the revised directors’ fees of the
Executive Directors; and

(d) Reviewed and recommended the revised directors’ fees of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Remuneration Policy

The Company ensures that the remuneration offered is
appropriate for the duties, in line with market practice and pay
levels, and effective in attracting, retaining and motivating
employees (including Executive Directors). For Non-Executive
Directors, the Company ensures that they are sufficiently but
not excessively compensated for their efforts and time dedicated
to the Company. No individual determines his or her own
remuneration.

The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference to
market competitiveness, job responsibilities, and performance of
the Company and the individual. Details of the remuneration of
Directors during the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out on
page 135 of this annual report. With effect from 1 April 2016,

(a) director’s fees of each of Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Peter

Coker Lee Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Walter Craig
Power have been increased by HK$16,550 per annum to
HK$347,300 per annum; (b) director’s fee of Ir James Chiu has
been increased by HK$43,050 per annum to HK$903,000
per annum; (c) director’s fee of Professor Lee Chack Fan has
been increased by HK$44,390 per annum to HK$930,800
per annum; (d) director’s fee of Mr lain Ferguson Bruce has
been increased by HK$48,310 per annum to HK$1,014,100 per
annum; (e) director’s fee of Mr Francis Goutenmacher has been
increased by HK$64,000 per annum to HK$1,342,900 per
annum; and (f) director’s fee of Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny
has been increased by HK$21,000 per annum to HK$441,000
per annum. During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
remuneration paid to one Senior Management was within the
band between HK$1,000,000 to 5,000,000, and one Senior
Management was within the band between HK$5,000,001 to
HK$11,000,000.
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Nomination Committee

Composition

The Nomination Committee consists of five members, the
majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
This Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director.

The current members of this Committee are Professor Lee Chack
Fan (Chairman), Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr

lain Ferguson Bruce and Mr Francis Goutenmacher.

Role and Function

This Committee was established to ensure there is a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new Directors. The duties of this Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and, if
necessary, recommending changes. It is also responsible for
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board, selecting or making recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals to be nominated for diredorships,
and reviewing the effectiveness of the Directors.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 March 2016:

1. Nominated the retiring Directors for re-election at the 2015
Annual General Meeting;

2. Review of the structure, size and composition (including the
ski||s, know|ec|ge and experience) of the Boord;

3. Assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors; and

4. Review of the Company's policy on nomination of Directors.

Nomination Procedure

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and makes recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes.

Appointments of new Directors are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. In considering the appointment of a
Director, this Committee applies criteria such as professional and
educational background, relevant experience, and qualifications.
The recommendations of this Committee are then put to the
Board for consideration and approval. Thereafter, all Directors
appointed to fill casual vacancy are subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
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Finance and Investment Co

Composition

The Finance and Investment Committee consists of five
members, and is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive
Director. The current members of this Committee are Mr lain
Ferguson Bruce (Chairman), Mr Stephen Hung, Mr Peter Lee
Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Walter Craig Power.

Role and Function

The Finance and Investment Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on matters

relating to investing in assets, evaluating the budgets of all key
expenditures, reviewing financial performance against forecast,
and considering dividend payout.

Summary of Work Done
The work done by the Finance and Investment Committee

during the year ended 31 March 2016 included:

1. Review and evaluation of actual-to-budget results for the
year ended 31 March 2015 and for the six months ended 30
September 2015 (including budget of all key expenditures);

2. Review of financial performance against forecast;

3. Discussion on changes in accounting standards which may
affect the Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015 and for the six months ended 30
September 2015; and

4. Consideration of the payment of the 2015 final dividend
and 2016 interim dividend.

Disclosures Committee

Composition

The Disclosures Committee consists of three members, and

is chaired by an Independent Non-Executive Director. The
current members of this Committee are Mr lain Ferguson Bruce

(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Role and Function

The Disclosures Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing
disclosures to shqreho|o|ers, the pub|ic, and relevant statutory
authorities, and for overseeing compliance with any applicable
legal requirements for disclosure.

Summary of Work Done

The work done by the Disclosures Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2016 included the review of the content of
announcements relating to the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2015, and the interim results of the
Group for the six months ended 30 September 2015.
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Corporate Governance Co

Composition

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of three
members, the majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive
Directors. This Committee is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director. The current members of this Committee are

Ir James Chiu (Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom and Mr lain

Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

The Corporate Governance Committee was established with
delegated responsibility of the Board to perform the corporate
governance duties and to further strengthen the Company’s
corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Committee is mainly responsible for
developing and regularly reviewing the Company’s compliance
with legal, regulatory and corporate governance standards and
makes recommendations to the Board.

Summary of Work Done
The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Corporate Governance Committee during the year ended 31

March 2016

1. Review of the Company's corporate governance policy;

2. Review of the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

3. Review of the Company's compliance with the Code for
the year ended 31 March 2015 and six months ended 30
September 2015; and

4. Review of the Company's disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2015.

PYE Committee

Composition

The current members of the PYE Committee are Ir James Chiu
(Chairman), Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Professor Lee Chack Fan

and Mr lain Ferguson Bruce.

Role and Function

The PYE Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing,
monitoring and supervising the overall management and
operation of the construction business of the Company

Summary of Work Done

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the PYE Committee
reviewed the results of the construction business of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2015, for the four months ended 31
July 2015, for the six months ended 30 September 2015 and for
the ten months ended 31 January 2016.
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Executive Committee

Composition

The Executive Committee consists of five members. The current
members of this Committee are Mr Stephen Hung (Chairman),
My Peter Lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr Walter
Criag Power and Mr Richard Liao.

Role and Function
This Committee is mainly responsible for handling the
management and operations of the doy-’ro-doy business of the

Group.

Management Functions
The division of responsibilities between the Board and
Management are clearly set out in writing to ensure that there is

a segregation of duties with clear accountability.

The Board, under the leadership of the Chairman of the
Company, has delegated all the day-to-day operations and
management of the Company's business to Management,
under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Management is required to report to the Board on

their decisions or recommendations.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIE _TIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of

conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

All Directors have confirmed, Fo||owing specific enquiry by the
Company, that they complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation
to the Group.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSI!
STATEMENTS

. THE FINANCIAL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounts deporfmenf, the Directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group are prepored on a going concern basis
and in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
financial reporting standards. The Directors also ensure that
the financial statements of the Group are published in a timely

manner.
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The statement by the external auditor of the Company
regarding his reporting responsibilities of the financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 83 and 84 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman, Board and
Board Committees by ensuring good information flow and that
Board policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible
for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible to the Group's
compliance with all obligations of the Listing Rules and Codes
on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. She reports to the Joint Chairmen and
the Board as a whole. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary in respect of their duties
and the effective operation of the Board and Board Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company Secretary
undertook over 15 hours of professional training to update her
skills and knowledge.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

At the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 11 August
2015, shareholders approved the re-appointment of Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditor
for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

The fees paid to Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for audit and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 March 2016 (and the
comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2015) are as

FO”OWS:

=k 4=

RRBNBERBEN AN EFHAER M BRER CFRE
EFRERR, BIRNAFTIRESIERB4E 2 H I BT
W&o

LB

NENBEELETR. EHQREEESE, BES
B, TIamEEe KSR SEET, 1
Twiﬁ%$A%ﬁam$aZ%E,lﬁﬁ%$ﬁﬁ
REZHER, NTWETHAEEET FHRAIRA
i, SHRRABLTI L FEEAEE,

REMERER TZ@E,E%$A¢ﬁ&m,IHW
BIRKESSFHERER 2BEFTJERR
WERLHBENEEENEEEET Zﬁﬁﬁ@khﬁ
8 N fR5o

BECS—ANFZRA=T—HLEE, REIWECES
15/ B DL B2 BRI, MU E e e A

%H%@%&Eﬁ

—hAF/N\BT—HETZARAKRFBEFKRE
i, ﬂx%ﬁk&%&ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁb REMRT E5TNIT AL EE
ECE-ANF A=+ —HIEMHRFEZ B,

*=

HE_E—RNE-L=1T—HIEEE (NKEEE_S
—hEZA=+—HLEEECHFTHE), ENEE.5H
B GENT OB IERBRF < BRI T ¢

2016 2015

— N
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
F TR
Audit fee MEEH 4,419 4,41

Non-audit services fees IEEBRFEE R

Interim review fee FHHEEE R 980 950
Tax services RIEIRTS 364 407
Provident fund audit NEEE 26 26
Forensic services EFEIRTE 2,353 -
3,723 1,383
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The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and ensuring the continuing objectivity and
independence of the external auditor. The Audit Committee of
the Company has resolved to recommend the re-appointment
of Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as external auditor of the
Company. This resolution has been endorsed by the Board and
is subject to final approval and authorization by the shareholders
at the 2016 Annual General Meeting.

INTERNAL CONTROL A

Introduction

ANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Company's
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.

In meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk
awareness across the Company’s business operations and has
put in place policies and procedures which provide a framework
for controls and management of risks.

The Board is also committed to managing risks and monitoring
its business and financial activities in a manner which enables it
to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce
risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and enhance

resilience to external events.

Internal Control

The Company has had in p|c1ce an in‘regro’red internal control
framework in complying with Code Provisions of Listing Rules.
Internal control is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in
relation to the following:

+  Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
. Re|ic1bi|i’ry of financial reporting; and

+ Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company's internal control framework is divided into five
inter-related components: control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, monitoring and information & communication.
It serves as criteria for the effectiveness of the internal control
system in supporting the achievement of the separate but
over|opping opero‘riono|, financial reporting and comp|icmce
objectives.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s system
of internal control and assessment of risks. The responsibility

of day-fo-doy management of operaﬁono| risks and the
implementation of mitigation measures lies with Management.
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Built into our system are checks and balances such that no single
party can “monopolise” a transaction, activity or process to
conceal irregularities. Hence, Management has undertaken the
following additional checks and balances procedures:

+ A clear functional organizational structure was set up
with well-defined lines of authority, accountability and
responsibilities. Each division clearly understands their scope
of business and authorities delegated by Management;

+ A monthly reporting system on the performance of each
division, and actual financial performance results against
budgets to Management was well established. The
Board reviews the Company's operations and financial

performance on a quarterly basis;

+ The Board reviews annually, in particular, adequacy
of resources, quo|ificoﬁons, experience of staff, training
programme and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function as required under the Listing

Rules;

+ The Audit Committee assesses and monitors the
effectiveness of internal control system in detecting fraud
and other irregularities by reviewing the work of the internal
corporate audit department and its findings; and

+ The Company has in place a disclosure of price-
sensitive information policy for identifying, handling and
disseminating inside information. Procedures such as limit
access to inside information to those who need to know
and requiring outside parties to execute confidentiality
agreement have been implemented by the Company to
guard against mishandling of inside information.

The Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control systems during the year ended 31
March 2016, and was not aware of any significant issues that
would have adverse impact on the effectiveness and adequacy
of the internal control system of the Group. Such review covers
all material controls, inc|uo|ing financial, operq’rion0| and
compliance controls, risk management functions, adequacy

of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting and

financial reporting function.
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Risk Management RRERE

The Group has established an enterprise risk management AREEBEETI—ECERMEIEREL, Jy{i’ﬁﬁf\—]ﬁg%& =
framework to identify potential events that may be affecting KNB 7 BESMS, HERERIRRIR, AZEFAR

the Company, to manage risks within its risk appetite and to RIBHAIEMRME, IEZRR=EHZEEMN, U\%/\%’mfi
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the B $$Z§§\@&%$A¥fﬁ B EEERENELD,
Company's objectives. It comprises of three lines of defence to papsllbs

provide Management, Audit Committee and the Board with the
confidence that the Company is managing its risks and they are:

RISK &z
BUSINESS OPERATIONS Operational processes, project risk and control OPERATIONAL
FIRSTLINE OF DEFENSE s zcuuses activity business level monitoring MANAGEMENT
BEWIR BRI, EE AR S wEEE
REER
RISK &z
CORPORATE OVERSIGHT Business planning, policy and procedure setting, SENIOR
SECOND LINE OF DEFENSE . . MANAGEMENT
SO FU_NCTlOI‘LS functional oversight o
N EVEERAE e8], BERERFHE, B S ke

RISK &

=)
2>

INTERNAL /EXTERNAL AUDIT Monitoring compliance and provide independent AUDIT
THB;LINE OF DEFENSE AN challenge and assurance COMMITTEE
LRSI BRI A R R E R R BREAR

THE BOARD
Exg
(Audit Committee)
(BREET)
This enterprise risk management framework will enable the I ERREREEEREANEEUTNEEITRE :
Company to have the following potential benefits:
Greater likelihood of achieving business objectives; ¢ ERARAREEREBER;
Higher share prices over the longer term; - RIEFNEFRE;
Reduction in management time spent “fire fighting”; - RO BEEAR R B ;
Increased likelihood of change initiatives being achieved; ° EREmA S REW O
More focus internally on doing the right things properly; . b%@{%ﬁqjﬁﬁtp BEHRIEERIENS ;
Better basis for strategy setting; - HIERBEEESIEE
Achievement of competitive advantage; < IRBREEDR
Fewer sudden shocks and unwelcome surprises; and c BAOEBEENTALHEECENEG K
Early mover into new business areas. . EHEBHBREE K

50

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN 2L

Internal Audit

The internal audit function of the Group reviews the Group's
internal control system, including assessing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the design and operating effectiveness of the
internal controls as well as management oversight of the in-
scope areas and process. Internal control review is conducted at
least once a year. The procedures consist of process evaluations
through interviews with various personnel of the in-scope
processes, review of relevant policies and procedures, and
sample testing of controls. During the internal audit process,
the Group's internal audit function identifies internal control
weokness, makes recommendations and obtains remedial
action plan from Management with timelines, for strengthening
the internal control of the Group. Internal audit function of the
Group will also follow up with Management status of remedial
action plan.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the internal audit
function of the Group has conducted a review on the

Group's internal control system. Internal audit report, containing
observaﬁons, recommendations and remedial action p|c1n, has
been submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board.

INVESTOR RELATIONS HOLDER RIGHTS

In order to enhance shareholder and investor understanding

of the Group's business, the Company has established several
communication channels with shareholders and investors,
including (i) printed copies of corporate documents (including
but not limited to annual reports, interim reports, circulars and
notices of shareholder meetings); (i) general meetings where
shareholders can offer comments and exchange views with the
Board; (iii) the Company’s website: www.thel3.com; and (iv)
the Company's share registrar with whom shareholders register
their shares. The Company has established a shareholders’
communication policy to set out the Company’s procedures

in providing the shareholders and investment community with
reody, equ0| and Hme|y access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company.

In addition, shareholders are encouraged to attend all general
meetings of the Company, where the Joint Chairmen of the
Company, Chairmen of Board Committees, other Directors and
the external auditor are available to answer questions on the
Group's businesses. In order to conduct the general meetings in
a transparent manner, it has been the Company's practice to
conduct poll voting at general meetings since 2005, way ahead
of poll voting being made mandatory for all general meetings
effective on 1 January 2009.

In addition to the annual general meeting, the Company held
one special general meeting during the year ended 31 March
2016. The Joint Chairmen of the Board, Chairmen of the Board
committees attended the annual general meeting and special
general meeting and were available to answer questions.

The last general meeting was held on 24 March 2016 at Statue
Square Room, 2nd Floor, Mandarin Oriental, Hong Kong,

5 Connaught Road, Central, Hong Kong for the purpose of
approving change of company name. The above resolution was
passed at the said special general meeting. The results of the
poll voting have been published on the websites of the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Under the Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights at general meetings of
the Company shall have the right, by written requisition to the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called for
the business specified in such requisition.

Also, shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights at general meetings or not less than 100
shareholders have to right to submit a written request to the
Company stating the resolution intended to be moved af the
annual general meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board's
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company's principal
place of business in Hong Kong at 2901 AIA Central, 1
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

Details of the interests of Directors and shareholders in the
shares of the Company are shown on pages 61 to 64 and 75 to
80 of this annual report respectively.

OTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

Memorandum and Bye-Laws
There were no changes to the Company’s memorandum and
bye-laws during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Key Corporate Dates

B
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TR —ZBRRERBARNEFELEEH K, BRAH
BRER R RIA S LR IE LG KATF B2 WS .
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ZIRE, ADR—EMURE, DJAARNEERERR
K, BEXRRERRBFRE LBZRESR,

KRR EREAESEEHEARNDNEBECIEE
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Announcement of 2016 interim results

R B —NEPHEE

Announcement of 2016 annual results

R B —RNF2FER

2016 annual general meeting

TERNEREBEERE

Public Float Capitalisation

The public float capitalisation of the Company was
approximately HK$877.7 million on 31 March 2016, and
approximately HK$1,222.7 million on the date of this report.

By order of the Board

Mui Ching Hung, Joanna
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 15 June 2016

9 November 2015
—E—AF+—ANH

15 June 2016
= NERNATRHE

16 August 2016
ZE—ARFENATRH

ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
ANBR_E—ARNEZA=Z+—HEARESHBEZ AR
R MED F‘;\J #9877,700,00078 7T A2 491,222,700,00075
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AEEEm
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The 13 Holdings Limited (the "Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the "Group”) continues its commitment as a
responsible corporate citizen by making inroads in environment
protection, sustainable development and caring for the
community. It did this by strategically partnering with and
deepening re|o’rionshi|o with its key stakeholders: emp|oyees,
investors and the community at large.

CORPORATE GOVERN/

The Company p|oces strong emphosis on sound infternal controls,

appropriate risk-assessment procedures and transparency to its
shareholders and the public. The Company believes that a high
standard of corporate governance is key to sustainable business
deve|opment The Company strives to comp|y with all relevant
laws and adopt best practices.

ENVIRONMENT PROTE

Since resources available in the world are getting scarce,
environmental protection and energy conservation have become
maijor issues in the sustainable development of a company. The
Group seeks to minimize adverse impact that its operations

may have on the environment. The Group is also committed

to ensuring compliance with relevant laws, in their jurisdictions
and regularly reviewing their business practices to identify ways
to enhance sustainability and deploy measures to make more
efficient use of resources.

A. Emissions Reduction
Issued Energy Policy Statement to all staff, which is an
important part of our daily business management;
Upholded efficient energy procurement through
purchase of low energy consumption construction
materials and products;

« Used high energy-saving machines and equipment; and

Used ultra low-sulfur diesel (ULSD) to fuel vehicles and

machines.

B. Resources Saving
Encouraged staff to switch off all lights and electrical
equipment when they are not used, LED lighting
are installed in our office areas to reduce energy
consumption and prevent unnecessary energy wastage
Adopted electronic internal administrative processes
(such as leave application and IT equipment
application) to replace the use of paper

+ lIssued Energy Policy Statement to the staff, which

is an important part of the Group's daily business
management;
Established stock control and regular maintenance
system for recording and monitoring quantities and use
of various construction materials in order to prevent
over-ordering and stocking of materials; and
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Used durable metal scaffolding instead of bamboo
scaffolding to reduce material consumption. Following
implementation, one of our sites recorded a decrease
of approximately 383.63 tonnes of carbon dioxide
emission.

Employing a circulating water system by installing
circulating pumps and pipework system to re-circulate
water used for curing. After implementation, the

total volume of water used in one of our sites was
approximately 50 cubic meters, a reduction of
approximately 624 cubic meters of water compared
to the conventional spraying method used in the curing
process.

C. Pollution Prevention
Installed temporary noise barriers onsite to reduce noise
|eve|s, and chemical sedimentation tanks for wastewater
c|is’ri||c1ﬁon; and
Strengthening supervision of carrying capacity of
trucks while exercising strict control on chemical waste
treatment to reduce adverse impacts of construction
work on neighbouring areas.

In addition, the Group played an active role in various
environment protection initiatives. For example, we have
extended full support to the Energy Saving Charter proposed
by the Energy Efficiency Office, Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department, deepening our commitment to energy
conservation. We have remained a Silver Patron of the Hong
Kong Green Building Council for four consecutive years,
supporting various Green Building policies of the Council.

Following the success of the construction of Kennedy Town
Swimming Pool (Phase 1), our project team achieved excellent
results in environmental protection in the Re-provisioning of
Kennedy Town Swimming Pool (Phase 2). The team adopted
a number of innovative approaches to incorporate “green”
elements info the construction site.

They included:
Redesigning the hoarding erection method at and outside
the construction site to avoid unnecessary pruning and
domoge of trees;
Precisely calculating steepness of soil excavation and
adopting the slope open-cut excavation method instead
of steel sheet piling to prevent noise pollution and reduce
neighbourhood disfurbance;
Spraying water on slope to reduce dust emission and
selecting sand as backfill material to enhance drainage
capacity.

Thanks to the assiduous efforts of the project team to fully
implement these measures, the Re-provisioning of Kennedy Town
Swimming Pool (Phase 2) was honoured with the "MTR Projects
Quality, Safety, Environmental and Stakeholder Engagement
Awards - Best Site Condition Award”. The award was presented by
MTR Corporation Limited, in recognition of the team'’s outstanding
performance in environmental excellence.
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SOCIAL COMMITMENT

The Group believes that quality talents are important asset of
a company and is vital for sustainable growth of a company.
The Group is committed to providing a fair and competitive
compensation package and training and development
opportunities to attract and retain quo|ify talents. The Group
strictly complies with the applicable rules and regulations.

A. Working Conditions
Staff training has always been regarded as a long-term
investment and not an expense. We strive to create a rich
and rewarding work environment for all our employees. As
suc|’1, we have established a variety of mechanisms to ensure
that everyone enjoys d fair and heath work environment,
where fhey feel vcz|uec|, inc|uo|eo|, and motivated to
give of their best. Furthermore, all job applicants are
treated equally. We maintain a strong stance against
the employment of children and forced labour. Taking a
step further, we have included this policy as a contractual
obligation of all suppliers and sub-contractors.

To assist in work-life balance, the Group where put in place
a series of family-friendly employment policies and practices
that save particular staff options such as part-time work,
volunteer |eave, compassionate leave for the staff. We also
regularly hosted social gatherings, festive luncheons and
volunteer activities for not only staff but also their families.
Our attrition rate averaged 17% in the 2015 financial year.

B. Health and Safety

The Group is committed to maintaining a healthy and safe

workplace. The Group has in place a workplace injury policy.

All workp|ace accidents must be repor’red to the Human
Resources Department and compensation (includes medical
expenses) must be adequate to restore the employee’s
health, their working capacity and recovery of employee's
active life.

In addition, the Group's internal safety regulations are
stricter than the regulatory standards. For instance, the
targeted accident rate is set below 10.8 per 1,000 workers
this year. Meanwhile, we have been OHSAS 18001 of
Occupational Health and Safety Management System
certified since 2008 with bi-annual occupational health
and safety audits carried out by Hong Kong Quiality
Assurance Agency (HKQAA). The OHSAS 18001
certification demonstrates that the Group not only complies
with statutory and contractual requirements but also with
occupational health and safety practices initiated by Hong
Kong's construction industry. In addition, our Safety, Health,
Environment & Quality (SHEQ) Policy Statement sets out
compliance guidelines for construction sites.
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Safety Measures

The Group also adopts a multi-pronged approach towards
managing occupational health and safety. Apart from
providing workers with ample protective equipment, we have
a nursing centre, workers’ rest areq, shoe—woshing poo|s,

as well as anti-mosquito and other pest control equipment
to improve working environment. The Group always strives
to optimise site safety management, formulating stringent
guidelines for work-at-height, weighing and lifting operations
and temporary materials storage. Weekly safety inspections
are carried out to minimise construction risks and safety
hazards. The use of advanced equipment such as artificial
ventilation systems for underground work and spark-free
cutting machines strengthens construction site safety.

. Development and Trai

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company
arranged a specialized fraining session for its butlers with
the world-famous MCM Palace Consultants in Paris, where
they were extensively trained to the highest world standards
in service, etiquette and entertaining. The Company offered
this opportunity to excep’riona”y talented emp|oyees to
develop their professional skills to the highest level in the
world.

In addition, the Group constantly review our HR
management practices so as o employ the most up-to-
date methods of staff development and training. Our
Training Department provides a broad spectrum of learning
opportunities for all levels of employees. From technical
skills and experience sharing to environmental, occupational
safety and health, legal training, management training and
language and communications skills.

. Labour Standards

The Group does not employ any child or forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICE
E. Supply Chain Manager

Our comprehensive supply chain risk management
strategy also remained firm. Suppliers and subcontractors
were selected by senior management to ensure consistent
service quality and delivery, and their performance is
regularly evaluated and recorded. Potential suppliers and
subcontractors were invited to tender in accordance with
relevant project specifications. The selection process included
completion of a Quality, Health and Safety Questionnaire,
a vital evaluation tool. Regular reviews ensured that
suppliers continued to provide stable and reliable services
and products.

Product Responsibility

Stakeholder data privacy remains a top priority. Apart
from publishing guidelines and booklets on the subjects,

we frequently issue circulars to frontline staff and organise
workshops to ensure that customer privacy is a priority. In
cddi’rion, non-disclosure agreements are included in our
tenders and contracts for sub-confrdcfors, in order to ensure
data privacy and protect customer information.
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G. Anti-Corruption G. }i B85

Honesty, impartiality, transparency and responsibility are
important core values. The Group has established a series of
sound internal control structures and implemented stringent
policies to prevent fraud and corruption.

Our strong anti-corruption and anti-fraud culture is
inculcated in new staff members and incorporated through
appropriate regulations in the contracts of third-party
suppliers so that they fully understand and complied with
our requirements. We also issue regular guidelines in the
Code of Conduct for Employees to remind staff to refuse
dubious advantages such as suspicious gifts.

. Community Investment

The Group strongly believes in giving back to the community
we grew up in. Over the years, we have focussed our CSR
efforts on three key areas: community service, education
and charity. During the year, our volunteer team showed
their commitment to community involvement by joining the
Re-provisioning of Kennedy Town Swimming Pool (Phase
2) project team and a group of MTRC representatives

on a visit fo the Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Western
District Elderly Community Centre. The volunteers sang
and performed "Kung Fu” moves with the old friends, and
enjoyed a joyful day together.

The nurture of young talent is of utmost importance for the
overall advancement of society, which is why we support
various education programmes each year. During the year,
we sponsored two “Upward Mobility Scholarship” awardees.
The scholarship is co-organised by the Commission on
Poverty and The Hong Kong Council of Social Services
(HKCSS), to encourage students from less privileged families
to improve their circumstances through education.

During the year, we made charitable and other donations
of approximately HK$601,000 in support of community
welfare, environmental protection and healthcare initiatives.
Apart from donations, we regularly sponsored the activities
of various organisations and societies, fostering social and
educational development. For instance, we sponsored "21st
Ocean Park Conservation Day” organised by the Ocean
Park Conservation Foundation Hong Kong in support of
their efforts to protect endangered species.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of The 13 Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Louis XIlI Holdings Limited) (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) for

the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates, joint
ventures and joint operations as at 31 March 2016 are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group's business performance
during the reporting period, as well as the principal risks and
uncertainties and future prospects of the Group are set out in
the Chief Executive Officer's Report of the annual report, the
discussions thereof form part of this Directors’ Report.

Environmental Policies and ce

The Group understands the importance of sound environmental
management practices and sustainable business operations.
The Group has in place environmental policy and is committed
to minimize adverse impact that its operations may have on
the environment. The Group has implemented a number of
environment-friendly measures such as installation of LED
lighting and adoption of electronic internal administrative
processes to replace the use of paper.

Compliance with Laws and 1S

During the year ended 31 March 2016, as far as the Company
is aware, there was no material breach of or non-comp|icmce
with applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.
Relationships with Employe rs and Suppliers

The sustainable development of the Group depends on the
supports and efforts of all parties concerned including our
customers, suppliers and contractors, particularly the efforts
and contribution of all our staffs. Accordingly, our senior
management has kept good communication, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business updates with them when
appropriate.
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CHANGE OF NAME

Specio| resolution was possed by the shareholders of the
Company at a special general meeting of the Company held
on 24 March 2016 to change the name of the Company from
“Louis Xl Holdings Limited” to “The 13 Holdings Limited” and
the Chinese name "+ =2 EHE/N5)" has been registered as
the secondary name of the Company in place of "B&5 + =%
EE[R/25)" which was adopted for identification purpose. The
change of name took effect on 28 March 2016.

RESULTS AND APPRO
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are

set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
85 of the annual report and in the accompanying notes to the

consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS A S
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the five largest customers

and the single largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 75% and 19% of the revenue of the Group,
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group during the year was less than 30%
of the purchases of the Group.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the direcfors, their
close associates, within the meaning of the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”),
or those shareholders which to the knowledge of the directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital have an
interest in any of the five largest customers of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPIT ‘ES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities

to meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March

2016, the Group's total bank borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$3,020,847,000 with approximately
HK$459,154,000 repayable within one year and approximately
HK$2,561,693,000 repayable more than two years but not
exceeding five years. In addition, the Group also has outstanding
convertible bonds with face value of HK$2,218,542,350 and
liability component as at 31 March 2016 of HK$485,835,000.
The convertible bonds mature in February 2025. Cash, bank
balances and deposits as at 31 March 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$959,312,000. The Group's current ratio was
approximately 1.2 and the Group's total borrowings to equity
ratio was approximately 0.6 as at 31 March 2016.
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FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group spent approximc’re|y
HK$115,477,000 on property, plant and equipment for the
purpose of expanding its business.

In addition, the Group spent approximately
HK$3,505,807,000 for the hotel under development erected
on the Cotai Strip of Macau.

Details of these and other movements in the hotel under
development, property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land lease payments of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 14, 15 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options of the Company and Falloncroft
Investments Limited ("Falloncroft”) during the year are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESER\ COMPANY

The Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2016 comprised the retained profits
of approximately HK$4,108,000 (2015: HK$1,656,000) and
contributed surplus of approximately HK$35,497,000 (2015:
HK$35,497,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
and up to the date of this report are:

Executive directors

Stephen Hung (Joint Chairman)

Peter Lee Coker Jr. (Joint Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom (Deputy Chairman)
Walter Craig Power (Chief Executive Officer)

|ndependen’r non-executive
James Chiu, OBE, JP

Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP
lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny
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In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Ir James Chiu and Mr lain
Ferguson Bruce will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. All retiring directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

Non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term of
approximately three years, and they are subject to retirement by
rotation under the Company’s Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE C >

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
Forfhcoming annual genero| meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable

by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS ORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING ¢ \ND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFQO")), as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
"Model Code”) in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS [N BERRM. BBRGNLES ZIZENEE (1B)

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Name of director

B4R

Stephen Hung

Beneficial owner

Long position

Long position

Number of|
shares of the
Company held

RARB R LA 7 <

Number of underlying shares
(in respect of share options
(unlisted equity derivatives))

of the Company held

12,807,500 (Note 1)

Total number.
of shares and
underlying
shares of the

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding of
the Company

o~ . = - 12,807,500 1.39%
KBS BREEN A (W) ”
Stephen Hung  Interest of spouse  Long position 180,000 (Note 4)
N - - 180,000 0.02%
KB BB e GED ”
Peter Lee Beneficial owner Long position 12,807,500 (Note 1)
v 5,796,600 - 18,604,100 2.02%
Coker Jr BRTEE N A (M) ”
_leu Ko Yuen, Beneficial owner Long position 12,807,500 (Note 1) 19.807 500 1399
om = - = , , DY%
- EREEAN wa (&£
SR
Walter Craig Beneficial owner Long position 12,807,500 (Note 1)
= - - 12,807,500 1.39%
Power BRIE A A (W) ”
J?\mes Chiu Eeneﬁcicd owner Long posi’riirj . 1,176,000 (Noffs 2 & 3) 1,176,000 O13%
=gl EREBAN IG8= (fEE2R23)
b:el Cb(ack Fan Eﬁeneficid owner Long posifiﬁ ) 1,176,000 (Noffs 2 &3) 1,176,000 O13%
ECEe EREBAN e (fyEE2R23)
:_:in Ferguson Beneficial owner Long position 81711 1,176,000 (Notes 2 & 3) 1957 711 0.14%
ruce — . , = ,257, 14%
L BERTEEAN Sy=! (5t R23)
Francis Beneficial owner Long position 1,176,000 (Notes 2 & 3)
= - - 1,176, 13%
Goutenmacher  EEZHEE A A (MfEE2R3) ey 013
Chan Kok
Beneficial owner Long position 816,000 (Note 3)
Chung, Joh = - - 816,000 0.09%
ung, Johmny s s A A CED "
&R
62

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED




DIRECTORS' INTEREST
SHARES, UNDERLYING
(Continued)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)
Notes:

DIRECTORS RFPORT
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T POSITIONS IN
\D DEBENTURES

3,600,000 share options were granted to Mr Stephen
Hung, Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom,

Mr Walter Craig Power on 12 July 2013 under the share
option scheme of the Company ctdopfed on7 Sepfember
2005 (the "2005 Share Option Scheme”) and entitle

each of them to subscribe for shares of the Company upon
exercise at an exercise price of HK$6.80 per share. The
share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 12
July 2013, as to a further one-third upon topping out of

the hotel under development on the Cotai Strip of Macau
and as to the final one-third upon opening of the hotel
under development on the Cotai Strip of Macau. The share
options are exercisable from the dates on which the share
options are vested until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).
9,207,500 share options were granted to Mr Stephen
Hung, Mr Peter Lee Coker Jr., Mr Lau Ko Yuen, Tom, Mr
Walter Craig Power on 18 September 2015 under the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 11 August 2015
(the "2015 Share Option Scheme”) and entitle each of them
to subscribe for shares of the Company upon exercise at an
exercise price of HK$3.00 per share. The share options shall
vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 18 September 2016, as
to a further one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates until 17
September 2019 (both dates inclusive).

360,000 share options were granted to Ir James Chiu,
Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce and Mr
Francis Goutenmacher on 12 July 2013 under the 2005
Share Option Scheme and entitle each of them to subscribe
for shares of the Company upon exercise at an exercise
price of HK$6.80 per share. The share options shall vest in 3
tranches, as to one-third on 12 July 2013, as to a further one-
third upon topping out of the hotel under development on
the Cotai Strip of Macau and as to the final one-third upon
opening of the hotel under development on the Cotai Strip
of Macau. The share options are exercisable from the dates
on which the share options are vested until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusive).
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BTG

DIRECTORS' INTEREST
SHARES, UNDERLYING
(Continued)

Interests in shares and under|ying shares of the Company
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

T POSITIONS IN
\D DEBENTURES

3. 816,000 share options were granted to Ir James Chiu,
Professor Lee Chack Fan, Mr lain Ferguson Bruce, Mr
Francis Goutenmacher and Mr Chan Kok Chung, Johnny on
18 September 2015 under the 2015 Share Option Scheme
and entitle each of them to subscribe for shares of the
Company upon exercise at an exercise price of HK$3.00
per share. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one-third on 18 September 2016, as to a further one-third
on 18 September 2017 and as to the final one-third on 18
September 2018. The share options are exercisable from the
aforesaid vesting dates until 17 September 2019 (both dates
inclusive).

4. 180,000 share options were granted to Ms Deborah
Alejandra Valdez Perez, an advisor of the Company and
the spouse of Mr Stephen Hung, on 15 March 2016 under
the 2015 Share Option Scheme and entitle her to subscribe
for shares of the Company upon exercise at an exercise
price of HK$3.00 per share. The share options shall vest
in 3 tranches, as to one-third on 18 September 2016, as to
a further one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates until 17
September 2019 (both dates inclusive).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or
short positions in the shares, under|ying shares and debentures of
the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register of the
Company required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR AR SERE 22T

DEBENTURES

(i) 2005 Share option scheme i == i'—.‘a AERERESTE
The share option scheme adopted by the Company on RNBR_BEAFNA L HRERZESTE (1=
7 September 2005 (the 2005 Share Option Scheme”) EEEEEEE%HX*E 5tE))), —EEAFERESEE
expired on 7 September 2015. Details of movements in the E-AFNLELtHER. #E_SFS—F=H
share options of the Company granted under the 2005 _+ HIEFEARNBIRE _SERATFERETS
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March BHCBRESSE CFISNT !

2016 are as follows:

Number of shares of the Company to be issued

upon exercise of the share options

N

Granted
Outstanding|  during the

Name of grantee  |Date of grant

= ARITHE

Directors = ==
Stephen Hung 12.7.2013 00,608 50,00 530 S Note 1
K B “E—=%tA+=H B ) ) B ) ) FEH
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 0" 3,600,000 3,600,000  6.80 6.45 Note
eter Lee Coker Jr. o ,600, - - ,600, . - -
“E—=FtA+IH B e
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 12.7.2013 e e o v Note 1
AR “E—=%tBA+=H B B ' ' MR
Walter Craig 12.7.2013 3600000 3600000 680 645 Note 1
Power —E——F#t/A+IH ' ' ' ' ' ' MR
James Chiu 12.7.2013 e s A e Note 1
RS “s—=fFtA+-H ' ' ' ' e
Lee Chack Fan 12.7.2013 360,000 260,000 680 .45 Note 1
ECER “Es—=ftA+-H ' ' ‘ ' e
lain Ferguson
B PR 360,000 360,000  6.80 6.45 Note
ruce = = ' '
“E—=%tA+=H ' ' B R
mBL 5
Francis 12.7.2013 360,000 260,000 660 645 Note 1
Goutenmacher —E——-FtA+TH ' ) ) ' . ' feEh
Sub-total
_ 15,840,000 - - 15,840,000
/NET

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EEGHES

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BARMEUERS 2o ()
DEBENTURES (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share option scheme (Continued) (S EBERESTE (8)

Number of shares of the Company to be issued

upon exercise of the share options

Name of grantee  |Date of grant 4. 5. Exercise period

Employees (In aggregate) (2 = (& 51)

1272013 3,600,000 - - 3600000 680 6.45 Nofe
“E—-%tA+=H B B B 51
13’7'2013_ _ 800,000 - (400,000) 400,000 6.80 6.45 NO*_Q 2
—E-—=FtA+-H lE
1272015 900,000 = = 900,000  6.80 6.45 Nofe 3
“E—=5tHB+=H ' ' MI5E3
1272015 1,160,000 - - 1,160,000 6.80 6.45 Nofe 4
“E—=FtHA+=H T T Mi5E4
1272015 1,150,000 = = 1,150,000 6.80 6.45 Nofe 5
—E—=5tH+=H T T MIEEs
12.7.2013 460,000 - - 460,000  6.80 6.45 Nofe 6
—_F—=5tHB+ZH ' ' Miste
12.7.2014 to
1.7.2017
1272015 138,000 = = 138,000 6.80 6.45 A
“B—=HtA+ZH ' ’ B+ZHE
—E—tF
tA+—H
3092015 847,000 - (159,000) 688,000  6.90 6.89 Note 7
_E—=HhA=+H FfEE7
1510.2013 289,000 = = 289,000 810 7.93 Nofe &
—E—=%+A+EH ' ' HizEs
1872014 299,000 - - 299,000  6.80 598 Nofe 9
—E—-mEEHA+/\H ' ' MisEs
1642015 - 401,000 - 401,000  6.80 987 Nofe 10
—E-RAEMA+AR ' ' MiEE10
Sub-total
g 9,573,000 401,000 (559,000) 9,415,000

66
THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BARMIEESE 2L (B)
DEBENTURES (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share option scheme (Continued) (I —SSHEBERESTE (8)

Number of shares of the Company to be issued

upon exercise of the share options

Exercise]

Name of grantee  |Date of grant ) Exercise period

Other Participants (In aggregate) EL{t1 2 25 (5 51)

1272013 1,270,000 (120,000)  1150,000  6.80 6.45 Nofe 3
—E—=FtA+-d — ) ' T A ’ fiEE3
1272015 450,000 450,000 680 6.45 Nofe 4
—E—=%tA+_"H ' ) ) ' ’ ’ e
1272015 960,000 960,000  6.80 6.45 Nofe
—E--—FtA+H ' ' ’ ) &N
2632014 112,000 112,000 8592 8.27 Note 12
—E-—mE=5-"+/\H ' ) ) ' ‘ ‘ [{§Ezal)

Sub-total

o 9,092,000 - (120,000) 1,972,000

a

27,505,000| 401,000] (679,000) 27,227,000

6/
THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ARRANGEMENTS TO {ARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continue
(i) 2005 Share option sche ed)

Notes:

1.

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third
on 12 July 2013, as to a further one-third upon topping
out of the hotel under development on the Cotai Strip
of Macau and as to the final one-third upon opening

of the hotel under development on the Cotai Strip of
Macau. The share options are exercisable from the
dates on which the share options are vested until 11 July

2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 ’rronches, as to one-third
on 12 July 2014, as to a further one-third on 12 July 2015
and as to the final one-third on 12 July 2016. The share
options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 8 tranches, as to 10%,
15%, 15%, 15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on 31 May 2013,
31 August 2013, 30 September 2013, 1 April 2014, 30
September 2014, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016

and 31 December 2016, respectively, subject to the
fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The share options
are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which
certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but in any event,
exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 7 tranches, as to 15%,
15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31 August 2013,

1 April 2014, 31 December 2014, 31 March 2015,

31 January 2016, 31 March 2016 and 31 December
2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain
vesting conditions. The share options are exercisable

for 18 months from the dates on which certain vesting
conditions are fu|fi||ec|, but in any event, exercisable until
11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 4 tranches, as to 25%,
25%, 25% and 25% on 31 August 2013, 1 April 2014, 31
August 2014 and 31 January 2016, respectively, subject
to fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The share
options are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but in any
event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to 30%,
30% and 40% on 31 May 2013, 31 December 2014
and 31 March 2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment
of certain vesting conditions. The share options are
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on which
certain vesting conditions are fu|fi||ec|, but in any event,
exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PL >HARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued
(i) 2005 Share option schen ed)

Notes: (Continued)

7. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third
on 30 September 2014, as to a further one-third on 30
September 2015 and as to the final one-third on 30
September 2016. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 29 September 2017
(both dates inclusive).

8. The share options shall vest in 3 ’rronches, as to one-
third on 15 October 2014, as to a further one-third on
15 October 2015 and as fo the final one-third on 15
October 2016. The share options are exercisable from
the aforesaid vesting dates until 14 October 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

9. The share options shall vest in 3 ’rronches, as to one-third
on 18 July 2015, as to a further one-third on 18 July 2016
and as to the final one-third on 18 July 2017. The share
options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 17 July 2018 (both dates inclusive).

10. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-third
on 16 April 2016, as to a further one-third on 16 April
2017 and as to the final one-third on 16 April 2018. The
share options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting
dates until 15 April 2019 (both dates inclusive).

1. The share options shall vest in 2 tranches, as to 75%
and 25% on 15 January 2014 and 31 December 2015,
respectively, subject o fulfilment of certain vesting
conditions. The share options are exercisable for
18 months from the dates on which certain vesting
conditions are Fu|fi||eo|, but in any events, exercisable
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

12. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one-
third on 28 March 2015, as to a further one-third on
28 March 2016 and as to the final one-third on 28
March 2017. The share options are exercisable from the
aforesaid vesting dates until 27 March 2018 (both dates

inclusive).
No share options of the Company granted under the 2005
Share Option Scheme were exercised or cancelled during

the year.

Particulars of the 2005 Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 33(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS REPORT
EEGHES

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BARMNIEESE 2L H (B)

DEBENTURES (Continued)

(ii) 2015 Share option scheme
On 11 August 2015, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the "2015 Share Option Scheme”). Details
of movements in the share options of the Company granted
under the 2015 Share Option Scheme during the year ended

(N =—FB—hFRERETE
ARBIMTFE—RF/\B+—BRNERESE (T
FLEBRESE)D. BE_F—R"F=-A=1+—
HIEFEANBREBE _S—LFERIETERH B
RABBE BN

31 March 2016 are as follows:

Name of grantee

Date of grant

Directors and their spouses & =2 7 = fif

Number of shares of the Company to be issued

upon exercise of the share options

=

Exercise price

Exercise period

Stephen Hung 18.9.2015 5907500 5907500 500 008 Note
HOKEF “E—-RFHhA+/\H o o ' ' Fff5
Peter Lee Coker J 16920 9,207,500 9,207,500 3.00 2.98 Note
eter Lee Coker Jr. - f B f . 8 . -
“E-RAFNAB+\H M EE
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 18.9.2015 Note
L o - 9,207,500 9,207,500 3.00 2.28 _
ZR —E—RFNBA+/\H FfEE
Walter Craig P 1692015 9,207,500 9,207,500 3.00 2.98 Note
alter Craig Power o - , | , , . . _
_E-AFHhA+/\H Fff3
James Chiu 18.9.2015 816,000 816,000 500 008 Note
R “E—ARFHhA+/\H ' ' ' 4 i
Lee Chack Fan 18.9.2015 816,000 816,000 500 908 Note
£t “E-RH&NA+TNE ' ' ' ‘ (o8
lain Ferguson Bruce  18.9.2015 660 660 . o Note
mEL “E—RFhA+/\H ' ' ' i FEE
Francis 18.9.2015 816,000 816,000 500 008 Note
Goutenmacher “E-RFAA+\H ) ' ' . i B 5
Chan Kok Chung,
Joh Lol 816,000 816,000 3.00 2.98 Note
ohnny e - 3 3 . . )
B “E—AFAA+N\H b=
Deborah Alejandra
Valdez Perez (spouse 15.3.2016 Note
e - 180,000 180,000 3.00 2.08 _
of Stephen Hung) ZE-ARF=AtAH B EE
CHAXBFEC(R)
Sub-total
= - 41,090,000 41,090,000
INEt

70
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BARMEUERS 28 ()
DEBENTURES (Continued)
(i) 2015 Share option scheme (Continued) (S — A EBRETE (8)

Number of shares of the Company to be issued

upon exercise of the share options

Outstanding at]  Granted during i Exercise price
Name of grantee Date of grant 1.4.2015 3. r shar r Exercise period

Employees (In aggregate)E £ (5 51)

Lol 19,200,000 19,200,000 3.00 298 Nofe
“E-AEAA+AR R R ) i (=3
1532016 875,000 875,000 3.00 2.08 Nofe
—E-RF=-A+AH ' ' ) ' B £
Sub-total
_ - 20,075,000 20,075,000
INET

Other participants (In aggregate) L2 8232 (551

18.9.2015 Note
- 1,290,000 1,290,000 3.00 2.28 _
—E-AFNA+NH PYEE
Sub-total
_ - 1,290,000 1,290,000
NEF
62,455,000 62,455,000
Note:  The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to one- Mt : BRES-IHEB, =0 BRER-S—F
third on 18 September 2016, as to a further one-third on NE+/\BERB, BA=0—<ERER_F—+
18 September 2017 and as to the final one-third on 18 FNE+\BHEE, BRR=0—<BEBRER_-S
September 2018. The share options are exercisable from —\FAE+/\BFEBE. EREEEREERBE
the aforesaid vesting dates until 17 September 2019 (both HEEZZF—AFNA+TCHEE (QEEEMX)
dates inclusive). B 1718,
No share options of the Company granted under the 2015 FH, BEARNDBEBE_SE—hFERESTERH
Share Option Scheme lapsed, were exercised or cancelled EA SN %TT@X*&?%&
during the year.
Particulars of the 2015 Share Option Scheme are set out in CEAFRERESEFREIRNGEEHBEREW
note 33(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements. 33(a)(ii)o
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PL
DEBENTURES (Continued

(iii) Share award scheme

>HARES OR

This scheme, which was adopted by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows the Company to make bonus
payments fo eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way of
the Company's shares acquired by and held through an
independent trustee until fulfilment of specified conditions
before vesting.

During the year, 2,100,000 shares and 1,130,000
shares were awarded to various employees and advisers
respectively under this scheme. A total of 646,000 shares
were vested during the year.

None of the directors of the Company were awarded any of
the Company’s shares under this share award scheme during
the year or as at 31 March 2016.

Particulars of the share award scheme of the Company
are set out in note 34(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

(iv) Share financing plan
This p|cm, which was Odop’red by the Company on 6
September 2006, allows eligible persons (including
emp|oyees, directors, consultants, advisers and agents of
the Group) to borrow funds from the Company or from a
company within the Group to acquire new or old shares
of the Company on a non-recourse basis with the subject
shares |o|ec|geo| to the Company as security subject a|woys
to connected transaction and other relevant provisions under
the Listing Rules.

None of the directors of the Company acquired any of the
Company's shares under this share financing plan during the
year or as at 31 March 2016.

(v) Share option scheme of
On 5 February 2013, prior to the completion of the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Falloncroft
(as described in a circular of the Company dated 5 January
2013), Falloncroft adopted a share option scheme and
granted options that would, for a subscription and capital
contribution, in cash, of up to HK$600,000,000, entitle
Chief Wise Limited ("Chief Wise"), an offiliate of Mr
Stephen Hung (joint chairman and the executive director
of the Company), to subscribe for 600,000,000 number
of the shares of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may assign these
options to the management of Falloncroft as it sees fit.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PL >HARES OR
DEBENTURES (Continued
(v) Share option scheme of Continued)

Holders of the options subscribing for shares of Falloncroft,
on exercise of the options, have the right to require the
Company fo purchase their respective holdings of the shares
of Falloncroft in exchange for an allotment and issue of new
ordinary shares of the Company.

Particulars of the share option scheme of Falloncroft are set
out in note 33(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the direc’rors, chief executives or their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST ETING BUSINESSES

None of the directors of the Company are interested in any
businesses apart from the Group's businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group during the year or as at 31 March 2016.

DIRECTORS MATERIAL
ARRANGEMENTS AND

> IN' TRANSACTIONS,
S OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNE SACTIONS

On 24 April 2013, the Company and ITC Properties Holdings
Group Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Properties Group Limited ("ITC Properties’, together with

its subsidiaries, the “ITC Properties Group”) entered into a
conditional business services agreement (the “ITCP Business
Services Agreement”) for the period from 1 April 2013 to 31
March 2016 with the annual cap amounts of HK$500 million,
HK$1,900 million and HK$2,900 million for the financial
years ended 31 March 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively.

ITC Properties is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
The entering into of the ITCP Business Services Agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of these were set
out in the circular of the Company dated 8 May 2013.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) FHERER S (18)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group entered into BES—RF-A=-ft—HIFERN, A5EEEY
the following transactions with a subsidiary of ITC Properties WEC BB R MEF M ERE B BT
and entities jointly controlled by the ITC Properties Group: TTRS

Name of party Nature of transactions

RHH2E RHMEE

Keen Step Corporation Limited (“Keen Step”) Construction works charged by the Group

BRARAS (B8 FEENRAN TR 82319
Fortress Jet International Limited, Pine Cheer Limited and
?ino Able |nvesfmenfs. Limited Sco||ec’rive|y referred to as Construction works charged by the Group
JVs of the ITC Properties Group”) N o 152,084
A FEBRRAKTRE

FERFEBEEIR/NE. Pine Cheer LimitedzSino Able
Investments Limited (578 MBI EEE  &E P2 ))

234,603

Keen Step and JVs of the ITC Properties Group are associates, BRNEEMEEECAELEAARNNBTEREEE
within the meaning of the Listing Rules, of ITC Properties, a HECHBEBALT (EER LEMHRA) .
substantial shareholder of the Company.
The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's ANBIREBEERBEE A ST A Eh e & EE
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong YEZERIZ5300057 (£¢ ﬂguT) Fﬁjf?}ﬁ%ﬁ%}_ﬁfﬁj?ké*#Lx
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) N8 TR B R B RAE7405: RN E B L™
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews FRA PR R = 3&%’7 Z$§§QEﬁIT¢J BRHREAER
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to CIFERER F. MEBENERE L HiRA]E514A 56k EE
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected HEREEERMY, BTPHEREEE A LAEES
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by BB S 2 AT ER NG
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.
The auditor of the Company has reported his conclusion on ZIS BB EZERERFCERAANEEER
these procedures to the board of directors of the Company. Eo AR 7%%—%4#%&%?%%5%%3iﬁ(%ﬁﬂtﬁ%‘
The independent non-executive directors of the Company BB 5 WHERRIL AT
have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions as set out above have been entered into:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the () R"AERRBEN—REBRDENET;

Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (ii) BRIEBREKNHBEBEIET ;
(ii)) in according to the relevant agreement governing them on (i) LREBRXZ < HRET, HERARNFEEHE,

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the HERNBIRE BB .

shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL RIReE 25 AR E R A 2336157 E 2 B e MPraie £

SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN BEREHMWAT BRI AR

THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO

As at 31 March 2016, so far as is known to the directors and the ATE-REZHA=1+—H, AL EEZNFTEITH
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions ANEPH, REES MBI E3361EFE < AN E]
of the substantial shareholders/other persons in the shares and %%E%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁti%ﬁ%%/ﬂﬂﬁ)\iﬁéﬁﬁaZH%'J‘&
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of MM ERIARINT

the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and (a) FERBRALNB R D LA ER

underlying shares of the Company

Number of]

underlying shares

Long|] Number of] (unlisted equity
position/|  share of the derivatives)

short position/ of the Company

Name of shareholder i held

KA EIAR

FELETHRRA
74 T8 BE
Ontario Teachers’ Beneficial owner Long position
__ - b ,459 , ,459 T7%
Pension Plan Board EREEA S= SHLAYD SHLAYD 3617
Interest of controlled
Sean Hung corporation (Notes 1 & 2) Long position
R N 82,477,999 88,235,294 170,713,293 18.54%
HETE RS AR e
GBI
Interest of controlled
tion (Notes 1 & 2) Long position
S Hung Limited corporanion 82,477,999 88,235294 170,713,293 18.54%
ung mmie NS REEE 2 R He
G
Interest of controlled
tion (Notes 1 & 2) Long position
| Hung Limited e, " 89,477,999 88,035,294 170,713,293 18.54%
une mmie NS Edlb e e e
(b EE122)
Beneficial owner (Note 1) Long position
Chief Wi - - 88,235,294 88,235,294 9.58%
e EREE A (M) e
/5
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL RIFE = N EAE G0 5533615 17 U’a‘% fATEcER < =

SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN =L YN Sy

THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO

(Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and (a) FERBRARNBRMD LERRG 2 #ER ()

underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Number of]
underlying shares Total number
Long| Number of] (unlisted equity]  of shares and| Approximate
position/ share of the derivatives) underlying| percentage of

short position/ Company of the Company shares of the| shareholding of]

Name of shareholder i [ Company held| the Company

Pride Wisdom Group
Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) Long position
. . 82,477,999 - 82,477,999 8.96%
("Pride Wisdom") ER#E A (M) e
("Pride Wisdom.J)
Deutsche Bank
Aktiengesellschaft Beneficial owner Long position
— 10,431, - 165, ,257 18.01%
("Deutsche Bank”) EREE A 53=) 0,431,000 65,806,25 80m
(BT
Person having a security L "
interest in shares ong po;l%g 48,355,000 =
FERMNERIEF AT a
Interest of controlled L "
n ition
corporation °ong po%; 721,000 -
TR HIE B HE
Custodian corporation/ L "
cpproved lending agent R po;%l; 106,299,257 -
SEENE/ RAERRE B
Deutsche Bank Beneficial owner Short oositi
eutsche Ban — ort position
P - =1 o - 10,431,000 10,851,000 1.18%
BEEE FEAEA %
Interest of controlled S,
rt positi
corporation pos? 2 420,000 -
R E 2 % e
/6
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO

(Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Long
position/
short position/

Name of shareholder

Custodian corporation/

Deutsche Bank dlendi . Lending pool
y i approved lending agen
EEERIT i e o] AR

RENT/ RABARE

Long position
=)

Investment manager

Omega Advisors, Inc. 10D

Long position
b

Investment manager

REKHE

Janus Capital
Management LLC

Interest of controlled
Chan Kwok Keung,

Charles ("Dr Chan")
PREDSR (TPRfET))

Long position
e

corporation (Note 3)
RE2EEER R
(F5£3)

Ng Yuen Lan, Macy

Interest of spouse (Note 3) Long position

("MsNg") s A
el o, EBESHD) 5 a
ITC Corporation Interest of controlled

Limited ("ITC") corporation (Note 3) Long position
EHCEERER NIEREECER =Y
naEl (HE#) (M95E3)

ITC Investment Interest of controlled
Holdings Limited
("ITC Investment”)

("ITC Investment )

Long position
L=}

corporation (Note 3)
REREEHERE 2 B
(Mt5E3)

77

RIFE S M E 336157 E
BREHMA T RS A E (1)

() EBRRNARNE RN RARRN 2 @5 (8

Number of]
underlying shares| ~ Total number
Number of| of shares and
share of the

Company

held

(unlisted equity
derivatives) underlying

of the Company shares of the

held

Company held

106,299,257 - 106,299,257 11.54%
133,919,576 31,820,934 165,740,510 18.00%
109,727,800 - 109,727,800 11.92%
93,485,600 - 93,485,600 10.15%
93,485,600 - 93,485,600 10.15%
93,485,600 - 93,485,600 10.15%
93,485,600 - 93,485,600 10.15%

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL BIRE S N EM 33615+ E v S MPTec iR £

SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN B/ HMA TR ke (1)

THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO

(Continued)

(a) Interests of substantial shareholders in the shares and () ETEBRERALNT RN L EHRRG 2R (48)

underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Number of]

underlying shares

Long|l Number of] (unlisted equity
position/|  share of the derivatives)

short position/ Company|  of the Company

Name of shareholder i held

Interest of controlled

ITC Properties corporation (Note 3) Long position
p : S 93,485,600 - 93,485,600 10.15%
Tt E R G AR 2 A R

(Py5E3)

|TC Properties
P Interest of controlled

Management tion (Nofe 3) L i
Group Limited (*ITC ;irﬁ%g F'QJ'% ; i °ong '°°;'j{; 93,485,600 - 93485600 10.15%
Properties - ; =
Management”) (HyEE3)
Advance Tech Limited
("Advance Tech”) Beneficial owner (Note 3) Long position 5
RERRAT  EREEA ) g 740000 1l I
(TRl )

/8
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INTERESTS AND SHORT \S OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHEF IS RECORDED IN
THE REGISTER KEPT UN ON 336 OF THE SFO
(Continued)
(@) Interests of substantial sh in the shares and
underlying shares of the (Continued)
Notes:

1. Chief Wise was jointly owned by S Hung Limited and
| Hung Limited, which were wholly owned by Mr Sean
Hung. S Hung Limited, | Hung Limited and Mr Sean
Hung were deemed to be interested in the 88,235,294
shares to be issued by the Company by way of
exchange for shares in Falloncroft.

2. Pride Wisdom was jointly owned by S Hung Limited
and | Hung Limited, which were wholly owned by Mr
Sean Hung. S Hung Limited and | Hung Limited and
Mr Sean Hung were deemed to be interested in the

shares of the Company held by Pride Wisdom.

3. Advance Tech was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Properties Management which was in turn a Who”y-
owned subsidiary of ITC Properties. The issued shares
of ITC Properties were directly held as to approximately
33.36% and 1.72% by Selective Choice Investments
Limited ("Selective Choice”) and Dr Chan respectively.
Selective Choice is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC
Investment which in turn was Who”y owned by ITC.

Dr Chan held approximately 61.06% interest in issued
shares of ITC. Ms Ng, the spouse of Dr Chan, indirectly
held approximately 24.39% interest in issued shares

of ITC Properties. ITC Properties Management, ITC
Properties, ITC Investment, ITC, Ms Ng and Dr Chan
were deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Advance Tech.

THE 13

RIRE S AR E Bl 2 B EMRSeE
TR HM AL =)

(o) EERR BN A N T LA (0 2 R (FE)
BREE -

1. Chief WiseFHS Hung Limited 2| Hung Limited 2% [F)
WA, MzmERSEERE:T &S, S
Hung Limited. | Hung Limited Nz 71t =18 50 4= 545 48
BARAN BB B R FalloncroftB% 17 TS 85 T 3517
288,235,204 /% A RS R 2o

2. Pride WisdomF3S Hung Limited 52| Hung Limited+£ 5]
B, MezmBRaitERLE2ERESR, S
Hung Limited. | Hung Limited Nz 7t = 18 50 4= 1545 48
#3TAPride WisdomPT 15 2 A2 BB 0 A 18 2o

3. FHEAITC Properties Management” ¢ & [ /& 2
&), MITC Properties Management 2 E1F I 2 &
EMtE Bl B E BT B Selective
Choice Investments Limited ([ Selective Choice |) Nz [&
B9 B EK033.36%L21.72%.  Selective Choice 3
ITC InvestmentZ £ &M BN 5], MITC Investment
RHEELBEHFER LT, MESHEREEHET
R0 #061.06%. hZz 73 E 1+ 2 B, BEER
BEFMED TR M124.39%, ITC Properties
Management. EFEHIZE. 1TC Investment. ZFF.
M+ RRIE T IRR S REER T A LB R
0 RS o
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL RIBEE S NS E33615 7 5 2 EcTac st =
SHAREHOLDERS/OTHER PERSONS RECORDED IN TR HM AT o ke (E)
THE REGISTER KEPT UNDER SECTION 336 OF THE SFO
(Continued)
(b) Interests of other persons in shares and under|ying shares (b) HMA TR AR BN R AER RS < i
of the Company

Approximate percentage
Number of shares of shareholding of

5 —

Name of person i Long position]  of the Company held the Company

HMATEHE | R AsRNEE

Interest of controlled corporation

Ku Yun-sen (Note) Long position
o - R 47,000,000 5.10%
BEE R TR ”
< Reas (fiysh)
Violet Profit Holdings Beneficial owner (Note) Long position .
Limited (*Violet Profit')  H 2555 A (&) A 47,000,000 >1o%
o Investment manager Long position
FIL Limited 10 e 46,377,500 5.04%
Note: Violet Profit was wholly-owned by Ms Ku Yun-sen. Mg5E & Violet ProfitHBER £ T2 & A,
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Company fr EXFEEREN, RS —"F-_B=+—H, 1B
has not been notified of any interests or short position in the 5555 M HRE R E33616 A N Bl BE B 2 B e i PTad #%,
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the ANBIHEENSE EMA THEE AR 2 RM N8R
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 336 B 17 2 FEZR B B o
of the SFO.
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES RIREN] 5T &
Information on the Group's retirement benefit schemes is set out AEBERKENF B EREINNIRE I HeR KT
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. 37
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS BIEEH
No contract concerning the management and administration FARE LN FEEAALND TN ETRAERELDE
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the B BENTHEN.

Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY )N

The Bye-laws of the Company provides that directors of the
Company shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits

of the Company against all actions, costs, chorges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain in the
execution of their duty in their respective offices, provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
illful negligence, illful default, fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors” and officers’
liabilities insurance during the year and as at the date of this
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERN/

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2016 and has

adopted most of the recommended best practices stated therein.

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 32 to 52
of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLI

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date
of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR RE
COMPANY'S LISTED SEC

N OF THE

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations of approximately HK$601,000.

EVENT AFTER THE REP -RIOD

No significant event of the Group occurred after the end of the
reporting periocl.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. Information on the work of the Audit Committee
and its composition are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of the annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016 have been audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who will retire at the forfhcoming annual genero|
meeting. A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Stephen Hung
Joint Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2016
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INDFPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
1R N AN BINFN =

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS LOUIS XIIl HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The
13 Holdings Limited (formerly known as Louis XIIl Holdings
Limited) (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 85 to 216, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsib|e for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Y N AN B =

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In mcking those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a

true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 15 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
e Em K

For the year ended 31 March 2016
E_E—RNFZA=+—HILEFE

2016 2015
INEE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET TET
Revenue N 5 6,811,519 9,323,418
Cost of sales HEMAE (6,613,685) (9,039,706)
Gross profit EH 197,834 283,712
Other income Huas 7 8,617 13,314
Administrative and other expenses 1T & A & E {552 (406,342) (259,617)
Finance costs BB A 8 (8,91 (11,415)
Share of results of associates HAERRE N B EE (1,531) (2,284)
Share of results of joint ventures HIEEEPEEE 1 2,234
(Loss) profit before tax FRAGET (B548) 2 F! (210,332) 25,944
Income tax expense TSR E A 10 (22,484) (33,856)
Loss for the year FEEE il (232,816) (7,912)
(Loss) 'profi’r for the year F‘%Tﬁfﬁfg (Eﬂé) ,ﬁﬂ :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIE 2N (197,361) (29,883)
Non-controlling interests FEIRAG R (35,455) 21,971
(232,816) (7,912)
Loss per share SEE 13
Basic (HK cents) ER (Bh) (21.7) (5.5)
Diluted (HK cents) #5E Bl (21.7) (5.5)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

iroBEmE M E SR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

2016 2015
—EAE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THT THT
Loss for the year FEFIE (232,816) (7,912)
Other comprehensive expense EEEMSEES
for the year:
[tems that may be rec/?ssified T EF BTSN IEE ;
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchonge-diﬁcerence-s arising frf)m RO KR E S S EOEE (6,518) (135)
translation of forelgn operations
: — =
Share of frons|oh.or-1 reserve of an %EMEE?H f E. AN TT )i? (3,580) (274)
associate and joint ventures & (2 TE D R
(10,098) (409)
Total comprehensive expense for the year & % HE 52 #2858 (242,914) (8,321)
Total comprehensi.ve (expense) income (S AE (B9%) s iess
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company Z NN =N (202,519) (30,093)
Non-controlling interests IEIERR e (40,395) 21,772
(242,914) (8,321)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2016
R-E—FRE=B=+—H

NN YR NI

2016 2015
= —=-ns
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FE7T TET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERSEE
Hotel under development ERPRE 14 6,139,370 2,633,563
Property, plant and equipment LY EN - 1N 15 176,745 206,335

. . L. 5 N =
Deposits paid ]cotj acquisition of property, L&%W}%; s AN 5 196,654 38,807
plant and equipment AN

Deposits for investments = 16 110,000 =
Prepaid land lease payments YA T HAE EFIE 17 1,612,303 1,716,894
Goodwill mE 18 61,646 61,646
Other intangible assets HmER EE 19 7,627 7,627
Interests in associates AN P 20 929,867 924,741
Interests in joint ventures HEPERR 21 87,8600 91,467
8,345,012 4,781,080
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
NN YR NI

At 31 March 2016
R-E—FRE=B=+—H

2016 2015
BT
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THET THET
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE

Prepaid land lease payments BN T HHEENIE 17 104,591 104,591

Amounts due from customers for o = AL ——
FEU = R & TEEMRIA 2 851,251 824,031

contract works

Trade and other debtors, deposi’rs and B 5 N HMERERIE,

- o 23 1,752,666 2,657,938
prepayments 5] & MIFBENFUIE
Amounts due from associates e NI 24 18,700 16,046
Amounts due from joint ventures fEW &S EIE 24 321,926 495,397
Amounts due from j.oir\f operofi?ns/ F’?HQ@%%%{?% 04 118,579 119,565
other partners of joint operations EBEMBAFIE
Amounts due from subsidiaries [E W — /%\H_Riﬁz o5 96,564 63,591
of a shareholder W}g UN=] n"\KIE\
Other loans receivable Hh W ERR 26 48,000 91,351
Pledged bank deposits BEEFBITER 27 17,065 46,878
Short term bank deposits ZHARIT N 97 458,388 2,138,346
Bank balances and cash RITiEegR NIRS 27 483,859 1,036,459
4,201,582 7,594,123
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBS ER

At 31 March 2016
R TE—ARNEFE=A=+—H

2016 2015
T
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FE5
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Amounts due to customers for N o
e Z R & IENIE 29 1,169,067 1,650,622
contract works
Trade and other creditors and B 5 N HMmENTRIA
Z 2 1,629,9 2,218,124
accrued expenses N FEET RS 6 629,908 218,
Amounts due to associates AN NCIE/ O] 24 10,970 28,486
Amount due to a joint venture e —E &b ZERIR 24 49 2,868
Amounts due to Jom'f f)percmon?/ B & E¥%§{E = 04 115,948 86,866
other partners of joint operations EBEHMBAFIE
Amounts due to subsidiaries ER—2RE 2
of a shareholder I EENEIE ] 25 441 15,793
_ & _
Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder %gf%fﬁ;—i 25 30,000 37,000
Taxation payable FEHRIE 33,134 52,198
Bank borrowings - due within one year —FERNB BB IBITE 29 459,154 487,610
3,448,671 4,579,567
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFE 752,911 3,014,556
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRSEE 9,097,923 7,795,636

LIABILITIES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
NSRS

At 31 March 2016
R TE—ARNEFE=A=+—H

2016 2015
—s-nE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHR FAE%
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBaE
Bank borrowings - due after one year — FERB|ECIBITER 29 2,561,693 1,098,517
Convertible bonds IR EZS 30 485,835 409,303
3,047,528 1,507,820
6,050,395 6,287,816
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR R R
Share capital & 39 1,841,734 1,841,734
Reserves ] 3,867,648 4,044,173
Eauity attributable fo owners ANEIEE A FE(EREZ 5,709,382 5,885,907
of the Company
Non-controlling interests FEERRE RS
BRI/ NS
Share option reserve of a subsidiary ggg;é%%z 35,953 30,168
VA
Share of net assets of subsidiaries %TEEHE REIZ 305,060 371,741
REE
341,013 401,909
TOTAL EQUITY TR 6,050,395 6,287,816
The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 216 and HNESEEEANB IR BRENTINLE203EE
the statement of financial position of the Company on pages FOOSBE AN FEREEER _E—REB+HA
203 to 205 were approved and authorised for issue by the AEEEeRENSETIS, TH N EESREEEe
Board of Directors on 15 June 2016 and are signed on its behalf BE
by:
Peter Lee Coker Jr. Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
2=y
Joint Chairman (Executive Director) Deputy Chairman (Executive Director)
BEFE (BTEE) BIEE (HITESE)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

aERBEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BHE_ZS—NF-B=+—HILFE

Attributable t

s of the Compony
fE

Share i I Share avard

Translation

Share ccp'\m‘ premium eserve | 00| W reserve reserve

Refained
pmﬁts

Non-controling interests

B B| w3 hE| ERee
HKS 000 HKS 000
At April 2014 mé?: EE 899,193 1,870,137 (153,767) 1188500 (6117) 35,720 866 27483 121291 3,983,236 20,804 349,969 310793 4354029
Exchange diferences arising from ~ B ENEKREE 2 199 135
translotion of foreign operations R E% o “ " " =
Share of tronslafion reserve of ~ HfE—EEHE AT 074)
an associate and joint ventures RERLERER o o s
(Loss) profitfor he year EE (BH) B (29883 (29869) 2971 297 (1912
To::{‘::gzﬂm; EEXWJ ﬁ%@ {Fes) et 20) (9869 (00%) awmam 63
Issue of placing shares BARERR
INoe 326) =2 s e e
Transacfion costs atrbuteble o ZTEE RN
issue of placing shares RABE PR 634 =
Issue of convertible bonds BARRES
(Note 30(i) (FizE300i) i o i
Tronsacton costsffrbutoble  ATERERRALS
o the equity component of fgfﬁ B1IES (23275) (1375) 79
converfible bonds (Note 30ii)) (FiE30(i)
Recogrition of equity-settled ﬁ\fﬁa%ﬁg
share-bosed poyment expenses 5T EILIRAGEN 19,003
ofthe shore option schemeof -~ B AE R Z (131 17008 P '
the Company (Nofe 33(c)) % (33300
Recognition of equity-settled %;u”o%;vilfég@
shore-bosed payment expenses  5TEILIRAEN s 9,344 9,344
ofthe share option scheme RARR AR - ' ’
of Falloncroft (Note 33(b) Fi% (H3E330)
Recognition of equity-settled @?ﬁ;ﬂgﬁ%ﬁgﬁﬂ
share-based payment expenses 5T E| MR ARELL 9
of the share aword scheme R ARRE I3 o e 1o
ofthe Company (Note 34(a)) B3¢ (H15£34(a))
Purchase of shares under the RERMER5E
share award scheme EELD) 142000) i) b
BERARREE
Shares Qes?id und(ebrl ﬂ;e ;T(uv;) 25 ﬁ%{?; 93099 ~ (389%3) 4366 4366
award scheme (Note 34(q =)
Transfer to retained profits upon ML@%Z
lapse of share options granted %H&%%iﬂﬁ@ﬁé (3 3
by the Company FREEA
At 3 March 2015 K;?;_‘E_%H 1841734 2280474 (153767) 1794972 (54,818) 54,692 3978 2973 91369 5885907 30,168 3741 401909 6,287,816
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
R oM EN R

For the yeor ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNF-ZA=T—HLFE

Attrbutable to

ers of the Company
AFElS

Share captal

Shares held
Share

premium

RA
HK§ 000

Share of
et assets of
subsidiaries

Refained
proﬁts

Translation
reserve

Share avard
reserve

EREE

EXClTUHgE dlﬂerences CIYIS\ﬂg lOm ﬁg/ﬁ?‘%fy éFZ
ranslation of foreign operations ERER 051 U b LB =
Share of translafion reserve of BE-BRELNER
an associate and joint ventures RELEERER 6340 630 o0
Loss or the year FEPR (19736)  (97.36) (35459) (5435 (230816)
Tog :mjem e EEAERREE (5,58) (19736)  (202509) (4035 (03%)  (2409)
Recognition of equity-settled EEDE 71‘ \EERE
share-based payment expenses BNRAREN
of the share option scheme Hs%ﬁ#%’ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁ e ore o
of the Company (Note 3(a)) B (HEE3()
Recognition of equity-settled nﬁ S FalloncroftEE 1
share-based payment expenses 7 MRAESEL
of the share option scheme Rl ﬁgﬁgﬁ%ﬁ e e o
of Falloncroft (Note 33(b) B (HEE330)
Recognition of equity-setfled ERANARNER
shcrel)ased puymem expenses ;‘guﬂg$%gu
of the share aword scheme B4 EZN% i - -
of the Company (Note 34(a) 3% (13£34(0))
RERNERHE)
S e r"n”d(i’l":egii"j) BEER 2450 124 1206 1206
award scheme (Note 34(a (t3a)
D\\I/:j:’r:i; paid to non-controling DhLEARE (15,09) (15,09) (15,009)
Re?jlmf:/ oo gi%{; e (153) (1539) (11267) (n267) (12.799)
At31 Morch 2016 ﬁ;ﬁ;i%a 1841734 9,280,474 (155767) 1794972 (52,366) 75428 8316 22115 (1532)  (105992) 5709382 35953 305,060 34,013 605039
The special reserve of the Group includes the following: AEBZERREESOELTIES
(a) a credit amount of HK$1,000,000 representing the difference (o) —ZA%0,000,00078 T2 ERR, BN MR M BN B2 L

between the cost of acquisition of two subsidiaries and the nominal
amount of their share capital at the date on which they were
acquired by Paul Y. Management Contracting Group Limited ("Paul
Y. Management Contracting"), a subsidiary of the Company,
before the reverse acquisition as mentioned in note (b) below; and

a debit amount of HK$154,767,000 representing the reserve
arising from the reverse acquisition of Paul Y. Management
Contracting and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "Paul
Y. Management Contracting Group"), net of refund from ex-
shareholder of Paul Y. Management Contracting for the shortfall
in net asset value of Paul Y. Management Contracting Group
upon completion of the acquisition by the Company from PYI
Corporation Limited, the former ultimate holding company, of
the entire equity interest in, and shareholders' loan to Paul Y.
Management Contracting Group in January 2005.

The other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
redemption amount paid and the carrying amount of the share of net
assets attributable to the non-controlling interest redeemed by Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited ("PYE").

99

Kéﬂ*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ% \7ﬁATSZMTE(b)Fﬁ;I}iWﬁ%HUWK NSilEi)
NEFRERRTREEEERNE (MRERKR TR W
MBZH&ZKE@ZF%E’J#&E X

—E£ 5 854,767,0008 T B, ARWEFRERSR T
EREMBNE (HEMREEE QI&%@J) EEZ iR,
WHIBRRERZR T EFRERARNBANR_SSHAF—AR
B IE) B AT AR N Tf%ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ \FIUNEERERER T
BREELBRAEZNOREER TIEERCREENET
REZRTIREACEEFETNBMI T ZEN,

(b)

FEBAMBREREEZXERGRAR ((RERX ) Bz
RS FEERAEN N M BRI 8.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

fﬁ/ﬁ\/\ ﬁmu@]%

2016 2015
—E—AE “®-nfF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TH7T THET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e FEFE
(Loss) profit before tax Frina (F548) 27 (210,332) 25,944
Adjustments for: FLHAIBE ETAE
Depreciation of property, plant and Ny .
‘ M. B RmITE 39,887 32,403
equipment
Release of prepaid land lease payments  EB#E5FE(S 1+ H1FH EFNIE 575 575
. . &= (N et (BF
(Gain) loss on dlsPoso| of property, H & t@ﬁ\ eI N R 2 (B F) (773) 0,448
plant and equipment B8
Impairment loss recognised in respect 2 5 e S ERESR  RE R B 212
of trade debtors
Interest income #) B Wz (8,617) (13,314)
Finance costs EI=gaWN 8,91 11,415
Share of results of associates BMEND %A 1,531 2,284
Share of results of joint ventures BEEEPEER ) (2,234)
Share-based payment expenses DR AERIRE: 8,900 12,103
. BB L% éﬁé’A 1
Of)erohng cash ﬂows before movements  RETEIEE B FF L IKE XIS (159,919) 73,736
in working capital Vi3
h i t f o s
Changes in amounts due from/ FEW /(B E A % T2 SE) (488112) 146,935
to customers for contract works
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B NMEMEWFIE. 5] MTEN
+) = 992,07 76,662
debtors, deposits and prepayments SUIE RS (80) fes (876,662)
| i N .
(Increase) dec-reose in amounts due FE U B 4 N D) 2R TE (SR 0) S ) (2,654) 15018
from associates
Decreos? ‘(mcreose) in amounts due FE U204 > 2 20 TE ) (B810) 173,401 (1M,915)
from joint ventures
Decrease (increase) in amounts due A A~ "
IS 5 H
fro.m' joint ope‘rcnfions/ofher partners Kﬁf:ifl%/;ft%l; EXRBRMBY 27,149 (31,747)
of joint operations
Decrease in amounts due from FEW — 42 B s = [ B /A S S ) 16,166 535

subsidiaries of a shareholder
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
%ﬁ/\ ﬂiuw%ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

2016 2015
I T

HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FE5T FE

Decrease in trade and other creditors

B 5 N EMENFIE N FEETRI SR (614,744) (74,229)
and accrued expenses
Decrease in amounts due to associates & (T Bi 0 B B R (17,085) (3,022)
(Decreés?) increase in amount due ﬁ%ﬁt*%ﬁ/\ﬁﬂ;\ﬁﬂ 15 (AEJZ/)\) f@ﬂﬂ (2,819) 2,868
to a joint venture
Increase i.n amounts due to joinf. . %TT@%%%/@%%%HT@%ﬁé
operations/other partners of joint = IE R ] 2,926 6,468
by

operations

BN —aREZNBLRINEA

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to

cubsidicries of a shareholder GRb) s (15,363) 12
Cash used in operations ARKEER IR (188,976) (351,673)
Overseas tax paid B BHRIE (41,559) (1,884)
Overseas tax refunded R[ELESNRTE - 18
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ARKERBREFE (230,535) (363,539)

ACTIVITIES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

fﬁ/ﬁ\/\ ﬁmu@]%

2016 2015
. —®—5f
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FE5 FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEK
Additions to hotel under development NBEZEEPAEE (3,192,758) (1,423,427)
Placement of short term bank deposifs F ARG RAIRITER (501,371) (900,000)
Deposits paid for investments RESNTET 2 (110,000) -
Additions to deposits paid for acquisition AN EWIEYIZE . B N E B2
of property, plant and equipment Bl & (&7,701) (38,807)
Advance of other loans receivable o) A e EFNEA RN (55,000) (10,000)
Advances to joint or?e.ro’rions/ ' ﬁ@%%%/é%%%ﬁf@%@ﬁfﬁ%k (47,953) B
other partners of joint operations
Additions to property, plant FEWE. BRI (26,468) (36,501
and equipment
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABBFRITER (7) (30,846)
Release of short term bank deposits BRI ERIRI T ER 1,401,371 -
Repayment of other loans receivable HiEWETENR 99,073 -
Interest received SIS 43,716 9,234
Release of pledged bank deposits B IERRITER 28,529 -
Repayment from joint operations/ BEER/EEED
other partners of joint operations HMHBEMHER 2,797 45,594
Procleeds from di.sposo| of property, LA R T S RS 2R IS 1,966 657
plant and equipment
Payment for purchase of shares under T E R IEENETE (142,000)
the share award scheme TR ) '
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ARREER
ACTIVITIES REPEE (2,426,806) (2,527,896
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the yeor ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNF-ZA=T—HLFE

el

VI ﬁ/)lb@]%%

2016 2015
E—h 4
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
New bank loans raised FERITER 2,963,474 2,091,709
Advances from joint operations/ B %f’&/ EER 47 953 ~
other partners of joint operations H B AEEARN '
Repayment of bank loans ERIBITER (1,527,255) (949,035)
Interest paid BEFE (93,921) (32,288)
Repayment to joint operations/ BREEEN 6 01 797 4
+ , 3,045
other partners of joint operations EBEMBHERN ( ) ( )
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests &1 FEZE IS B LS &% 2 (15,019) -
Redemption of shares of a subsidiary HE o] — R M B R Bl B (12,799) -
Project loan management fee paid EIEEEREERE (9,135) (3,045)
Repayment of loan from a subsidiary EBE—HREs—E
7,000 1,000
of a shareholder =N =E (7, ) ( )
7= Fi s B A =
Proceeds from issue of p|ocing shares éxl;?g St ZFTiS - 1,413,812
AN
7= (e e o /S
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds éxl;gm}&@\ LS - 755,300
BANS =S
Transaction costs attributable to issue BT ERMDIEGIS
) = - (60,934)
of placing shares A
Transaction costs attributable to issue BT ESE _ (27,915)
of convertible bonds A2 5 A '
Repayment to an associate BE—EHELNBERR - (13,125)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING REMEESHZ
s 4,501 130,434
ACTIVITIES e R5E 1,324,50 3,130,43
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN ReREREEEER
N N 238,999
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (/) 18713848 (iBs2ee0)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE =%
RATE CHANGES NEEXRBZZE 282 (3121)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENHREEFEER
=l , 274, 2, ,997
BROUGHT FORWARD ZH 2,274,805 038
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HehHREEEIER
2,274,805
CARRIED FORWARD g 27 942247
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

RE
ARBD—RNBREEMUIIZHRRERA
g, RONEEMERZPERAE (T&EMFT)
L. ARBZEMPSFEREEEF ML ML
RERNBDEN —EIPIEHRE,

The Company is an investment holding company. The P/ jﬁj RIEZERNE, EFEHE N
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates, joint ENEl. aEhE AM%%%Z%%%%F\%? EZL%{
ventures and joint operations are set out in note 43 to the HRARMIEE430

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

REMBIWMERLUETEY, BITINaRREZIEE

Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional B,
currency of the Company.
Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders BERANENRIE—RNF=A - +tHEHABTZRE

of the Company at a special general meeting of the
Company held on 24 March 2016, the name of the
Company was changed from “Louis Xl Holdings Limited”
to "The 13 Holdings Limited” and the Chinese name "+ —
SEBRANE was registered as the Company's secondary
name in place of "B& 7 T =% E B[R/ E]" which was
adopted for identification purpose. The change of name
took effect on 28 March 2016.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first

time, the following amendments to Hong Kong Accounting
Standard ("HKAS") and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the "new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”).

FRlAE DEREEBFIIRESR, ANECR
AR T Louis X Holdings Limited ] 2244 [ The

13 Holdings Limited |, MR &I+ =—SBEFREN

B BESEAARLNECE LM, UABEARIEHEN
MEEHN AP ZB R F=CEERER
8l ABEIN _E—ARNF=A=+/\HEX.

RAEE, AEEENERUTHESSHANE
(TEBGFIAE)) FTEAEEESSHE] ((FE
G L) REBMBREED (EEMBHREE
Bl 25T (18 THE] RIS B E BT HRE%E
a1 o

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: A G ZERFE1957 RERMNETE | EEHE
Employee Contributions (EED)
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to AR S 2] %%Eﬁfﬂﬂii—%gu
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle (&3] TEESFEF—F
H,H\HZEEEKL
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to A RS2 %%Ejfﬂﬂiizﬁau
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle (&&ED) E——FF_E——
H,H\HZEEEEKL

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and position for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

o7

RAFERR LHFT REENEEHHFRSZR
HAEBRAFERBREFEZMBREFE RN
R/ BAR AR BREFE CRBLREEATE,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases*

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'
Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2019, with earlier application permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 "Revenue”, HKAS 11 "Construction
Contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes

effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled

in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,

the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

+ Step1: ldentify the contract(s) with a customer

+ Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract(s)

+ Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

+ Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract(s)

« Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furfhermore, extensive disclosures are

required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material
impact on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Group's consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 "Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless

the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the
lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion
and presents them in the statement of cash flows. A|so,

the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially
measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee

accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

The directors of the Company will assess the impact of
the application of HKFRS 16. For the moment, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 16 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Other than that, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the financial performance
and position and/or the disclosures of the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EE2EETEG
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared wa Eﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁn%% StEM B & B
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In BIREZARE, LI, HmEMBHRREIESE
addifion, the consolidated financial statements include H&&E\?@% JSFFE@/A—J ﬁ iﬁfiﬁﬁu (riﬁﬁﬁﬁlj )
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing EARNEMER) (TR BMER) FTiRE < BRI 2.

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance ("CO").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for the
Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of information in
the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2016 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the financial year ended 31 March 2015 are presented

or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based
on the new requirements. Information previously required to
be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but
not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for

goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 "Share-based
Payment’, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases’, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair vc1|ue, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has righfs, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing

control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or

loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value

of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair vq|ue, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

103

3.

ST N
REEE (18

FEERREMB LR HEEERES

(4%&

FEERBEENB LR HEERERSSH T ES
HAEBARENZSWEBRE ZEHE, TIARY
TERRR 7. AEECBm RIFERER CREE
BEFHE, URRRHNELE 2R R 28,
HRERIFERERCREDTHBRABZRF
BRCEMNERERNER TS, THEREAL
%A Ao

EARBREHNBLARZ2HIER, BENER
ThEESE, Wik (1 BRABRATFEREMNRE R
NPEBEREGNBLAECEE (ZREAE) REE
DR AR RIFEZE R R o 2 S R E B2 Z8RET B PR
BN EM2EWDER A BB AR
B, SRBENAEECERHEXNE LR ER
EENERAR QRBERAE BV BRESERHEE
SR ER D EEBANBRES —HER) .
RAREZEHRE BNINBRBREZEMRE
NP ERRBEB S ER B30 2@ T E - X
KETE ), MEBRARFEIIENTHESR N TE,
3 (WER) RS HERRRBE NS HNEEREZ
RE A

EZ A=

WEEBRBUWIEEAR. REBOHEZZNE
BRFESE, ASEHRWELSRESR AP
BECEE. MELZERRAERRIRRIE
RNE) R PR REPT AT R BE H 2 N P EAR
Mo BRNBEZIRER A —RRNEERNBT
HERR.

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognisecl at their fair vo|ue,
except that:

deferred tax assets or |iabi|iﬁes, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits”
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered info to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);
and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets ocquired and the liabilities assumed. |F, after re-
assessment, the net of the ocquisifion—dofe amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration ’rronsferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a

bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests” proportionate share of the recognised amounts

of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified

in another HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated

is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss

is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill

is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss

recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those

policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures

used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate or joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of

the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately

in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)
The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate

or a joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion
thereof) is classified as held for sale. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures

the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of

a part interest in the associate or joint venture is included

in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on

the same basis as would be required if that associate or
joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised

in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or |iobi|iﬁes, the Group reclassifies the
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related

assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from

the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint venture
that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to

the assets, and ob|igcfions for the |iabi|iﬁes, re|cfing to the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred

jointly;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising

from the joint operation;

its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by

the joint operation; and

its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred

jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular

assets, |iobi|iﬁes, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale

or contribution of ossefs), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’

interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a purchase
of assets), the Group does not recognise its share of the
gains and losses until it resells those assets to a third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, p|cmf and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than hotel under
development are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
|osses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, p|o1n’r and equipment other than hotel under
development less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful |ives, residual values and deprecioﬂon method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Hotel under development

Properties in the course of construction for hotel operation
are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
The relevant costs include acquisition costs, development
expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
costs attributable to such properties. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Deprecioﬁon of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into

operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.

The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Prepaid land lease payments

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interest in land
are accounted for as operating leases and are stated initially
at cost and released over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. The released prepaid land lease payments in respect
of a parcel of land in Macau is capitalised into hotel under
development during the construction period and recognised
as expenses subsequent to the completion of the hotel

property.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible
assets, measured as the difference between the net disposq|
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If

any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be idenﬂfied, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified. In oddiﬁon, infongib|e
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs

of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based
on the proportion that contract revenue for work performed
to date relative to the estimated total contract revenue,
except where this would not be representative of the stage
of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured

reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is
shown as amounts due from customers for contract works.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
|osses, the surp|us is shown as amounts due to customers for
contract works. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position, as a liability, as advance receipts from
customers. Amounts billed for work performed but not

yet paid by the customer are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under trade and other
debtors, deposits and prepayments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for services proviclecl in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the value of work certified during the year.

Development management, project management and
facilities and asset management services income are

recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when

it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time bosis, by reference

to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time

to get ready for their infended use or sale, are added to

the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses or capitalised in contracts in progress or hotel
under development, where appropriate, when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for

the year. Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit before

tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to

the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiories,

and interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expecfed to opp|y in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or subsfqm‘ive|y
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when fhey relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combincﬂon, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (inc|uo|ing trade and other debfors, amounts
due from associates, joint ventures, joint operations/

other partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of a
shoreho|o|er, other loans receivable, p|eo|ged bank cleposifs,
short term bank deposits and bank balances and cash)

are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating

the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discoun’rs)
fhrough the expec’red life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis

for debt instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
thf, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debfors, assets that are assessed not to be impoired
individuo”y are, in oddiﬂon, assessed for impairment

on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment

for a portfolio of debtors could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit periods
ranging from 60 to 90 days and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on debtors.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a debtor is considered
unco||ecﬁb|e, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, ina
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of

the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity

are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity

in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting alll
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
share award schemes by the share award scheme trust,
the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presenfed as “‘shares held for share
award” and deducted from total equity.

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity components
Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
mainly the liability and conversion option components

are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
inferest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The difference

between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible

bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,

representing the conversion option for the holder to convert
the convertible bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
bonds reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds reserve will be released
to the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (inc|uo|ing trade and other credifors,

amounts due to associates, a joint venture, joint operations/
other partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of a
shoreho|o|er, loan from a subsidiqry of a shareholder and
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discoun’rs)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asseft,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and

the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees and advisers
providing similar services as employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of
grant is expensed or capitalised in hotel under development
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss or capitalised in hotel under development such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

Awarded shares granted to employees, consultants and
advisers providing similar services as employees

The fair value of service received, determined by reference
to the fair value of awarded shares granted at the date of
grant, is expensed or capitalised in hotel under development
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share award reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Awarded shares granted to employees, consultants

and advisers providing similar services as employees
(Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of the awarded shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under
development such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share

awa I’CI reserve.

When awarded shares are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share award reserve and the amount of the
relevant treasury shares (presented under the shares held for
share award scheme) will be transferred to retained profits
or capitalised in hotel under development.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year:

(a) Construction contracts
The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of a
construction contract according to the management’s
estimation of the total outcome of the project as well
as the percentage of completion of construction works.
Notwithstanding that management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for
the construction contract as the contract progresses,
the actual outcome of the contract in terms of its total
revenue and costs may be higher or lower than the
estimates and this will affect the revenue and profit

recognised.

(b) Trade debtors
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expecfed, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2016, the
carrying amount of trade debtors is HK$596,062,000
(2015: HK$828,837,000).

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 March 2016, a deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of tax losses amounted to
HK$77,502,000 (2015: HK$66,717,000) in the

Group's consolidated statement of financial position. No

—
N
~

deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the

remaining unused tax losses of HK$670,953,000 (2015:

HK$526,847,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams (see note 31). In cases where future profits
are expected to be generated, a deferred tax asset on
the remaining unused tax losses may be recognised in
the consolidated financial statements in the year which

estimation changes.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment, hotel under

development and prepaid land lease payments

The Group assesses regularly whether property, plant
and equipment, hotel under development and prepaid
land lease payments have any indication of impairment
in accordance with its accounting policy. The Group
determines the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment, hotel under development and
prepaid land lease payments based on the estimation
of the economic benefits generated from these assets.
Management is confident that the carrying amount of
these items will be recovered in full based on the results
of assessment of the estimates of anticipated cash

flow generated by these assets. The situation will be
closely monitored by the Group, and adjustments for
impairment will be made in future periods in which there
is an indication of such adjustments are appropriate. As
at 31 March 2016, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment, hotel under development and
prepaid land lease payments are HK$176,745,000
(2015: HK$206,335,000), HK$6,139,370,000 (2015:
HK$2,633,563,000) and HK$1,716,894,000 (2015:
HK$1,821,485,000) respectively.

Share-based payment expenses

The recognition of share-based payment expenses
requires the estimation of the number of options and
awards that will ultimately vest at the end of each
reporting period. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period is recognised in
profit or loss or capitalised in hotel under development

whenever a revision arises.

Goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires

an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating units and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expecfed, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2016, the
carrying amount of goodwill is HK$61,646,000 (2015:
HK$61,646,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 18.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

5. REVENUE

Revenue of the Group represents the total value of contract
work certified, the gross proceeds received and receivable
from development management and project management
services in connection with contract work and income from

facilities and asset management services during the year

C]I’]d is qn0|ysec| as ](O”OWS:

5 WA
AEBWAEEARKRECENLIERE, BES
KTz MR EEIE RIS B B IEARTS MU EUA FEUL
B RRIBH8%E, U RB#RENEETIERTE W
&=, o

2016 2015

TE—RE “E—RF

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

FET FETT

Revenue from construction contracts BERSHWA 6,795,908 9,292,639
Revenue from development management, BEREE BEEEL

project management and facilities and asset LRk EESER 15,611 30,779

management services A
6,811,519 9,323,418

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers,
is organised info divisions for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment focusing on the
types of services provided. Specifically, the Group's reportable
and operating segments under HKFRS 8 "Operating
Segments” are as follows:
Management - building construction and
contracting civil engineering
Property development -  development management,
management project management and
facilities and asset
management services
Property investment - investment in properties
through investment in a
joint venture
Hotel development - hotel operation with ancillary

facilities

The Group had invested in an operating segment of the
hotel operation in Macau with provision of ancillary facilities
which are under development. The remaining segments are
held under a major subsidiary of the Group, PYE.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3.

6. NEEH]
MARNTRITES (ZBEERRE) 2HRABFEER
NERKRRFEZER, ERLFARHRFERE
REDE. BRMES, 2EBERBEEMHREE
R ZBe5E (AE = 7 A8 2 P3RS NS E D BRI T

AEEE - BFEERIAIRE

V=B REE BEEE. REEEMUNERBEN
BEEBERY

ES - RERYZ BERER -G
B

B R - BEEE, ERBEER

AEERTRPVESGEZLE N, WRHEE
B, SRRENERRD. HBHHEAERR
TEENBADRERERE,

RS RS B R B RN AR E
BEHE—H.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned or loss
incurred, by each reportable and operating segment without
allocation of corporate income, central administrative costs
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision makers for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

The assets of the Group are allocated to reportable and
operating segments except for pledged bank deposits, short
term bank deposifs, bank balances and cash and other
unallocated assets.

The liabilities of the Group are allocated to reportable and
operating segments except for certain bank borrowings and
other unallocated liabilities.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates
or at terms determined and agreed by both parties, where

no market price was available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BHE_ZS—NF-B=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and

results by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Management
contracting

3 |

HK$ 000

3 JC

Property
development

SR HRERMTEE

6. DEER (1)

PRS- L ONNE S b CIE =N S —bar=( sy

jfﬁ-o

BE_FE—NFZA=T—HLFE

Property
investment

PYE total
e

Hotel

development | Segment total

HK$'000
TR

Eliminations | Consolidated
HK$ 000
BT

SEGMENTREVENUE BT A

External sales HAHE 6,795,908 15,61 6811519 6,811,519 6,811,519
Inter-segment sales PRBRE 347,794 800 3,146,504 348504 (5148,504)

Segment revenue - ON 9,943,639 16,411 9,960,043 9,960,043 (3,148,504) 6,811,519
Segment profi (oss) AT (BE) 157,959 1,021 (483) 158497 (100,000) 56,497 (130,344) (73,647)
Corporate income g 8,617
Central administrative costs TR/ TEI LA (136,191)
Finance cosfs BEMA (691)
Loss before tax G (210,332)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BHE_ZS—NF-B=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. NEREHR} (1)
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and UTAREREENEBBRIRE MKEDTZ D
liabilities by reportable and operating segments. Mo
At 31 March 2016 R=ZF—R"E=ZB=+—H

Property
Management | development Property Hotel
confracting | - management investment PYEtotal | development Eliminations | ~ Consolidated

B |£EEEE BE ; 4 e

HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000
T 7 AR AT TER TEn

ASSETS BE

Segment assets NHEE 3,619,005 91,097 84900 3795330 8508629 19233961 (746,068) 11487693
Pledged bank deposits ERERIED 17,065
Short term bank deposits 8235177731 458,388
Bankblancesand cash ~ $R/T BB RS 483,859
Other unallocated assets AN EE 99,589
Consolidated ssets GaEE 10,546,594
LIABILITIES =1

Segment iabilfies PHaRE 3,010,061 4960 5 3015036 3460004 6477040 (53523) 5941809
Bank borrowings BES 459,154
Other unallocated liobilties St AN EEE 95,236
Consolidated liabilities SoBE 6,496,199
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
E_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Confinued) 6. PERER (18

The following is an analysis of the Group's other information UTAREBHMERIR IS MK E DB Do
by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BEE—RNEFE=B=1+—HIEE

Property
Management |  development Property Hotel

contracting | management investment PYE total | development |  Unallocated | - Consolidated

REEE |MXREEE RE |RE} A& e
HK$'000 | HK$'000 |  HK$000 HK$'000 | HK$'000
TER TER TER BT BT TER TER

OTHER INFORMATION ~ Eftt&#!

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit (loss) or segment assets:
SENHEN (BF) AN HEEFAR 2 E !
Additions to hotel under

NERETERE - - - - 3,505,807 - 3,505,807
development
Additions t ty, plont w .
HonsTo property, Pt ke i m 10817 ] ] 10817 10677 4736 97,630

and equipment

Additions to deposits paid for FERBYL BRET

acquisition of Proper’ry, Dy O fTa = = 87,847 = 87,847
plant and equipment
Additions t its f . -
d.d‘ ions fo deposits for RELETL i i i i 10,000 i 10,000
investments
- Ty
2rsimich propery %, BiReE 29,616 10 ; 09,608 : 10,259 39,667
plant and equipment B
i i *® VEL
Gainon dlsposo|lof property, PENE. BRKRERE 660 ) . 660 ) m 7
p|c1nf and equipment P2l
Pre-openi f . an
POPINGEREEI g AT : : : - 100,000 - 100000
hotel under deve|opmen’r
Release of prepaid land lease .
BRACIHEENE 575 - - 575 - - 575
payments
Interests i Hofies el BNSTHASA
n lerles s in associates an WENTRAERE 98,106 (2,339) 84,900 110,667 - - 110,667
joint ventures g
Share of results of associates  E{EEHE N E] N B E
591 503 436 1,530 - - 1,530
and joint ventures hEXE ) 1503 ) (1530) (1530)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision makers but not included in the measure of segment profit (foss):
EHRHFIEEEARE T OR KBS EF BR) 28!
‘ (NS T A
Share of revenue of associates 1 &2 3] 846,979 ) 6165 853 144 ) ) 853 144

and joint ventures PEBRA
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BHE_ZS—NF-B=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER (1)
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and T AAREBWRAREREDREREEDE D
results by reportable and operating segments. o
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_E—HAFE=B=+—HIEE

Property
Management | development Property Hotel
contracting investment PYEtotal | development | Segmenttotal |  Eliminations | ~ Consolidated

S |EREEE s |RERE 4 fia

HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T a7 Yyl s’#;‘ ) :Fj‘rf:E , % T

SEGMENTREVENUE ~ 2EIKA

External sales HNHE 9,299,639 30,779 - 9,303,418 - 9,393,416 - 9,303,416
Inter-segment sales NP HHE 1,371,655 500 - 1,372,155 - 1,372,155 (1,372,155)

Segment revenue DHBBA 10,664,294 31979 < 10,695,573 - 10,695573 (1372055 9323416
Segment profi PEAEH 195,376 969 1406 197,751 - 197,751 (49,168) 155,583
Corporate income PRI 13,314
Central administrative costs - F SR/ TEIALAS (131,538)
Finance costs RENK (415
Profit before fax FRiRanaf 95,944

129

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNEYE e N

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BHE_ZS—NF-B=+—HILFE

6. DEER (1)
UTHAEREENEBRAIRERICED T2
#ro

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

At 31 March 2015 RZE—RAF=H=+—H

Property

Management
contracting

il b

development

management
a1

Property
investment

HK$ 000

Hotel

development

Segment fotal

PYE total
B
HK$ 000

Eliminations |  Consolidated
4 i)

HK$ 000

HK$ 000

' JC

T

T T

ASSETS BE

Segment assets NHEE 451837 19,389 89497 4601957 479752 9,427,009 (420,812) 9,006,197
Pledged bank deposits ERERIED 46,878
Short term bank deposits 52 43R (77251 9,138,346
Bankbalancesand cash ~ SR/T BB RS 1,036,459
Other uncllocated ossets ~ EHFDELEE 147303
Consolidated ssets GaEE 19,375,003
LIABILITIES afE

Segment libiltes PBEE 4149739 4,847 4] 4148033 1765357 5913370 (a4207) 541953
Bank borrowings B 487,610
Other unallocated licbilities EA D EEE 198,524
Consolidated liabilities ShBE 6,087,387

130

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN Gl e
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E_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. NEREHR} (1)
The following is an analysis of the Group's other information UTAREBHMERIR IS MK E DB Do

by reportable and operating segments.

For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_E—HAFE=B=1+—HIEE

Property

Management |  development Property Hotel

contracting | management investment PYE total | development |  Unallocated | - Consolidated

REEE |MXREEE RE |RE} A& e
HK$'000 | HK$'000 |  HK$000 HK$'000 | HK$'000
TER TER TER BT BT TER TER

OTHER INFORMATION ~ Eftt&#!

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or segment assets:

SIEST AN S BEEF AR 2E !
Additions to hotel under

NERETERE - - - - 1,700,925 - 1,700,925
development
Additions to property, plant w N

L EN e 16,166 - - 16,166 1,741 7441 35348

and equipment

Additions to deposits paid for FERBYL BRET

acquisition of Proper’ry, Dy O fTa = 38,807 = 38,807
plant and equipment
- s =
Depreciation of ;l)roperfy, %%; BkRE 28,818 0 i 08,809 ) 3574 30403
plant and equipment ik
L sposal of = E N G
0ss on disposa .0 property, %% NG (0.375) : _ (9,375) o (73) (2,448)
plant and equipment EE
Release of prepaid lond « =
BRI THAENE 575 - - 575 - - 575
lease payments
s ey d S YA B UPAN AN
n .erles s in associates an HENERAERE 98,643 (1924) 89,489 116,208 - = 116,208
joint ventures gy
Share of results of associates  HEHELNE R G E
441 1,927 1,436 50 - - 50
and joint ventures bExE 1927 50 <0
Amounts regularly provided to the chief executive decision makers but not included in the measure of segment profit:
AT I BEERRE BT AR E e 2%
. g LK/ \ ALK
Shore of e of sorioes FEHELAREE 1389,706 109 6957 139607 - - 139607

and joint ventures WA
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEX ()
The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, AEBECEBRETEURES. B FEARHEN
Macau, the People’s Republic of China ("The PRC") (THRER) (BB REFIERIN) DU HT N3 K B 2k 7
(excluding Hong Kong and Macau), and Singapore and EEN
Malaysia.

UT A AERBWARIEHERTIENEMARE <P
EMRAIEZ D

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue based
on geographical location where construction works or other

services are provided:

2016 2015

- ACE “E—AF

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

FET TET

Hong Kong &5 3,993,825 2,926,531
Macau JEPT 0,423,497 5,743,744
The PRC 2] 275,896 579,741
Singapore and Malaysia Finigs N 2k PR En 118,371 80,402
6,811,519 9,323,418

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-

current assets based on the geographical location of the Mr:

assets:

UFR3EnsEEREEREEMEEUBZ D

2015
HK$ 000
TET
Hong Kong 575 296,311 133,198
Macau g 8,003,384 4,530,369
The PRC =) 112,288 114,992
Singapore and Malaysia s K B Ak Fa e 3,029 2,521
8,345,012 4,781,080
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DNEREF} (1)
Revenue from customers contributing more than 10% of the I A BBMEAERBW A ZIEI0%NELT !

total revenue of the Group are as follows:

2016 2015
ZE—REF —E—AF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FiE FiE
Customer A ZEA 1,299,724 3,625,477
Customer B =FB 1,115,263 2,110,767
Customer C (Note) ZRC (M) 981,342 =
Customer D (Note) ZFPD (M5 940,911 -
Customer E (Note) ZPE (Mi5H) 782,230 =
Note: These customers contributed less than 10% of total izt . ZERA WA SREAERHE _SE—F
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March F=B=+—HLIEEELK A DRI0%,
2015.
All these customers are under the management contracting FERRYEARESIENEL,
segment.
7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hfbias
2016 2015
B
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
TB7T TETT
Bank interest income RITHA B F 10,427 13,903
Interest income on amount due from a subsidiary FEW— % B 58— B /&8 1846 9139
of a shareholder NEIFIEC F] B R ' '
Interest income on other loans receivable HAERERF] S W 5,090 8,674
Others EHi 1 -
17,364 24,709
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel under B BRI ETAE
\ . 747 11,39
development EAXR7EER (8 ) (1,395)
8,617 13,314
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8. FINANCE COSTS

2016 2015
= —=-—n%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Fi FE%
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMETZH B 92,899 33,947
Effective interest on convertible bonds PR ES 2 BRI S 76,532 48,669
169,431 81,916
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts in =N %éfﬁ@él\f/‘j T3z (16,229) (13,014)
progress BAR a5
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel under DA %éﬁ?é%@ﬂiﬁfﬁ (144,298) (57.487)
development BAR 8
8,91 11,415

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on funds

RAEFEANBERZEEMARBEED/EREHN
RERTBIEEALZER,

borrowed specifically for construction contracts and hotel

under development.
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9. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND FIVE 9. EFERFBTHRAERTUESFTMASME
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executives” emoluments (o) EERFETHRAEMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine ENHEMNIG (CE—RF L% EE (BE
(2015: nine) directors which include the Chief Executive TBHEE) S AT !

Officer are as follows:

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other | Discretionary scheme |  Share-based
Fees benefits bonus contriputions payment
,‘s" 3 A
Name of director and chief executive HK$'000 HK$ 00 i HK$ 00 ] HK$' 000
e TET TEL B TERT >, TEL
2016
“EAE
Stephen Hung
N 33] - - - 8,970 9,301
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 33] 6,981 = 336 3,185 10,833
Lou Ko Yuen, Tom 551 6,981 3,000 18 3185 13735
EIE)S
Walter Craig Power 33 8,268 - 448 3,185 19,239
James Chiu
" 1,301 - - - 298 1599
HEHE
Lee Chack Fan
o 1,107 - - - 298 1,405
ESCER
lain Ferguson Bruce
1186 - - - 298 1,484
hEL
Francis Goutenmacher 1279 = = = 298 1577
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Note i)
B - 4920 - - - 157 577
BED (&)
6,837 29,230 3,000 802 19,874 59,743
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9. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND FIVE 9. EBENFETHABRAMESHMNASME (18)
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executives” emoluments (o) EBERFETHAEME (&)
(Continued)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other | Discretionary scheme |  Share-based
benefits payment
Name of director and chief executive HK$ 000 i HK$ 000
BENEEN i TET BT TET
2015
=3-5%
Stephen Hung
. 308 - - - 11,931 12,239
Peter Lee Coker Jr. 308 6,659 = 294 9,587 9,848
Lou Ko Yuen Tom 514 6,659 3,000 18 0,587 12,778
AR
Walter Craig Power 308 7,839 = 8l 9,587 11,545
James Chiu
n 1,212 - - - 259 1,471
HEHES
Lee Chack Fan
- 1,031 = - = 259 1290
=3P
|0|rlﬁFerguson Bruce 1105 ] ] ] 950 1364
B+
Francis Goutenmacher 1190 = = = 259 1,449
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny (Note i)
n ok 144 - ; ; - 144
BER ()
6,120 21157 3,000 1,123 20,728 52,128
Note: B 5
(i) Appointed on 21 November 2014 () RZE—NE+—AZ+—HEEZE
136

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNEYE e N
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9. DIRECTORS  AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors” and chief executives’ emoluments

~

(Continued)

Mr Walter Craig Power is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and his emoluments disclosed
above included those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive Officer for both years.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to
the Group's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. Neither the directors
nor the chief executive waived any emoluments for both

years.

Employees” emoluments

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for
the year included three (2015: four) directors whose
emoluments are disclosed above in note 9(a). The

aggregate emoluments of the remaining two (2015:

one) highest paid individuals are as follows:

okt

ERFETHAEBRAURSHFMNAESME (B

a) EERFTETHASMSE (B

Walter Craig Powerft AE TN 2 AN N B) 2 1T BUHERL,
B SR 88 2 Frb o 45 B M 18 E Rt AT
AR E AT IR (AR 75 2 Bl 2o

REFEREHBRNENERFRE, AREHET
TEAARBESENETEENBEEEEAR
BEBBERF. BHNER.

MERA2ZEAERICERE. BAKRRRAIL
WH SR HFMET. SMEESHEETHA
EMEZMIEF E 2 T <.

(b) BEM <

FEENAFERAUERSTFMASIE=0ESF
(CFE—1F OREF), HMWSFHBHENLX
fi5E9(a)e BRTMB (CF—RF  —%) RS
A S BB E 50T -

2016 2015

—E—RAF

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

FET FETT

Salaries and other benefits BN E SR 14,568 7,665

Discretionary bonus B EAEAL 3,333 8,222

Retirement benefit scheme contributions BB G 2R 36 18
LU A5 NES

Share-based payment expenses B B BRI 3,393 436

FsZ
21,330 16,341
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9. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES  AND FIVE 9. BERFIBETHRAEBRAUSSHFMAEMSE ()
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) Employees” emoluments (Continued) (b) RERE (18)
The emoluments were within the following bands: WEMSFTBEmENT

Number of employee

10,000,008 75 &
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,500,000 7= 1

11,000,00175 755
HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 Y v 1
$11,000,001 fo HK$11,500, 11,500,000 7T

16,000,001 0%
HK$16,000,001 to HK$16,500,000 16,500,005 5 , 1

REMEERN, AEEWEADUESHMAS (2
BESEKEETEAR) IMMEUESINARER
WRMASER R 2 2/, WIFHBERmE,

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals, including directors and
chief executive, as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. PRAISIRE A
2016 2015
“E—RF =R
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TATT THET
Hong Kong &5
Overprovision in prior years W FEBEEER (146) -
Macau and other jurisdictions PR H B AR
Current tax AEARIA 22,63 33,951
Overprovision in prior years 1B F E AR U] (95)
292,630 33,856
29,484 33,856

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made R MG N 2 FESR T AR O AR iR 75 518 P %5
in the consolidated financial statements as the assessable SRR, B ERG S BRERAEHEEFIER

profits were wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward (5o
for both years.
138

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN Gl e

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Taxation arising in Macau and other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the (loss) profit before tax per the consolidated statement of

10. FASIREA (f8)

FERFIREMBN AR R EE RBTHRBARRE B A
REBTZRER.

AEECAERERERRSBERMAINZERRA (8
1B) BRHERNT

profit or loss as follows:

2016 2015
S VAN= =R
HK$ 000 HK$'000
TATT TET
(Loss) profit before tax FRHRET (B518) B (210,332) 25,944
A AR I16.5%
Tax at the domestic tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) TE—FRF 165%) (34,705) 4,280
B CRE
Tax effect of share of results of associates and HEBRE N NRE )ﬁ 959 8
joint ventures rEEECRBE
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose E%zgg;;g A 29,341 4,106
==
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose T_Egggﬂ?\/ f*ﬁ (2,528) (146)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not KRR ERE 16.673 5 06]
recognised BoMBEEE ' '
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible temporary ENASTEI AR MESS B HIR ©) ©)
differences previously not recognised B EBCRMBEE
_/L;\ IE
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised EEEQ@*R Laeraits 29,688 24,767
=
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously not &) A ST al AR D/LAZ 18
recognised BB ZE (6.077) (798)
=H I=1b; oo =]
Tax effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions ~ ~ \;Ej_gé%%;;é; B (3,007) (3,321)
Overprovision in prior years BT FE B (147) (95)
Income tax expense for the year FEIHERER 29,484 33,856

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 31.

ESEAR T8 < BB E A AT 5E3 10
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1. LOSS FOR THE YEAR . FEBE
2016 2015
—EAnE e
HK$ 000 HK$'000
THT THET
Loss for the year has been arrived FEEBRDINR
at after charging (crediting): Gt A) :
Auditor’s remuneration B M & 4,554 4,537
=0 A, =
Contract costs recognised as expense EE;_E? =21 6,599,747 9,013,632
iati A=
Deprecmh?n of property, plant | %;ﬁ%ﬁ&& e fm (@) 39,887 39,403
and equipment e
) . = Sy
(Gain) loss on clls.poso| of property, ﬁ;ﬁ?%x T R B (773) 0,448
plant and equipment Rime (BF)) B8
Impairment loss recognised in respect B 5 EWFIBMER 9119
of trade debtors FEER ) '
Legal and professional fees EEMEXER 34,237 6,795
) . % 3 2
Pre-opening expenses for hotel BREPBERER 100,000 ~
under development k2
Net exchange (gain) loss R EE (BA) 358 (422) 2,170
Operating lease rentals KEHEHRS (b) 27,748 27,742
SRTAN T HEE
Release of prepaid land lease payments %f BN LHHEE (c) 575 575
IR
Staff costs STITHA (d) 175,170 172,611
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1. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
Notes:

(a)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:

N E£EEE (8

Py &L -

ORYENE 1A E 4

2016

=i

HK$ 000
5T

2015
“E-FR4F
HK$ 000

TEx

CITE -
Owned assets BHEEE 55,863 49,558
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts B BIEESH
i P P TRREAY (4,441) (5,400)
in progress £4m
] s 13 S
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel A %R;E%JETLEE (11535) (11755)
under development = v
39,887 32,403
(b) Operating lease rentals: b) REHERS
Premises YIES 67,517 50,406
Plant and machinery TR R 1% 2 104,063 112,313
171,580 162,719
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts B BIEESH
A P P TREARY (107,679) (113,509)
in progress o4
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel B BB AE
under development v (36,153) (21,468)
27,748 27,742
~ = A\ i 45?
(c) Release of prepaid land lease payments: © %iﬁ%ﬁti Ll
F;Ig
BITRN T HAAE
Release of prepaid land lease payments ﬁf},(l._ RSl 104,591 104,591
TR
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel B BT R AAIE
under development BEARZEFE (104,016) (104,016)
575 575
141

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

1. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

SR HRERMTEE

N E£EEE (8

fY5E - (H8)

2016 2015
- ACE “E1F
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FETT FET
(d) Staff costs: (d) BIHA :
Directors’ emoluments (Note 9) 2= (HEE9) 59,743 592,128
Other staff costs: HMEB TAA :
Salaries, discretionary bonus and other benefits %ﬂl%miéﬁm%l& 934,450 849,627
. ; . IRORER] BT B R
Retirement benefit scheme contributions <f = i
(2015: net of forfeited contributions of _,:1 . ) 97,573 292,901
HK$94,000) NErERK
' H7194,000757T)
MU rERE B IR
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses AR 5,996 6,444
FAsZ
1,020,762 924,100
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of contracts 8 | BT E G LIZ
in progress v (535.719) (562.979)
Less: Amount capitalised in respect of hotel B BB AAE
\ - 11,87 188,51
under development BEAR 728 () le3:310)
175170 172,611
12. DISTRIBUTIONS 12. 9%

No dividend was recognised as distributions to owners of the

Company during both years.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend

for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

REMBEFE, BERAEANTEE ADKES.

BEfEERNEHE S NE=B=1+—HILEE
BEvRE(CE—AE  H),

142
THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNEYE e N

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE
13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Loss

13. SREE
ARNBVHEB NELZERERANESHEIIEET
FIBIRETE

B8

2016 2015

BT

“E—A%F
HK$ 000
TEx

HK$ 000
5T

Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted loss STEEREANES
per share: 3= Yo E = I

Loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company B

RREHEBENEBILFE

(197,361) (29,883)

Number of shares

R 8 E

Number
of shares

B8 E

Number

OF shores

RN EE

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for STEEREANES
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share E548 2 @ e e 908,245,076 548,042,386
(Note) FHE (M5

Note:  The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted
in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for
both years have been arrived at after deducting the shares
held in trust for the Company by an independent trustee.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2016 and 2015 does not assume the exercises

of convertible bonds and the unvested shares awarded
outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015
since assumed such exercises would result in a decrease in
loss per share. In addition, the computation of diluted loss
per share for year ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 does not
assume the exercises of exchange right granted to option
holders under a subsidiary’s share option scheme and the
Company's share options outstanding during the year
because the adjusted exercise prices of those exchange rights
and options were higher than the average market price of
the shares during the year.
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e . AU EZMEFESREARBEBRCZER
TN R—R B R A UG AN
RRBFAEZRNDBERFH,

HRBRERBEE_ S "ER_F-—AF=A=1—
BIEFERHARTEAIRRES RERLERTS
ZBOETERERSREBENY, SEHEHET
E—RNER_E-—AF=-A=+—HLEFECER
HEPRTERKERTE. LN, ARFARENR
T R —ENB LR BRI TRERE
RBEAZBRBRERANNFBREZICHETEES
RERRDFIHE, BEERE_FT—FRT
E-LF=ZR=t—HLFECSRETHETE
REXBRETT 1,

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN Gl e

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

14. HOTEL UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The movement of the hotel under development for the year
ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 is set out below:

14. BERAEE
HE E—EN_E—AF=-A=1+—HILEE
éé‘/ﬁﬁpxﬁfzﬂ@b%ﬁ'm?:

HK$ 000
57T

COST AR A
At 1 April 2014 A E—NFEMEBE—H 939,638
Additions NE 1,700,925
At 31 March 2015 RIBE—RAE=B=+—H 2,633,563
Additions B 3,505,807
At 31 March 2016 R _E—RF=A=+—H 6,139,370

The hotel under development is erected on a piece of
land on the Cotai Strip of Macau which is held under a
medium-term lease. The amounts capitalised in the hotel
under development mainly represent the release of prepaid
land lease payments, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, effective interest of convertible bonds and
bank borrowings, share-based payment expenses and
share award expenses, directors and key management’s
emo|umenfs, other staff costs, direct construction costs as
well as other professional fees including design fee and
consultancy fees. The capitalised share-based payments,
share award expenses, directors and key management’s
emoluments are based on the roles and functions of each
individuals and their relevant time spent in relation to the

hotel under development project during the year.

HERPAEENRPIR S COERN — B F,
WLAPHHEER B, ERTBERTER SR
FTERESHROIMAENIR. YWE. BHMARRE
ZITE. AMRESNMETEEERANE. LURD
%E%Zﬁﬂ%§&%F%%%§ EEREERE
BEAEME. HETI A, BERABRIRENEN
HWEXER (GERABANEFER) . 2R
ERZUBRNBER MR RIVERFAR. 25
RETEEBEABZMENZREENATZACKE
BE N FF PO A 38 R FRE IS 2 1 R R 81 7 R
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BEZ

fre

—NE=ZRA=1T—HLFE

RIS M 5E

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS 15. Wt MMM ERE B, EWR R R BT

PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT

AND EQUIPMENT
(a) Property, plant and equipment

HE=

(CRVE N 1 EL

Plant, Furniture,
machinery fixtures and
Leasehold and Motor office
improvement equipment vehicles equipment
EE
LB Gl _E 21
HK$'000 | HK$'000| HK$000| HK$000| HK$ 000
THET FAET TAET TEL FET
CosT 3%
A1 April 2014 AZE—FNS—H 91,725 281,678 38,946 89,775 495,194
Translation adjustments PE oA - (20) (©) (56) (85)
Additions HE 9,956 10,159 6,125 9,108 35,348
Disposals HE = (18,687) (3,233) (1,390) (23,310)
At 31 March 2015 RIE—HE=A=1+—H 31,681 973,130 41,829 90,437 437,077
Translation adjustments Rk 18 5 (253) (87) (317)
Additions NES 4,545 6,006 7,503 9,576 97,630
Disposals HE = (2,373) (3,759) (1,088) (7,220)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=-A=1+—H 36,244 976,768 45,320 98,838 457170
DEPRECIATION nE
A1 April 2014 RTE-UEMF—H 1,456 117,316 95,977 57,379 201,428
Translation adjustments E R FHE - ) (8) (29) (39)
Provided for the year rEEHRE 8,890 95,560 4,793 10,385 49,558
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - (17,009) 2,179) (1,017) (20,205)
At 31 March 2015 A_E-AF=B=1+—H 10,346 195,858 97,813 66,725 930,742
Translation adjustments R 5 5 (233) (90) (313)
Provided for the year REERH 13,050 26,176 5,379 1,258 55,863
Eliminated on disposals HERHH = (1,772) (3,366) (729) (5,867)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RE=A=+—H 93,401 150,267 99,593 77,164 280,495
CARRYING VALUES fREE
At 31 March 2016 RIBE—RF=A=1+—H 12,843 126,501 15,797 91,674 176,745
At 31 March 2015 RIE—h&E=F=+—H 91,335 147,272 14,016 23,712 206,335
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15.

RIS M 5E

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/DEPOSITS 15. WP, A RE, WEYE. B ARELE
PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT 5] (f8)

AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (o) M3, MR R E (18)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are . B R R T LUB AR A IR ARG

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following BEiTE .

rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of FEEEE FHER T3 (MU
the term of the raEA%E)
lease or 3 years

Plant, machinery and equipment  10% - 33!/ % M. 138N ER1E 10% - 33"/ %

Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20% - 33"/ % RE. EENMINNEHRE 20%-33'/.%

office equipment
(b) Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and (b) WHEMZE. WM NREHEETE

equipment

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has deposits of RTEBE—RNF=A=+—H, AEEERK

HK$126,654,000 (2015: HK$38,807,000) paid to BEYE. BmAREeBIE - A2 VE <

independent third parties for acquisition of property, 126,654,00078 7T, (—E—F 4 : 38,807,00087T) o

plant and equipment.

. DEPOSITS FOR INVESTMENTS 16. &=
As at 31 March 2016, the Group has a refundable earnest AZEF—RNEF=A=1+—8, xEEERBIFE=
money of HK$50,000,000 paid to an independent third 7 A7 B8R E = £50,000,0005 70, LUESSEE
party as deposit to secure an investment right in production SECIRER, LY, RETSTIELEBEYZE
of a movie. Also included in deposits for investments, is KREMBILE =Nz LR EHE$60,000,000
refundable earnest money of HK$60,000,000 paid to an BTTo
independent third party in respect of a potential property
investment.
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. T8 LB ERIE
Analysed for reporting purposes as follows: HERENMOTAOT !
2016 2015
TERF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FH7T 57T
Non-current assets EREMEE 1,612,303 1,716,894
Current assets TMENEE 104,591 104,591
1,716,894 1,821,485
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17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

The Group's prepaid land lease payments comprise leasehold

interest in land situated in:

RIS M 5E

17. B LA EFIE (18)
AEB AN THEERBESEMR U TS 2+
A SR

2016 2015

BT BE—RF

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

FET FET

Hong Kong &5 17,961 18,536
Macau (Note) P (B EE) 1,698,933 1,802,949
1,716,894 1,821,485

Note:  New Concordia Hotel Limited ("New Concordia”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has been
granted an irrecoverable and exclusive power of attorney
("POA") in respect of interest in a parcel of land situated
on the Cotai Strip of Macau (the “Land”). Taken into
consideration of a legal opinion, POA is considered to be a

legal instrument commonly used in Macau to grant, assign

or transfer rights, interest and powers on or re|c:ﬁng to the

PyaE %ﬁﬂﬁ*i@%ﬁﬁﬁ B (e, ARBzeEH
NE) BETFRRFIREKEREZ — BT
(rj:iﬂjj) Z APl E R s (IR AE (TMUERR) o
REBRELAEERR, RERERARMEERH
OREXE, DURH. 152 SRR - AR 2
R Rz g,

Land.
18. GOODWILL 18. BB
HK$ 000
FET
COST %N
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and 2016 \ii = mfﬁ?ﬁ %:*_7%;735& 64,412
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT REHRE
At1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and 2016 \ii = Efgiﬂ ?;L_E B (2,766)
CARRYING VALUES BRmEE
At 31 March 2015 and 2016 R CRERSRNE 61,646

=B=+—H

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount
of goodwi” has been allocated to the cash-genero’ring
units ("CGUs") of building construction in the management

contracting segment.

SETRERNENS, BERAECSBARKEERE
NESTRBIECELREEU (EERSEM),
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18. GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the above CGU has been
determined based on value in use calculations. The Group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by management for the next
two years (2015: two years) and extrapolates cash flows
for the following five years (2015: five years) with a steady
growth rate of 5% (2015: 5%). The rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows is 9% (2015: 9%). The value in

use calculations is calculated based on the budgeted
gross margin, which is determined using the unit's past
performance and management's expectations for the
market development.

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other intangible assets comprise:

18. & (18)

N EEERSBEUrIWBISEHERAEREE
R, AEBRBEEEMPERRME (CE—1
FIWME) cBFNIMHEERELRESREN, W
MIgEIB RISy (CE—RF 5% HEHEBRAF (T
E—LF 1F) ZRERE, AUMRBAANRSR
ZHERBDo% (CTE—RF 1 9%) . BABETHRE
BEMNXRSHE, MABEMNRAEZBEUOEER
RREERBHHEREHEMEE.

19. AT EE

HK$' 000
FH7

HMELEEDE !

Club membership in Hong Kong, at cost EEBCEEE, BEA 7,000
Motor vehicles registration marks, at cost BEREEIARNE, R 627
7,627

The above intangible assets have indefinite useful lives. The
directors are of the opinion that the club membership and
motor vehicles registration marks are worth at least their
carrying amounts by reference to latest market prices.

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

PREFEEEBETERERTH. EFK2ERN
MIHERRER, SRR EMSLREZERE
EOESREKREE.

20. BE N\ Bl LS

2015
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THT THT
s . . RERIELTHENT
Cost of unlisted investments in associates = A
Share of post-acquisition losses and other BWERCBIEN
comprehensive expenses, net of dividends HiemEMs, 0k (5,666) (7,853)
received BEWER B
292,867 24,741
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. Bt N EIHERE (FB)
Aggregate information of associates that are not BRI IFBE R HE N T 2 ERHRE :

individually material:

2016
BT —E—AF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
F ¥
The Group's share of loss AEEE# (L EE (1,531) (2,284)
RPN
The Group's share of other comprehensive income ASRERGRMEE 88 2
g
The Group's share of total comprehensive expense 21:;%@ RESER (1,443) (2,2892)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests <55 [E R B & /0 B M 48
in associates Z EREARE 22,867 24,741
Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31 March AREBTEHE NN _SE—NEN_E—HF=
2016 and 2015 are set out in note 43(c). B=+—HZEFE&HINRHEE43(c)o
21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21 EEPERER
2016 2015
—E—RF “E—hF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET F3ET
AT 8/ PAN TN
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures ;Lxgﬁt IFETEEEX 51,773 51,773
A
Share of post-acquisition profits and other BB v ar &
comprehensive income, net of dividends Ememhas, 0 36,027 39,694
received BEWER R
87,800 91,467
The summarised financial information in respect of the ERAERSEASEPEMIEHREXZGREN
Group's material joint venture, T T2l BB R/ T, HeEWB AT MM AR EEEREAN TZET%&
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, AN TR R B S B IR BRIMEEHY T, UTFHBEERBENERESE
J3E], is set out below. The summarised financial information RS ERREEMN e 8 EPEUBREXFT
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's £ %8,

financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 21 BEREREL (18)
Financial position of the joint venture as at 31 March: BECER=B=1+—"HZHHEKRR
2016 2015
—B—A%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FiEr FiE
Non-current assets IERENEE 216,476 231,689
Current assets MEEE 4,704 4,907
Current liabilities REEE (1,587) (10,395)
Non-current liabilities ERFEE (39,793) (48,086)
Net assets of the joint venture SETEEERE 169,800 178,115
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the PR EENEESEIIE N EIE .
following:
2015
HK$ 000
TET
Cash and cash equivalents BHeNEIEEEEER 4,199 4,757
SR . mEEmas (reid
Cur:inf fmonc;olld ||0b!|’r|es ('e>.<c|uc)J|ng trade and 25 H E (T IE 4785 4994
other payables and provisions "
Py P T H5Ei%)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade FRBERE A (TS
T bles and provisons) 85 R 2Lt FE (T 5B 17,943 23,720
and other payables and provisions -
P P R 186)
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 21. BE
P
=

Reconciliation of its net assets to the carrying amount of the

interest in the joint venture:

HK$ 000

FiE

Net assets of the joint venture SETECEESRE 169,800 178,115

Proportion of the Group's ownership interest REBLEGEDLE 509 509

in the joint venture FEERERL 2 LA : i

Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEBENREGEBEER

in the joint venture ZBREE 84,900 89.057

Results of the joint venture for the year ended 31 March: EEPEBE—A=-T—HIIFEZEE

HK$ 000
FET
Revenue WA 12,331 12,514
(Loss) profit for the year FE (B18) arl (872) 2,873
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEAMEEBES (7,443) (219)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year E%%%gégﬁ %) (8,315) 2,654
The Group's share of (loss) profit AEE (L (B518) 2T (436) 1,437
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not BRI IFBE R BE P ERHRE !

individually material:

2016 2015

—T /\ —

HK$ 000 HK$' 000

TE7T TETT

The Group's share of profit REBEEH(52F 437 797
The Group's share of other comprehensive AEEHEGEME@ 53 (166)

income (expense) Iz (Fs2)
The Group's share of total comprehensive income $;§f§&f£é@”&%§ 490 631
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEBNREGELEER 2900 2 410

interests in joint ventures < FREEE ’ '
Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures as at 31 AEBFTERELENR ST RNERS—HFE=
March 2016 and 2015 are set out in note 43(d). B =1+—H <z FBE5 R EE43(d)o
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO CUSTOMERS FOR 20 FEW I B F & TI2RUE
CONTRACT WORKS
2016 2015
—EF —FhF
HK$ 000 HK$'000
TET TET
Contracts in progress at the end of REEAER
the reporting period: EEENIIE:
Contract costs incurred BEL CEHA 70,650,749 65,691,529
HEHESR R F R
Recognised profits less recognised losses # ﬁ;f %%;;g 1,702,700 1,683,976
72,353,449 67,375,505
Less: Progress billings B EERR (72,671,265) (68,202,096)
(317,816) (826,591)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEREBMDTA -
Amounts due from customers for contract works [EWE P&/ TiA2IE 851,251 824,031
Amounts due to customers for contract works AN ==y SE ] (1,169,067) (1,650,622)
(317,816) (826,591)
In response to the lead contamination of drinking water REETF A TRRAKINKEH, KNTEERS
in certain contract works, the directors of the Company B T2 U AR A B R 2= DR T By B

consider that the provision made for the costs of remedial
works in the consolidated financial statements is adequate.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

23 B 57 RHEMBFUAR, 5T& MBI NIE

Trade debtors B rEW RIS 596,062 828,837
4 ZRFEEBAR TYIE
Retention held by customers expected to be settled: B E S RESD
- within twelve months from the end of — R EHARECET
the reporting period 1288 A 418,009 442,085
- after twelve months from the end of — RS AR ET
the reporting period 1218 5 % 204,816 424,082
AN l‘ = N\ A\
Advance payments to sub-contractors ﬁ;%lg EENrA 157,646 568,229
TA-H
Construction and material purchase costs paid RO¥IBZ I CBER 193 58] 934 797
on behalf of sub-contractors MR R AR ! '
. HtEWARIE, 5TE &
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments SE{I G 182,552 159,908
1,752,666 2,657,938

Trade debtors mainly arise from management contracting
business. The Group's credit terms for its management
contracting business are negotiated at terms determined
and agreed with its tfrade customers. The credit periods are
ranging from 60 to 90 days.

The aged analysis of trade debtors, net of allowance for
doubtful debfs, presen’red based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

B EWNIBEEERERETIEER, AEBRE
BEERCEEHNEEBSERER NI, B8
HAFR60H E90H 155,

RI|BEAR, UBRAMASEES R EINRRE
BeRcEZRRFEZRBOTOT !

2016 2015

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

T FiE

Within 90 days 90H™A 525,632 786,553
More than 90 days and within 180 days Bi1EB90HBRI8B0H N 37,734 2,624
More than 180 days BiE180H 32,696 39,660
596,062 828,837

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the
credit quality of the trade customers. The collection is closely
monitored to minimise any credit risk associated with these
trade debtors.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The aged analysis presented based on the invoice date of
the trade debtors which are past due but not impaired is as
follows:

3. BR RAMEWFUA. 5TEREMIEA ()

EBRERRAECEZBNNAURELRAEE
S5 ZRREBOTOT

More than 90 days and within 180 days #1890 HER180HMA 37,734 2,624
More than 180 days BaE1s0H 39,696 39,660
70,430 49,984

The directors of the Company consider that there has not
been a significant chonge in credit quc1|ify of the trade
debtors and there is no recent history of default, therefore
the amounts are considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Maijority of the trade debtors that are neither past due nor
impaired have no default payment history.

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts of individually
impaired trade debtors during the year is as follows:

ANEEFR, BZREHEBECEEERESK
21, BTHIWEN B, BEsAXSIUaER
FUREl, AEEFLZFIEER AT A EEEF R

RER) BB AR SR (B 2 B 7 FE W IR I K
I FREC ERo

RERA, B85 2RIEE S BB R R B2
BT

2016 2015

—= A —=_hE

HK$'QOO HK$' 000

TETT TET

Balance at beginning of the year FAHEER 3,833 1,721
Impairment loss recognised during the year FRFESE RERE - 2,112
Balance at end of the year FERIEER 3,833 3,833

The Group's trade and other debtors, deposits and
prepayments that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set
out below:

AEBLERERBERINREE K UNc B S BT
B NEMEYEEA. e MFANFUASEINT

Macau Pataca ("MOP”) JHRLFS M (5B P ) 194 193
Renminbi ("RMB") AR (T AR 4,771 2,308
154

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN Gl e
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(E_E—NEF=A=+—HLEEE
24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/JOINT FEW IBEENT] b SEEis,/ e
VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER PARTNERS EE M AEENIE
OF JOINT OPERATIONS

(a) Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures

a) FEUTERE / R ZHIA
(i) EWH&XA 7-‘& 8!

(i) Amounts due from associates:

2016 2015
—BNE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THET FET
Trade and other balances B 5 N HfuiEeR
Trade balances 85 iEer 3,326 1,356
BB E AL N\ ]
Retention held by an associate expected F,? i EI'HL\ i
to be settled: K T IIRRRIER
' REE !
- within twelve months from the end of —IREHARECET 190 199
the reporting period 1218 A 7
- after twelve months from the end of —$§%,HH EEEE‘V 199
the reporting period 1@ 5% )
Other balances HAAEER 15,245 14,432
18,700 16,046

The trade balances due from associates have a
credit period of 90 days on average and the aged
analysis presented based on the invoice date at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

B E N Bz B2 i5er < FHIEEHA90
H, MRBEFRUBZARREEERL
FRip a0 T -

2016 2015

—N4F “E—-FR%F

HK$' 000 HK$ 000

) ‘/f/a JL

Within 90 days 90H R 2,130 108
More than 180 days 818180 H 1196 1,248
3,326 1,356

The above balance aged over 90 days is past due
but not impaired. The directors of the Company
consider that there has not been a significant
change in credit quality of the associate and there is
no recent his’rory of default. Therefore, the amount is
considered recoverable.

155

b EREEBIE90 A  faer A BB HAERA
B, ANBAEFERH, ZMERDZEEE
REEABE, BAEMITETRBEE, HER
A EZRARE R] T,

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UNEYE e N
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/JOINT

VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER PARTNERS

OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures
(Continued)

(i) Amounts due from joint ventures:

24. FEI/(IEHE B/ A bE/

BHMBHRE (1)

(o) FEMR IEHERT A& R

(i) BREEEERIE:

-t

I ()

Trade and other balances B 5 Mk HEMiEeR
Trade balances =k 282,438 464,285
_pEAKS N i zE s
Retention held by a joint venture expected ;?? - '%ljﬁt%iiéiw i
to be settled: S POURAREIER
REE !
- within twelve months from the end of — IR EHAREEET
the reporting period 12{8 8 A 24,678 15,521
- after twelve months from the end of —$§%,ﬁﬂ E G
the reporting period 1218 5% 14,810 15,521
321,926 495,397
The trade balances due from joint ventures which FEW S PE B LR LHEESRRA90
have a credit period of 90 days on average are H, MRRESERUEBEHSRARE 7R
aged within 90 days based on the invoice date at Z90H o
the end of the reporting period.
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/JOINT 24 FEW SEFENE] / EbhE  SEER GE%
VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER PARTNERS HHMBERIE (8)
OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a) Amounts due from/to associates/joint ventures (o) B SEFENT) & A HIE (1E)
(Continued)
(i) Amounts due to associates: (iii) FENTBEE /N TIFIE -

HK$ OOO HK$ 000

:FETE ‘/F/a JG
Trade and other balances B 5 N HfiEeR
Trade balance B 2R 912 -

Retention held by the Group expected AEEFFAREBAR T

to be settled: S B RE R ¢
- within twelve months from the end of —REHARACET
the reporting period 1218 8 A 3,426 21128
- after twelve months from the end of —IREHAR AT
the reporting period 2@ 5% 6.272 gi=57
Other balances HAiEeR 360 791
10,970 28,486
The trade balance due to an associate which e —REBt=E NEl v B2 e EE /A0
has a credit period of 90 days is aged within 90 H, MRBREHARUERHAAEZE ZRip
days based on the invoice date at the end of the #3590 H Mo
reporting period.
(iv) Amount due fo a joint venture: (iv) BN —RBI&EExUE !
2015
=5t
HK$ 000
Fi
Trade and other balance B 5 M EMiEeR
Other balance HihiEer 49 2,868
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/JOINT 4. FEW /(SERE/NT] /BEDE SEER HEE

VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER PARTNERS B EMBHRUR (1)

OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners (b) FEWL (TS SEEBHMB A
of joint operations
Amounts represent balances due from and to joint FUBTEFEW N FE(S & %% (BB HZEE
operations, which are deemed to be borne by other BB AMBHEE) REEXEBEMBHCE
partners of such joint operations, and other partners B EWNEEXEBENEG %?ET‘@%&Z%@%%
of joint operations. The balances due from joint 317,719,000 7T (—F — A 4F  34,868,00075 7T)
operations and other partners of joint operations K2110,853,00078 77, (— B —F F | 84,697,00075
are HK$7,719,000 (2015: HK$34,868,000) Fs) . BNEEXRB NG EXHHEMBH ZEER
and HK$110,853,000 (2015: HK$84,697,000), 7351 23110,853,00078 7T (5 — A 4F © 84,841,000
respectively. The balances due to joint operations and 7B7T) K25,095,0005 7T (ZF— A4 1 2,025000
other partners of joint operations are HK$110,853,000 ) o
(2015: HK$84,841,000) and HK$5,095,000 (2015:
HK$2,025,000), respectively.
(i) Amounts due from joint operations/other partners of () EBEEER/ SEEBAMBYINE

joint operations:

2016 2015
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THT THET
Trade and other balances B 5 R HMISER
Trade balance B 5 hheR 109 58
. - . BERBR AR
it . L
® ' RES :
- within twelve months from the end of — RS HARACET
the reporting period 1218 8 A 7,200 6721
- after twelve months from the end of — RS AR ACET ~ 3600
the reporting period 1@ 5% '
Other balances Hihiser 410 24,489
Non-trade balances which are unsecured, 3'5%%%%@%]—5&?5?@\ 110.853 84 697
interest-free and repayable on demand RENBRERFFESR ' '
118,572 119,565
The trade balance due from a joint operation which FEl—BEeEXxH v B Ee e EERA%H,
has a credit period of 90 days is aged within 90 MR EHRMUEZH AR ZE ZRE 490H
days based on the invoice date at the end of the Mo

reporting period.
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES/JOINT 24. FEI(TEENE) /¥ % SEET /BE:
VENTURES/JOINT OPERATIONS/OTHER PARTNERS BHMBHERE (18)
OF JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)
(b) Amounts due from/to joint operations/other partners (b) FEMW S EEER  SEEFHMBHECREIE
of joint operations (Continued) (18)
(i) Amounts due to joint operations/other partners of (i) ENEEER SEEBEMBH TR

joint operations:

2016 2015
TEAE “E-RE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T FET
Trade and other balances B 5 M HE M5
Trade balance B ot 3,317 100
Other balances HibiEer 1,778 2,069
Non-trade balances which are unsecured, JEE ZiGeR T IR,
interest-free and repoyab|e on demand RENBRERFEE 110,853 84,697
115,948 86,866
The trade balance due to a joint operation/other [E—RBEEErE/ e EMmEBMYcE
partner of a joint operation has a credit period of GG EEHIAH, MPRNMEHARLIE
90 days and the aged analysis presented based on TSHEEARECERB DT ES AT

the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is

as FO”OWS:

2015
HK$ 000
TET
Within 90 days 90HW 2,675 100
More than 90 days and within 180 days #1890 HER180H M 316 -
More than 180 days #BiE180 H 326 -
3,317 100
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25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES OF A
SHAREHOLDER/LOAN FROM A SUBSIDIARY OF A
SHAREHOLDER

(i) Amounts due from subsidiaries of a shareholder

RIS M 5E

FENS, S — R R T B
FWHF NSIEEEN

REFE —BREZ—

() FEM—aRRERZHEREIE

2016 2015
= i
HK$ (0]6]6) HK$ 000
:F/E 7L :F\/%?E
Trade and other balances B 5 Kk HMEEER
Trade balances =0k 555 15,01
Other balance HbiEer 26,009 48,580
26,564 63,591
The trade balances due from subsidiaries of a FEW—2 AR 2 M B TZ%%% ﬁ%Zng/HH%
shareholder have a credit period of 90 days are aged 90H, MIWER, UREAPAEECERE
over 180 days based on the invoice date at the end of 1H180H, #HERA EJ\_HHTE' */ﬁfﬁo ANBIES
the reporting period. The balances are past due but RAZLRBCHNB LB EEER M EE AR
not impaired. The directors of the Company consider b, BiRHA R RBEE%E, el AR SERIEEA
that there has not been a significant change in credit Bidv{Es
quality of the subsidiaries of a shareholder and there is
no recent hisfory of default. Therefore, the amounts are
considered recoverable.
In addition, included in the above trade balances due JHZ%; Lj\iﬁ’iuﬁz %HX%Z Mﬂ% jZf’j%Yl‘i
from subsidiaries of a shareholder as at 31 March 2015 BN S —AF=H=1+—H01E14,424,0007%5
consisted of HK$14,424,000 which was interest bearing 7T, JHRREARRITA T’Fﬁzﬁéﬁfé %ﬂ$%ﬁ
at a floating rate at the benchmark lending rate as B ERFE (RS E A L) INE28% 2 FH)
announced by the People’s Bank of China or relevant MEFHE, RZF—AF=B=1+—Hxz&HFH=x
borrowing rate, whichever was higher, plus 8% per #014. 42%0
annum which was approximately 14.42% per annum as
at 31 March 2015.
(i) Amounts due to subsidiaries of a shareholder (i) FE—RERRZMELEIE
2016
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TETT TFE7T
Trade and other balances B 5 N HEMiEER
Other balance Hiiher 441 493
BERFAERZ
. ) b = 15,300
Other balance repaid during the year R
44] 15,793
(iii) Loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder (i) — %Rz — M B A B AR
The loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder is —HREBEZ —BR BN E 2 EBRHEEH, BE
unsecured, interest beqring ata ﬂoaﬁng rate at the best %ﬁ{%%%‘]}zﬂﬂﬁf = Q%Z /ééﬁiﬁuzﬁ ‘|' g &/EE/\
lending rate in Hong Kong plus 2% per annum and —FREESE,
repayable within one year.
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26. OTHER LOANS RECEIVABLE

27.

The other loans receivable are unsecured, interest becring at
floating rates at the best lending rate in Hong Kong plus 2%
to 6% (2015: 6%) per annum and are repayable within one
year. The balances as at 31 March 2016 are all advanced to
independent third parties.

Included in other loans receivable as at 31 March 2015 was
a balance of HK$10,174,000 which was advanced to a
shareholder of the Company and was repaid during the
year ended 31 March 2016.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH

27. B AR RIBITER.

26. EFE W EFN

HMEWERD A EIER, REEREETEME
BN Fo%ZEen (CB—RF ! 6%) L FHHEFFER
AR—FENEE, RZF—RNF=A=+—HZHE
ERARBARTEILE =T

R_E—AF=A=+—HZEMEKRERTIE—
£ 4#0,174,0008 T ZAEER, ThBANTANE—H
B, ERBE_ES—"FE=-A=1+—HILEEH

B EE

RERRITT R IRITHE R RIS

2016 2015
—EREF —E—FF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET TA7T
Pledged bank deposits BEIRIRIRITIFERN 17,065 46,878
Short term bank deposits TCHASRITIF AN 458,388 2,138,346
Bank balances and cash IRITIERR NIRS 483,859 1,036,459
959,312 3,221,683
Less: DA

Pledged bank deposits BEIRFFRITEN (17,065) (46,878)

Short term bank deposits with maturit BB=—ERED
P Y HR— B B - (900,000)

more than three months but less than a year P
IRITEN

Cash and cash equiv0|enfs Be MBS EEE 949,247 92,274,805

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group

with maturity within one year from the end of the reporting
period and are therefore classified as current assets. The
pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rates from 0.49%
to 1.35% (2015: 0.01% to 1.76%) per annum.

The short term bank deposits with maturity date of less than
three months carry prevailing market rates ranging from
0.01% to 1.76% (2015: 0.01% to 1.62%) per annum. The
bank balances carry prevailing market rates ranging from
0% to 1% (2015: 0% to 0.35%) per annum. As at 31 March
2015, the short term bank deposits with maturity more than
three months but less than a year carry prevailing market
rates ranging from 1.28% to 1.3% per annum.
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27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT TERM BANK 27. BERIFIRITER. RHRTERNREBITEGRIRES
DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH (&)
(Continued)
The Group's short term bank deposits and bank balances AEBEUEBEEERBIIGEEEUNCEB BN
and cash that are denominated in currencies other than the Z%E,HHﬁEﬁ@%ﬂ&ﬁEﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁU o

functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out

below:

2016 2015
B —E=-—R&
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THET FET
MOP P 3,583 6,583
RMB AR 1,961 18
Singapore dollar ("'SGD") ¥ oe (T3 o)) 3 12,761
28. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED 28. 8 5 N H At FE(S A M B ST RS2
EXPENSES
2016 2015
—ERE —®-nfF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
TB7T T
Trade creditors B 5 ENIE 512,845 1,056,543
EEE BERN T4
Retention held by the Group expected to be settled: $$%;§E;{££§J
- within twelve months from the end of — SRS AR ET
67,464
the reporting period 1218 8 7 534,409 4
- after twelve months from the end of — R S HARECET
P , ,525
the reporting period 12 % 244,787 262
Advance receipts from customers KEEP ZBWRFRIE 7,699 131,373
HibpET I
Other creditors and accrued expenses - \;ggi%g K 330,168 280,219
1,629,908 2,218,124
The average credit period on trade creditors is 90 days. The B ENFIEBEFEAEERAH. AEEFREH
Group has financial risk management policies in place to HREBEIENE, BRI EENRIBEOEEERR
ensure that all payables are within the credit timeframe. Mo
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28. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED 28. B 7 N E A FE(TFRIE K FESTRASE (H8)
EXPENSES (Continued)
The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on the RIREHAR, U ENHRAEERR B SIENR
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: 187 AR5 ﬁrﬁl]—l:
2016 2015
TERE —E-AF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TATT TETT
Within 90 days 90HA 498,957 1,030,869
More than 90 days and within 180 days im0 H{ER180H N 662 5,628
More than 180 days 838180 H 13,226 20,046
512,845 1,056,543
The Group's trade and other creditors and accrued expenses AEBEIEBERERBIEEKUN B A B
that are denominated in currencies other than the functional ZBSNEMENFRIBNESTRSZ ST !

currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

2015
—_E—h4F
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
:F/ig?ﬁ T(/a JL
MOP VLS 8,463 12,429
RMB ANREE 1,050 -
29. BANK BORROWINGS 29. IR1TER

2015
TERE “E—HF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT FEIT

Bank loans =N
Secured BiEE 2,854,293 1,470,336
Unsecured R 3 166,554 115,791

3,020,847 1,586,127
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29. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 29 IRITERN (F8)
The bank borrowings are repqycb|e as follows: BITERCEBRIFNT ¢

2016 2015
TE—RE “E—RF

HK$ 000 HK$ 000
5T TEx

BBEAERERN—FR

On demand or within one year =) 48 459,154 487,610
Bi8—5, 1BRiEiE
More than one year, but not exceeding two years BB —F, ETHES - -
mF
B8 , BAEE
More than two years, but not exceeding five years EEEEEE S 2,561,693 329,555
More than five years fiEp Ciakes - 768,962
3,020,847 1,586,127
Less: Amount due within one year shown under B — R A E
N . 459,154 487,61
current liabilities mENE & NIE (459,154) (487,610)
Amount due after one year shown under —FB B HR 5 E
non-current liabilities ERBEE A RIS LeREslY
The Group's bank borrowings carry interests at floating rates REERZEFF R B BT ED, 2 ZHF=XRE
ranging from the bank's cost of funds plus 1.75% to 110% of RIBITE S AN 75% 27 F A RBIT AR LM
the benchmark lending rate as announced by the People’s ZEEEANFIXRZN0%T S, EREFN =N T230%
Bank of China from time to time, with effective interest rate Z506% (—EF—FRF | 2.84%2616%) o
ranging from 2.30% to 5.06% (2015: 2.84% to 6.16%) per
annum.
As at 31 March 2016, the secured bank loans and the R-EBE—RE=ZB=+—H, BEHETEINLE
banking facilities granted to the Group are secured by ERER YT ZIETRENUAEREmBEDR A
the Group's hotel under development, property, plant 6,139,370,0005 7T (ZE— A . 2,633,563,00075
and equipment, prepaid land lease payments situated in IT) « 201,000875T (Z&B—F 4 . 37,750,00027T) «
Macau and bank deposits with an aggregate carrying 1,698,933,0002 7T (—E—FF © 1,802,949,00075 7T)
value of HK$6,139,370,000 (2015: HK$2,633,563,000), K217,065,00038 75 (—E— F4F © 46,878,000557T) &2
HK$201,000 (2015: HK$37,750,000), BREEE. W2 WRRRE. R YT
HK$1,698,933,000 (2015: HK$1,802,949,000) and + IR S RTINS A E B E T EEAY
HK$17,065,000 (2015: HK$46,878,000), respectively, B 2 F R R,

and chorges over the Group's benefit from certain

construction contracts.

164
THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 30. BJ#2R% ;

(i) Convertible bonds issued on 5 February 2013 (the (i) ﬁl\\:é— —FE_HARBTzABEEES ((TE
“February 2013 Convertible Bonds") —= EE B AR EZ )
The Company issued 1,202,000,000 February ARNBRZE—=F_F A HIZgFT 5K E0.68
2013 Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an AT (j@ & (F H R E#EFHE) £8171,202,000,000
initial conversion price of HK$0.68 each (subject to REBE_EF—=—F" Boj#RES, FTSFTE
antidilutive adjustments) on 5 February 2013 for a total 1856 #51,202,000,0005 78 (A&%8) . FIHEEA
proceed of HK$1,202,000,000 (the principal amount). TE— = AMRESETRBE R
The maturity date is the twelfth anniversary of the date BB (F88H) . —ZS—=F"_Fo#RE
of issue of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds (the HHFHBEANR _E—=F_F o[ iE%E
"Maturity Date”). The February 2013 Convertible Bonds THBERENEERRIBAEADRERZH (2
entitle the holders to convert them into ordinory shares }%%): X E|) = %H%FEE ?%EEZHH B ﬁé %H%z%
of the Company at any time commencing on the date AR\ T 2 EER, Mo]iRRESREESR,
of issue of the February 2013 Convertible Bonds and BB RIE— = _Bn#ERESCHEE
up fo the close of business on a day no later than seven fElel, B =—F_FaMRESETHAS
days prior to the Maturity Date (both days inclusive). If FIBFE, ARERGHERERERLBERHE
the convertible bonds have not been converted, They will BR NHR Fﬂ}aiéﬁ&fﬁuﬁs‘%z/@%ﬁu S &[]
be redeemed on the Maturity Date at the face value of SESHES D IR (ES. —_F—=F_H T#{'HR
February 2013 Convertible Bonds. The Company, from B2 2 TSR IBR )T HE SR BT 20 Ao 22 84 Al B
the fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the February N—BENEREED

2013 Convertible Bonds, may redeem the convertible
bonds in whole or in part, at principal and interest of 5%
per annum accrued for the remaining period from early
redemption date to the maturity date. The proceeds of
the February 2013 Convertible Bonds were allocated
into two components, debt and equity elements on initial

recognition.

With effect from 27 May 2013, the conversion price of HRETRREH, B_F—=FA8_"_1+1tH
the February 2013 Convertible Bonds was adjusted from g, S =—F_AnBERESCERERTR
HK$0.68 each to HK$6.80 each as a result of share 0.68& 7T ﬁyﬁiﬁxé 805 TT. M —MIRIE
consolidation. With effect from 15 November 2013, IfEEE®R, BEZE—=F+—8B+#ABk&, =
the conversion price of the February 2013 Convertible E—=—F B MR ES CHBEREHTR80E
Bonds was further adjusted from HK$6.80 per share to TTE— T HARETR6.655 7T, NITAR R
HK$6.65 per share upon the completion of the general FLEFIER, _ S =—F _FABRES TR
mandate placing. Upon the completion of the specific BHRER6.655 TE—F AR EFRE6.555 7T

mandate placing, the conversion price of the February
2013 Convertible Bonds was further adjusted from
HK$6.65 per share to HK$6.55 per share.

Details of the adjustments to the conversion price as a KR EF. —REEERESBEBNSRIEERE
result of the share consolidation, the general mandate EIEHMBRECAERCEFE, SIRNEHRAZ
placing and the specific mandate placing are set out FE—=—FWHA_+WMUH. —F—=—F+—H+A
in announcements dated 24 April 2013, 15 November BARZE—=F+"H+ B2 fA.

2013 and 16 December 2013, respectively.

On initial recognition, the transaction costs ﬁ/\jﬁﬂﬂfﬁﬁuﬁﬁ%; é%%?jﬁﬂxfi#éiz %fﬁ
incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds BT 4360,39500058 7T, HRIE(LFTIE NIEYF%%E
totalling HK$60,395,000 were allocated into DELEAI D B DEEEB B MRAES D, BlD
the debt component and the equity component of 71 #38,662,00075 7T 251,733,00075 7T,

HK$8,662,000 and HK$51,733,000, respectively, in

proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

0

Convertible bonds issued on 5 February 2013 (the
“February 2013 Convertible Bonds") (Continued)

The February 2013 Convertible Bonds contain two
components, debt and equity elements. The equity
element is presented in equity headed convertible
bonds reserve. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is approximately 18.1% per annum.

Convertible bonds issued on 16 December 2013 (the
"December 2013 Convertible Bonds")

The Company issued 299,942,350 December 2013
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an initial
conversion price of HK$8.23 each (subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments) on 16 December 2013 for a

total proceed of HK$299,942,350 (the principal
amount). The maturity date is on 5 February 2025. The
December 2013 Convertible Bonds entitle the holders
to convert them into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time commencing on the date of issue of the
December 2013 Convertible Bonds and up to the close
of business on a day no later than seven days prior to 5
February 2025 (both days inclusive). If the December
2013 Convertible Bonds have not been converted,

they will be redeemed on 5 February 2025 at the face
value of the December 2013 Convertible Bonds. The
Company, from 5 February 2018, may redeem the
December 2013 Convertible Bonds in whole or in part,
at principal and interest of 5% per annum accrued for
the remaining period from early redemption date to 5
February 2025. The proceeds of the December 2013
Convertible Bonds were allocated into two components,
debt and equity elements on initial recognition. The
equity element is presented in equity heading convertible
bonds reserve. The December 2013 Convertible Bonds
have been valued as at 16 December 2013 on the basis
carried out at that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The fair value of the liability component
of HK$47,391,000 is determined using the effective
interest rate of the liability component at approximately
18.5% per annum.

On initial recognition, the transaction costs

incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$12,408,000 were allocated into the
debt component and the equity component of
HK$1,960,000 and HK$10,448,000, respectively, in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.

30. AJRARfE A (18)

0

R_BE—=F_AAARTzaIBiRES (S
—=F£ " BrekES) (8)
TE——F_ArBRESSERERS A&
R RAER Do BRAIS D 2 YRR IE T 2 pI %
B EE. BEMDERER R A181%,

MRIB—=FE+"Bt+/ BT RRE
(TTE—=F+"H AR E=)
ANBR_E—=F+_B BT HBE
8.235 70 (WEIEH R B EFEE) 5817299,942,350
REBEE— =G4+ A0ERES, FE5
TBHEER 45299,942,35078 70 (A&%8) . BIHAE AT
BE"RFE"HAAEH, _BE—=F+_F0ERE
HERFEFBEATR _S—=F1+_Fa[#KRE
AT HHRA N EE _E - AF A AEHH
TOREtEZE (BEEEMAE) &XFEGER
Z BRI PIBER S 2 B A AN B 2 BB R, M
E-ZF+ Ao BRESRESR, SRS
T hFE_HAB®R_E——F+ B oERES
ZHEEER, B-E—/\E_FAHE, AN F
iR EEBRRE S A& AAHZE T
HARS IR A S 58 N FE I 550, 2 517 S BB [E] 4 8B
WED B E T A BRES, _E—=F
+ = B AR E S 2 Fi S B R ) HER R 7
B = M E A SR — B E M RAER D BRAERS
ENRERB N BB ESHE S ——F
+ B AR ESHEAEREERECBIAE
BEEGEMPHEEETEBREREATNR
E——F+-A+AHETHE, BaESoZA
(847,391,000 TR B &I D 2 EEF B L (F
H|Z4018.5%) B Fo

RATHERE, REBITERESEE R Z N

B 5T 12,408,000/ 7T, RE(SFTERIEREE
DA DB D EEES ER D MEAE D, Blo
711 751,960,00075 75 M210,448,00075 700
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(iii) Convertible bonds issued on 8 January 2015 (the
“January 2015 Convertible Bonds")
The Company issued 755,300,000 January 2015
Convertible Bonds with zero coupon rate at an initial
conversion price of HK$3.00 each (subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments) on 8 January 2015 for a total
proceed of HK$755,300,000 (the principal amount).
The maturity date is on 5 February 2025. The January
2015 Convertible Bonds entitle the holders to convert
them into ordinary shares of the Company at any time
commencing on the date of issue of the January 2015
Convertible Bonds and up to the close of business on
a day no later than seven days prior to 5 February
20925 (both days inclusive). If the January 2015
Convertible Bonds have not been converted, they will
be redeemed on 5 February 2025 at the face value of
the January 2015 Convertible Bonds. The Company,
from 5 February 2018, may redeem the January 2015
Convertible Bonds in whole or in part, at principal and
interest of 5% per annum accrued for the remaining
period from early redemption date to 5 February 2025.
The proceeds of the January 2015 Convertible Bonds
were allocated into two components, debt and equity
elements on initial recognition. The equity element is
presented in equity heading convertible bonds reserve.
The January 2015 Convertible Bonds have been valued
as at 8 January 2015 on the basis carried out at that
date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. The fair value of the liability component of
HK$125,553,000 is determined using the effective
interest rate of the liability component at approximately
19.9% per annum.

On initial recognition, the transaction costs

incurred for the issuance of the convertible bonds
totalling HK$27,915,000 were allocated into the

debt component and the equity component of
HK$4,640,000 and HK$23,275,000, respectively, in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
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30. O RIRES (1B)
(i) RZTEBE—RAFE—B/N\BRiTafkES (25

—RE— B ARk ES)
ANBR_S—AE—F/\BEZ9T#RE3.00
Bt (FEEH R EEFE) 2517755,300,0008%
BEEETE—HF—BABRES, FTEFUEHE
KB 74755,300,00078 7T (A2%8) . FIFRA S
“hHE"BEAH, —E—AS—H0RRESER
FEEATR _E—AF— B o R EaRETH
B REE_E-_AF B HEAPRE
HeB (ZEEEmE) &XREERCHERER
PERF S v B AR N v E Bk, M-S —HA4
— ol ES REREER, BN _E " AE"F
AR _E-AE—HAuBREECEEED,
BE-E—/\E_FAAHE, A FoHHRERE
Ol H ZE2H H 2 85 N EAB R A48 N EFR5%
2 B5HA BEEl ey — S —hFE—Hr#
RES, —E—AFE—BaRRESCHENE
R SRR DB E M EE S D — BB LR
e RRAER D 2HMAHELRTE T 2 oI IR R E 2
fBo B —HF— B ES HEAE EEES
BB ERFEEGEMDHEE ELERED
BRATR_E—AE—F/\QETHEE 88
R Z 1N TF{B125,553,00078 02 B B30 2 B
MEE (FENZHKN9.9%) EE,

R HEES Ry, REETaBRESELE CZZMN

BET427,915,000E 7T, ZIE(LPTSHIEAEZR
DA DEEEEESD MERAE D, D
71 454,640,00072 7T 1223,275,00075 7T,
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30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 30. Al &S (18)
The movements of the debt component of the February BHE_ES—RF="A=+T—HEZE—RF=°
2013 Convertible Bonds, the December 2013 Convertible —t+—HIEFE_E—=F_FnBkEes _F
Bonds and the January 2015 Convertible Bonds for the year —=F+—H T#foﬁ%&if AFE—H AR
ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 are set out below: BEZERBES D ZBBEF AT !

December 2013
Convertible
Bonds

February 2013
Convertible

January 2015
Convertible
Bonds

AR ES AIBRES RIEBRES

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TET TAT BT
At1 April 2014 RIE—MENAE—H 191,987 47,734 - 239,721
Initial recognition of debt component MR HRES < ) ) 105 553 105553
of convertible bonds %%%%B ' '
Transaction costs allocated to liability RRETRERESZ
- - 4,640 4,64
component of convertible bonds ,\FﬁB ) R 53 AR ( ) (4,640)
Effective interest expense for the year
HEBRTESERELZ
capitalised in the hotel e 34,680 8,813 5,176 48,669
under development ENRENEHS
5L
At 31 March 2015 =5 :_I_% = 226,667 56,547 126,089 409,303
Effective interest expense for the year
HRERTPBEBEREAL
capitalised in the hotel = 40,955 10,440 95,137 76,532
under development ENREEH:
At 31 March 2016 =B AR 267,622 66,987 151,226 485,835

=A=+—-H
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31. DEFERRED TAXATION ORI
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) RAFERUEFFEEES T2 RELERBEE (B
recognised and movements thereon during the current and ) LR FEREEE T
prior years:

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
MBS IRITE RIEEsE wREt
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET TET TET
. R-F A
At 1 April 2014 A —A 9,303 (9,303) -
Charge (credit) to profit or loss i=tas il AGYN) 1,705 (1,705) -
R _F—LF
At 31 March 2015 =g=1—pH 11,008 (11,008) -
Charge (credit) to profit or loss RIBEIRR GrA) 1,780 (1,780) -
At 31 March 201 A 12,788 12,788
t arc 6 —g=1—nR , (12, ) -
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated AR e B RENESMmsS, EhBEERIEEE
statement of financial position, the above deferred tax assets NEEE TS,
and liabilities have been offset.
As at 31 March 2016, the Group has unused tax losses of ATE—RKE—B=+—H, AEEEXRFER
HK$748,455,000 (2015: HK$593,564,000) available 15 j8518748,4550005 77 (—E— R £ © 593,564,000
for offsetting against future taxable profits. A deferred Er) o] B LKA R ARESRI AR, T _EhEETE
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses of 77,502,000 71 (ZE— R | 66,717,000 1) B HE
HK$77,502,000 (2015: HK$66,717,000). No deferred tax SUIEERIBE E, HRKREERETE R IGEFIFR, )
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax I L R e5 AR TE 5 18670,953,0008 ¢ (—E— R 4 ©
losses of HK$670,953,000 (2015: HK$526,847,000) due 596,847,000877) FER A B ERIBEE, FFHER
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The unused 15518 0] T HE R HA S 8,
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
As at 31 March 2016, the Group has deductible temporary ATE—RFE=H=+—H, K&EEHE26,015000
difference of HK$216,015,000 (2015: HK$78,905,000). EHIL (CE—ALE 78,905,000 7T) AR E B =
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation 2B, NN AKD e BrER AR Er IR ERE=
to such temporary difference as it is not probable that FRRIEI 2 B, Mm% E iR T R E=5amEsY
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible AIRERIEE E,
temporary difference can be utilised.
In addition, there are no undistributed earnings of The PRC o, RoEBE—REN_E—FE=H=+—H,
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 and 2015. HmAOFENE AT Rk EER,
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. fRAK
Number of
ordinary shares
at HK$2.00 Amount
per share G|
220078 T HK$ 000
ZERRMNEE TETT
Authorised: EZEE o
At 1 April 2014 AZE—PUEMHE—H 1,500,000,000 3,000,000
Increase of authorised share o S A
canital INEE R A (a) 1,000,000,000 2,000,000
pi

NZEB—RAFER
At 31 March 2015 and 2016 “E—REF 2,500,000,000 5,000,000

=B=+—-8

Issued and fully paid: BT RERE

At 1 April 2014 AZE—PUFEMAE—H 449,596,510 899,193
Issue of placing shares BT E RN, (b) 471,270,500 949,541

NZEBE—RAFER
At 31 March 2015 and 2016 —EF—R 920,867,010 1,841,734

=B=+—H
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 19
December 2014, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$3,000,000,000
divided into 1,500,000,000 shares of HK$2.00

each to HK$5,000,000,000 by the creation of an
additional 000,000,000 new shares of HK$2.00
each. The increased authorised ordinary shares rank pari

passu with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

On 20 November 2014, the Company announced that
it had entered into a placing agreement to raise up to
HK$1,560,000,000 through a placing of shares and
convertible bonds, with an upsize option in the amount
up to HK$780,000,000, within the placing price
range of HK$3.00 to HK$4.00 per share while the
conversion price of the placing convertible bonds will be

the same as placing price (the “Placing”).

The Placing was completed on 16 January 2015. Total of
294,233,500 placing shares and 177,037,000 placing
shares were issued at a placing price of HK$3.00 per
placing share on 8 January 2015 and 16 January 2015,
respectively, under the specific mandate granted to the
directors pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in
the special general meeting of the Company held on 19
December 2014. All the shares issued by the Company
ranked pari passu with the then existing shares of the
Company in all respects. Details of the completion of
the Placing are set out in an announcement dated 16
January 2015.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2015 ranked pari passu with the
then existing shares of the Company in all respects.

39. BEA
MEE -

(a)

(b)

REE—
ﬁZ%Eﬁ%EWT%ﬁEEK

MEBERFEN,

) BEBEREN_S—NUFE+_A+HLHBBEZ
TERESR, FIBIEEEESN,000,000,0004%
SR.00B T2 FR, NRNBZEERAH
3,000,000,00075 7T (79 451,500,000,000% & A%
2005752 f&17) 18 1Z5,000,000,0005 Tt0
B AEEBREANSREEEREERSF
FERo

AT

N — T3

ME+—B=+H, ARBEEME] 1Lk
iz, BBRERMD N IERESEES0E
BT, LB £ESEISOEBTNIBEE, &
AL E R MBS B E BN F3.0075 7T 24.00
BT, MELE R ESNERER EEE(EHE
B (MEEE1E)) .

PREEBER _E—AF—8+/ HEM. &%
294,233,5000% Bt & A% 17 52177,037,0004% Bt & %15
PDRR_E—RAF—FB/\ AR5 —HF—H
+ARARBANBRER-_E—UFE+_H+h
HETCREFIAS EBBeEEARRET
%%z%%u%ﬂ%%@a%ﬁ F3.0057TE T, &
NEIRTZPMERMNDERABERCIREERMNE
FEFEEZERSEER. BERTREEEBCHFE
EVATAZN/N=] | = 15 P f—ﬁfﬁ B+7SBEZ .

—hF=R=1t—HIEFERRLTH
B ERZIRER
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 33. fBRRIEST 2
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (o) AN EIFERRERT S
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme () —EERFERETE
The share option scheme of the Company adopted ARNBIN BB AFNA T BN E R E
on 7 September 2005 (the "2005 Share Option 8 (TS HFEBERESTE ) ERZF
Scheme”) expired on 7 September 2015. All the —hEABLH Eﬁﬁg jﬁ{%:;ﬁ%ﬁﬂf,ﬁ%}ﬁ
then outstanding share options granted under the 2R EMRERERTELHA BRIE
2005 Share Option Scheme continue to be valid Hﬁ}fﬁ%%jﬁ:&ﬁl&ﬂ@ﬁ%:%;ﬁﬁfﬁ,ﬁ%%@%%
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the BT,
2005 Share Option Scheme.
Details of movements in the share options of the BHE S NF-A=-ft—HIFFEANT
Company granted under the 2005 Share Option IRIE_SE A FERESE RN BRES
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2016 are B FBW T

as fO”OWS:

Number of shares of the Company to be issued

upon exercise of the share options

Name of grantee Date of grant

tihl=k

Directors £
1279013
;Le‘?he” Fung 2= 3,600,000 - - 3600,000 680 645 piid
ks B4R i)
1279013
Peter Lee Coler e 3,600,000 ; 3,600,000 680 645 %%
tA+-H 5
1979013
pufofienom -~ = 3,600,000 : - 3600000 680 T
ER £A 28 =
1279013 Nofol
Walter Craig Power “EF-—= 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 6.80 6.45 e
tA+_H
1979013
James Chiu e i i Note
S B 360,000 360,000 680 645 He
1279013
§E§¢hn e 360,000 ] . 30000 680 645 %%}
B tB+-A ;
lain Ferguson Bruce 1272013 Note1
ﬁ%ig “E-=F 360,000 - - 360,000 680 645 i
= tE+ZH §
1279013 Nofol
Francis Goutenmacher “EF—= 360,000 - - 360,000 6.80 6.45 e
tﬁ+7E
Sl 15,840,000 : - 15840,000
INEF
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 33 BERRestEl (8
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) RNFIFERRESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —BESHFERETSE (8

Number of shares of the Company to be issued

upon exercise of the share

Name of grantee Date of grant

tihil=ks

Employees (Inaggregate) (B (&5f)

12.7.0013 Note]
_ECF 3,600,000 . - 3,600,000 6.80 645 i
tA+_H
12.7.9013 Nofe
EF 800,000 - (400,000) 400,000 680 645 a0
tA+=H
12.7.0013
_E-c-fF 900,000 - - 900,000 680 6.45 NM‘T’%
tA+=H ;
12.7.0013
“E--F 160,000 J - 160,000 6.80 645 “&'T?Ej
tA+_H
1279013
“E—-F 1,150,000 - - 150,000 680 6.45 NM%?
tA+ZH ’
12.7.0013
ek 460,000 | - 460000 680 645 'Eﬁ’*gg
tA+=H ;
12.7.9014 1o
179013 —2 hn
E-CF 138,000 . . 138,000 680 645 51—z
tATZH e tE
tA+-H
3092013 Note7
5=k 847,000 1 (159,000) 688,000 690 6.89 i
jlﬁ :+ E' il
1510013
E—& 289,000 - . 989,000 810 793 %fgg
+TE+ER ’
18.7.2014
“E-ME 999,000 . . 999,000 6.80 598 %’ﬁg
tB+N\H ;
16.49015
“E-RE - 401,000 - 401,000 6.80 287 'Eﬁ’*%}g
MA+7H ’
if?ﬁ“' 9573000 401000  (559,000) 9415000
=}
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 33. fRARIESTEI (F8)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (a) RNEEBERXMESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —BESHFBERETSE (8

Number of shares of the Company to be issued

upon exercise of the share

Name of grantee Date of grant

tihl=k

Other Participants (In aggregate) ELft 2 612 (£5H)

- 970,000 - (120000)  1150,000 680 645 %’fg
+tA+-H i
]E'MOB, Note 4
“E-F 450,000 . . 450,000 680 645 e
tA+-H ’
12'72013, Note 11
“E-Cf 960,000 - - 90,000 680 645 it
+tA+_H ’
9839014 .
= mE 112,000 - i 112,000 8590 897 Mk
=A~+/\H
ngf’“" 9,092,000 - (120000) 1972000

‘ 27,505,000‘ 401,000 (679,000)] 27,227,000
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 33. fRARIESTEI (F8)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) ZNFIEERESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —BESHFERETSE (8
Details of movements in the share options of the HE_E—AF=A=1+—HIEFEARNH
Company granted under the 2005 Share Option RIE_EE A FERETEEHC BRES
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2015 are Ed=a =
as follows:

Number of shares of the Company to be issued Closing price 0

upon exercise of the share options

Name of grantee Date of grant

Etulabd

Directors 5
1279013
iﬁhﬂ;ﬂ Hung - S 3,600,000 ; ; - 3600000 680 645 ';;’f{:
e tE+2H ’
1279013 -
PeterLeeCober)r. ~ —E—= 3,600,000 - - - 3600000 680 645 Mg%
tH+_H :
1279013
;ﬁ?févm LU e 3600000 : : - 3600000 680 645 %’g
=E tA+-H i
1079013 o
Walrer CaigPower ~~ —E—= 3,600,000 - - - 3600000 680 645 M;):ﬂ
tE+-H ;
, 1279013
%?éghm “E-= 360,000 ; ; ; 360,000 680 645 ';?ff:
tB+_F ;
1279013
bfg%“k el 8= 360,000 - - - 360,000 680 645 NM%
- tA+ZH :
, 1279013
L‘;;Egm e —2 s 360000 : : %0000 680 645 m}
- tA+_H ;
1279013 o
Froncis Goutermacher ~ ~E—= 360,000 - - : 360,000 680 645 M;):ﬂ
tE+_H ’
il 15,640,000 : : - 15840000
li5)
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 33. fRARESTEI (F8)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) RNEEBERXMESTE] (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —BShFERETSE (8

Number of shares of the Company to be issued Closing price 0

upon exercise of the share options

Name of grantee Date of grant

Etulabd

Employees (In aggregate) (2 (&3F)

1272013

5= 3,600,000 . - - 3600000 680 645 NM‘?%
TR+ i
1279013 400,000 .
o5k 400,000 i (Note 3) - 800000 680 645 M%Q
tA+ZH (&)
1279013
oo Note 3
“E-= 200,000 . - (300000 900000 680 645 s
tB+ZH i
1279013 Netod
- 1160,000 1 1 - 1160000 680 645 M?& )
tA+ZH
1279013 Note§
BTk 150,000 . . - 1150000 680 645 M%’%
tB+-A i
1279013 60,000 Note 6
&= 400,000 1 (Note13) - 460,000 680 645 M}J& .
tA+ZA (&)
127901410
1272013 _gﬁéog
22— 138,000 . - - 138,000 680 045 o oz
£B+H Celix
tA+-H
3099013
—E - Note 7
- ey 985,000 i - (38000) 847000 690 689 i
HB=+E ’
15100013 Note§
2= 989,000 . - - 289,000 810 703 M%&
+A+EA
1879014 Noted
TE-mE i 99,000 i l 999,000 680 598 M?%
tA+N\R
i“\i’f*"' 932,000 99,000 460000 (48000) 9573000
5]
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 33. BERRestEl (8
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (a) RN EEBRXMESTE (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —BShFERETSE (8

Number of shares of the Company to be issued Closing price 0

upon exercise of the share options

Oufstonding at] ~ Granted during] Reclassified during]  Lapsed during

Name of grantee Date of grant 4 the year

Etulabd

Other Participants (In aggregate) At B8 (55)

1279013 (400,000)

Bk 400000 S Nokel) i . 680 645 %’gz
tE+_A (Iz13)

107901410
107907 _‘Yé?g
—g= 12,000 i - (2000 . 680 4 5 —oa
tB+_H -

i

tA+-H
IELQOB Note 3
“E= 1970,000 i i - 1970000 680 o
tA+ZH ’
L Note 4
B =F 450,000 . = 5 450,000 680 645 ey
tB+_H
1079013 (60,000) ot
ZE-CF 60,000 - (Note 13} - - 680 645 Kiits
tE+-R (Bzm3) :
G Notel
2= 260,000 i i - 20000 680 o
tB+-H
Q_&MOM Note 12
“E-mE 12000 i i i 12000 859) W
ZA_t/\B ’

j“\gf“" 0564000 . [4%0000) (20000 209,000

27,796,000 229,000 ‘ (450,000)] 97,505,000
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

1.

The share options shall vest in 3 frcmches, as

to one-third on 12 July 2013, as to a further
one-third upon topping out of the hotel under
development on the Cotai Strip of Macau and
as to the final one-third upon opening of the
hotel under development on the Cotai Strip of
Macau. The share options are exercisable from
the dates on which the share options are vested
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 3 fronches, as to
one-third on 12 July 2014, as to a further one-
third on 12 July 2015 and as to the final one-
third on 12 July 2016. The share options are
exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 11 July 2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 8 fronches, as to
10%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 10%, 10%, 15% and 10% on
31 May 2013, 31 August 2013, 30 September
2013, 1 April 2014, 30 September 2014, 31
January 2016, 31 March 2016 and 31 December
2016, respectively, subject to the fulfilment of
certain vesting conditions. The share options

are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are Fu|Fi||ed, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 7 fronches, as

to 15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15%, 15% and 10% on 31
August 2013, 1 April 2014, 31 December 2014,
31 March 2015, 31 January 2016, 31 March 2016
and 31 December 2016, respectively, subject

to fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are
fulfilled, but in any event, exercisable until 11 July
2017 (both dates inclusive).

The share options shall vest in 4 frcmches, as to
25%, 25%, 25% and 25% on 31 August 2013,

1 April 2014, 31 August 2014 and 31 January
2016, respectively, subject to fulfilment of
certain vesting conditions. The share options
are exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are Fuh‘i”ed, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusive).
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) g

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) ( ) ZIK
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i)

Notes: (Continued)

6. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches,
as to 30%, 30% and 40% on 31 May 2013,
31 December 2014 and 31 March 2016,
respectively, subject to fulfilment of certain
vesting conditions. The share options are
exercisable for 18 months from the dates on
which certain vesting conditions are fulfilled, but
in any event, exercisable until 11 July 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

7. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one-third on 30 September 2014, as to a further
one-third on 30 September 2015 and as to the
final one-third on 30 September 2016. The
share options are exercisable from the aforesaid
vesting dates until 29 September 2017 (both
dates inclusive).

8. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one-third on 15 October 2014, as to a further
one-third on 15 October 2015 and as to the final
one-third on 15 October 2016. The share options
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates

until 14 October 2017 (both dates inclusive).

9. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one-third on 18 July 2015, as to a further one-
third on 18 July 2016 and as to the final one-
third on 18 July 2017. The share options are
exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates

until 17 July 2018 (both dates inclusive).

10. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to
one-third on 16 April 2016, as to a further one-
third on 16 April 2017 and as to the final one-
third on 16 April 2018. The share options are
exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates
until 15 April 2019 (both dates inclusive).

1. The share options shall vest in 2 tranches,
as to 75% and 25% on 15 January 2014 and
31 December 2015, respectively, subject to
fulfilment of certain vesting conditions. The
share options are exercisable for 18 months from
the dates on which certain vesting conditions are
fulfilled, but in any events, exercisable until 11
July 2017 (both dates inclusive).
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 33. BEARAESTE (18)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (o) AT EERR#EETEI (18)
(i) 2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued) () —ESRFERETE (B)

Notes: (Continued) MiEE @ (i8)

12. The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as 12 BRESD=HMEE, =0 2BRERT
to one-third on 28 March 2015, as to a further BE—RF= E JF/N HRE, SHA=n—
one-third on 28 March 2016 and as to the final ZERER_E—NE=ZRB_+/\BH
one-third on 28 March 2017. The share options B, RBE=9 Zgﬁﬁﬁffg A B —LF=
are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting dates BZ+/\BHEB. BRER LAFESBEA

until 27 March 2018 (both dates inclusive). EECE—/\E=A -+t HEM (24

BEEMX) Bl Tk,

15, Certain persons were re-classified from the

category of "Other Participants” to “Employees”

on 21 May 2014 and 1 November 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, 401,000
share options were granted on 16 April 2015 to an
employee of the Group. The fair values of the options
determined at the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing Model were HK$146,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, 229,000
share options were granted on 18 July 2014 to an
employee. The fair value of the options determined
at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model was HK$448,000.

The fair value was calculated using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing model. The inputs into the

13 BT AR _ZE—BFAE—-+—H
N_E—ME+—HB—HHETHtm2EE
EynBEAaEE Z1ER,

BE_E—NF=H=1t—HIFE,
401,000 BEREN —F—AFME +/SHE
T—RAEEES, RIEHBHRNBR IR —
SRR CERENETCCERENTES
146,00075 710

HE_E—AF=-B=+—HILEE,
2290001‘E%Hx$?£ﬁ\fﬂ mELS+0\H
B—2EE. REHBBAABRN=—
WA EEREECBRENTES
448,00075 70

RNEEDHFBRN R —FERREERI
R, BRI ZBAZBOT

mode| were as fO”OWS:

18 July 2014 16 April 2015

“E—hF

tE+/\H mA+/<H

Closing share price as at the date of grant R BBz WHE HK$5.99 &7, HK$2.8975 71

Exercise price 7B HK$6.80 78 7T HK$6.8075 7T

Expected life FTERREE AR 4 years & 4 years &

Expected volatility FEHR IR 45.77% 45.03%

Risk-free rate R @A) == 111% 0.88%

Expected dividend yield TEHAR B K Nil Nil £
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

0]

2005 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model has been
used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value

of the options.
2015 Share Option Scheme

On 11 August 2015 (the "Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
2015 Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to any employees,
executives or oﬁcicers, directors of the Group or

any invested entity and any consultant, adviser or
agent of any member of the Group or any invested
entity, who have contributed or will contribute to
the growth and development of the Group or any
invested entity (the "Eligible Person”). The 2015
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of ten years from the Adoption Date.

Under the 2015 Share Option Scheme, the directors
of the Company may at their discretion grant
options to any Eligible Person to subscribe for shares
in the Company. Consideration to be paid on each
grant of option is HK$1.00. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company and
will be at least the higher of: (i) the subscription price
as is permissible under Listing Rules from time to
time; and (i) the nominal value of the shares of the

Company.

Any options granted pursuant to the 2015 Share
Option Scheme will be exercised over a period

of not more than 10 years from the date of grant
of the relevant options (subject to the provisions
for early termination contained in the 2015 Share
Option Scheme).
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

% 1
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) ( ) AR
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued) Gy —

The maximum number of shares that may initially
be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2015 Share Option Scheme

and any other share option scheme(s) adopted

by the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at its Adoption Date, i.e. 92,086,701
shares of the Company. Subject to the approval

of the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting, the limit may be refreshed to 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. Notwithstanding the
forgoing, the maximum number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2015 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares of the Company

in respect of which options may be granted to

each Eligible Person under the 2015 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including both exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

of the Company in issue from time to time unless
such grant has been duly approved by shareholders
of the Company in general meeting at which the
Eligible Person and his associate (as defined in

the Listing Rules) abstained from voting. Options
granted to a substantial shareholder and/or an
independent non-executive director of the Company
or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period in excess
of 0.1% of the total number of the Company in issue
and have an aggregate value exceeding HK$5
million must be approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting in advance.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

33. fRARIESTEI (F8)
(o) ZREIFEARAEFTE (18)
(i) “S—hEBERESTE (8

ARNBRBE_S—NF=B=1+—HIEF
ERBE S —AFERET 8 H B E
B oFBNT

Details of movements in the share options of the
Company granted under the 2015 Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2016 are

as ]COHOWS:

Name of grantee

Directors and their spouses EERHER

Number of shares of the Company to be issued

upon exercise of the share options

A=+-0
HAITE

Stephen Hung 18.9.2015 Note
s - - 9,207,500 9,207,500 3.00 298 -
KB _E-1FNAT/\B Mat
18.9.2015 Note
Peter Lee Coker Jr. = _rEAEING = 9,907,500 9,907,500 3.00 298 e
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom 18.9.2015 Note
o ' - - 9,207,500 9,207,500 3.00 298 _
2ER ZE-LFEARTNE s
18.9.2015 Note
i _ - 9 9 | . ,
Walter Craig Power —E_REHELNR 907,500 907,500 3.00 298 izt
James Chiu 18.9.2015 Note
. = - 816,000 816,000 3.00 298 -
EE “E-REAATNE (i
Lee Chack Fan 18.9.2015 Note
_ - 816,000 816,000 3.00 298 _
)25 “E-RFEAATNH M5k
lain Ferguson Bruce 18.9.2015 Note
- - 816,000 816,000 3.00 298 ,
mEL ZE-LEABTNE fist
Francis Goutenmacher ]E;QEISEEHH 1R = 816,000 816,000 3.00 298 ,’%Og;
Chan Kok Chung, Johnny 18.9.2015 Note
_ - 816,000 816,000 3.00 298 .
BER “E-RENATN\H (2
Deborah Alejandra Voldez Perez 1539016 Note
(spouse of Stephen Hung) o = 180,000 180,000 300 2.08 ot
CHXBEE) 8 i
Sub-total
~ - 41,090,000 41,090,000
NG
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

33. lERREETE (F8)
(o) RN EEBERXMESTE (18)
(iy —B—AFEBRETE (B

Number of shares of the Company to be issued

upon exercise of the shore options

Name of grantee

Employees (In aggregate) 82 (531)

18.9.2015 Note
= - 19,200,000 19,200,000 3.00 228 ,
“E-REARTI\H M5t
153.2016 Note
e e - 875,000 875,000 3.00 2.08 =
—_F—\¥=F+IH Mat
S“E'mml - 90,075,000 20,075,000
/gt
Other participants (In aggregate) ~ 18.9.2015 Note
A= — - 1,290,000 1,290,000 3.00 228 _
HitB8E (B5h) “E-RENA+/\H g
o - 1290,000 1,290,000
gt
—| 62,455,000| |
Note:  The share options shall vest in 3 tranches, as to MizE . BRESI=HMEFE, =90 —<ERENR_
one-third on 18 September 2016, as to a further = SFEARFN\BRE, ZH="—2
one-third on 18 September 2017 and as to the ERERN _—_E—tF B +/\BHRE, &
final one-third on 18 September 2018. The share B —CBERIER _E—N\ENB+/\
options are exercisable from the aforesaid vesting AgE, EREgEREERE s RS
dates until 17 September 2019 (both dates “E—NFNAB+CHEEE SEEEm
inclusive). *) 5] F171E,
During the year ended 31 March 2016, 61,400,000 HE_ NE=ZH=1+—HItEFE,

and 1,055,000 share options were granted on 18
September 2015 and 15 March 2016, respectively,
to the directors of the Company, employees of the
Group and advisers which perform similar services
as employees, of which 40,910,000 share options
were granted to the directors of the Company on
18 September 2015 and 180,000 share options
were granted to the spouse of a director of the
Company on 15 March 2016. The fair values of
the options determined at the date of grant using
the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model were
HK$35,986,000 and HK$400,000, respectively.
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61 400, oooﬁa‘&l 055,00017 BE R PE 7 B RS —
—ARAFABR+N\BER_E—FNF=B+HA
El%-ﬁw!: \BEFR. AEERENER L
REBMIRMHBEMART) , &540,910,00017
BREN—E—RENS T/ \BETALNT
EE, NXI80,000ERIENR_E—/"F=
B+REHEFANE —RESZ=20EH. RE
HEBAN BRI SR BRI
EZ BB ENF{E D B #35,986,00078 7T M
400,00078 7T
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—NE=A=+—HLFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(a) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

(i) 2015 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value was calculated using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

33. BRESTE (8)

(@) AR 7 %Hﬂ% 5tE (18)
(i) “S—hERRETE (8

NEETFBRD TR EEBR
8. HXRINZB AN T ¢

15 March 20

18 September 2015 16
“E-HAFNAB+TNB|ZE—RF=A+AH

Closing share price as at the

date of grant
Exercise price ITEE
Expected life TRHAF HA
Expected volatility FEHRR TR
Risk-free rate 7% B [ 1 ==
Expected dividend yield TEARR B

The Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model has been
used to estimate the fair value of the options. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables and
assumptions may result in changes in the fair value
of the options.

An amount of HK$20,736,000 (2015:
HK$19,003,000) of share based payment expenses
has been recognised during the year ended 31 March
2016 with corresponding increase in share option
reserve. Included in the amount of HK$20,736,000
(2015: HK$19,003,000) of share-based payment
expenses, an amount of HK$3,115,000 (2015:
HK$2,759,000) of share-based payment expenses
was recognised as expense in profit or loss and an
amount of HK$17,621,000 (2015: HK$16,244,000)
was capitalised in hotel under development for their

contributions to the hotel project.
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REFEL B EHE

HK$2.2275 77 HK$2.085 7T
HK$3.007E 7T HK$3.0078 7T
4 yearstE 3.5 years&E
4516% 39.83%

0.79% 0.88%

Nil 5 Nil 4

BAHR—FHAAEEERA T ANGEE
REC LN TE. BLUGIEBRELTEZE
EBRBRDMEBEES CREMGEE. 28K
RERZE I EHBRBEL T ENE,

BE_ S NEF-A=+—HLEEERE
10 A ERE 2 I R F 2 2 8020,736,00075 7T (=
EF—FALF 119,003,000/57T) , HERINET AR
R, AR AER 2 FFIS220,736,000
BT (CZE—FRF 119,003,000E7T) B, A
3,115,000 75 (ZE—F 4 © 2,759,000 7T) 2 1L
D AER IR ENIERERARS, M
AE7,621,0008 70 (ZE— A4 16,244,00075
70) 2 UMD AR 2 ARG B BEEE
BB TTERENAIE B R,
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments
Limited ("Falloncroft”)
On 5 February 2013, the Company completed its
acquisition of the entire equity interest in Falloncroft
from an independent third party for a cash consideration
of HK$2,000,000,000 (the "Acquisition”) in which
Falloncroft becomes a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. Upon the completion of the Acquisition,
Falloncroft adopted a share option scheme and granted
options that would, for a subscription and capital
contribution, in cash, of up to HK$600,000,000,
entitle Chief Wise Limited ("Chief Wise"), an affiliate
of Mr Stephen Hung (joint chairman and the
executive director of the Company), to subscribe for
600,000,000 shares of Falloncroft. Chief Wise may
assign these options to the management of Falloncroft
as it sees fit.

The scheme was structured such that the option holders
on exercise, will always have to pay the same pro

rata amount (up to the lesser of 10% of the equity
capital (including shareholders' loan) of Falloncroft or
HK$600,000,000) for the shares of Falloncroft as
the Company pays for its interest in Falloncroft. Holders
of the options subscribing for Falloncroft Shares, on
exercise of the options, have the right to require the
Company to purchase their respective holdings of the
shares of Falloncroft in exchonge for an allotment

and issue of new ordinary shares of the Company,
determined based on a Formu|ar, with details set out in
a circular of the Company dated 5 January 2013.

As Mr Stephen Hung is the joint chairman and the
executive director of the Company, the fair value of

the above share options are measured at fair value

and accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 2 with
reference to the valuation at grant date, 5 February
2013, carried out by an independent valuer. The fair
value of services to be received from Mr Stephen

Hung as a director is determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted and is expensed

on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve)
of Falloncroft which represents an increase in non-
controlling interests in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. An amount of HK$5,785,000 (2015:
HK$9,344,000) share-based payment expense has
been recognised during the year ended 31 March 2016
with a corresponding increase in non-controlling interests
as the share options are granted by a subsidiary of the
Company.
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G 1

(b) Fo||oncroﬂ Investments Limited (IFalloncroftl) 2 §&

B M 5T 2

NZEBE—=—F"_FAH, AREIERE—%
B8 = H W HEFalloncroft2 B8R HE, IR (UE
#42,000,000,00078 7T (MWEEEIE]) , #It,
Falloncroftil AR NBl 2 £ BB LBl MRERUL
BEEIE12, Falloncroftifi 7 BB AR EST B! I 4% T B
%@,@Kuﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ%wqmqwo
75 71 B AR Chief Wise Limited (I Chief Wise |, A<23
BlMEETERNTETHKFAECHEBER
&) 5288600,000,000%Falloncrofti& 17 =2 #& 7,
Chief Wise AJ 12 H 33 418 E R X SRR EIEE T
Falloncroftz B2 /&,

STEIETAEE, LUERBREFE ARTEESS
B EMEE, AN BT ERFalloncroftZ #E R PT
TFRIE, L EEFEEEER (BB AFalloncroftz 10%A% 4%
(BHEREBER) £600,000,0008 T BIEE) o
IR S AR BRI 1T R R SR EE FalloncroftAR 17 2 FE AR
BRFEANBEEZRAN TE%E\WZ%XEPE?%Z
Falloncrofti2 17, WUAHBECEE N B8 1T AN B HT &

B, BREAGTEANEHRAEN TE%%*i——
F—HAAHZEHR,

BN KR REAARNBCHETERINITE
=, FRBEBREC N TFEIRSREBIIGEMR
BHAHE G ZES—=F"_FARH) ETzHE
BINFETE, I[@H%é%ﬁ?fﬁ%&i%@%%ﬁ
AR MK AEHTERKESRB A
BB EMBRHEBRES N FEET, Ihzé
AR EEBIARNS 18, FIRFEREEIIFalloncrofti#
= (BRERE , HERAEBRFAUEREL
;H”Hﬂ%éi“mo A A B8 AR T F3 AN =) — [T

NEEHE, BE_SB—"E-RB=+—HILE
ﬁﬁéﬁu/uuﬁxf/ﬁﬁjﬁﬁ"mw%ﬁ%ﬂiﬁjs 785,000
7T (CE—FRF © 9,344,00087T) , FEIRIEEL
NNFEIERS FE 2%
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 33. BEARIESTEI ()
(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments (b) Falloncroft Investments Limited (TFalloncroftl) 2 8&
Limited (‘Falloncroft”) (Continued) RS2 (18)
There are 3 tranches of shares to be issued, in which EE1T = H R, RAARRFIBE B
180,000,000 options are attached to each of Series A H180,000,00010 BEAR#E, T RFICHH
and B, and 240,000,000 share options are attached 240,000,00017 ERRHE, N\ F{EIZRIA ﬁ%fﬁ’ﬁﬁ
to Series C. The fair values were calculated using the A EEENTE, BEREHBHANZER
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. The inputs based B ABIRLT -
on assumed vesting period into the models were as
follows:
Series A Series B Series C
RAIA X5B R3C
Weighted average share price of ANBIRMDZ St — —— ey —
.607 K$0.60; HK$0.60;
the shares of the Company INEFHRE nl0E0E HIS =75 3 ST
Exercise price (Note) 178 (HEh) HK$0.6875 7T, HK$0.6875 7T HK$0.6875 7T,
Expected volatility TEET R IR 49.95% 49.95% 49.95%
Expected dividend yield TEETR B Nil 45 Nl 4% Nl #
Expected life TEET R 5 years & 5 years 5 years
Risk-free rate R A 0.591% 0.591% 0.591%

. . A\ /75 L 48h 2
AEUIEE I (BT 23 REATRBRAE 2 Immediately BIBF 29 months 291& & 41 months 411& 3

issue of option* R 7€ 55 B HA*

Estimated fair value (EE NS = HK$9,922,00075 70 HK$11,472,00075 71 HK$15,709,0007 7T,

Note: With effect from 27 May 2013, the exercise price BOEE - HRETROEH, B :%E_E?EEE
was adjusted from HK$0.68 to HK$6.80 as a “+tHiE, TFEERH0ETHES
result of the share consolidation. 6.8075 70

* The vesting conditions for the 3 tranches of share * CHERECSEBEAENT
options are as follows:

Series A: Completion of the sales and purchase KA - SER R BEFalloncroftE ] 17 2 B B 3%,

agreement for the acquisition of Falloncroft Bt BN —E—=F_8 A HEM.

in which the agreement was completed on 5
February 2013.

Series B: Completion of the Acquisition and the roof RAB ¢ FERMWERIE N A R EIE (EMIE4PT
topping out in respect of the hotel under WEeEREPBE) (DEE) «HIEL
development (refer to the hotel under %o
development as disclosed in note 14) (the
"Hotel").

Series C: Completion of the condition stated at Series B RAC ¢ SER SR EBBFT IR & 1 K YA TE Y
above and the opening of the casino operated K& EEIZRER.

within the Hotel.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme of Falloncroft Investments
Limited ("Falloncroft”) (Continued)
No options were granted, exercised or cancelled under
the share option scheme of Falloncroft during the years

ended 31 March 2015 and 2016.

34. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE FINANCING
PLAN

(a) Share award scheme
On 6 September 2006, share award scheme was
adopted by the Company. The share award scheme
allows the Company to make bonus payments to
eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) by way
of the Company's shares acquired by and held through
an independent trustee until fulfilment of specified
conditions before vesting.

On 15 February 2014, shares with fair value of
HK$6,000,000 were awarded to an individual
consultant (the "Consultant”) for his contribution to the
hotel project in which the number of shares awarded
will be calculated at the market closing price on the
date of fulfilment of specified conditions rounded to
nearest whole trading lots (500 shares per lot). The
shares awarded shall vest in 5 tranches, as to 30%, 10%,
10%, 30% and 20% on 26 March 2014, 31 July 2014,
30 September 2015, 30 September 2015 and 30 June
2016, respectively, subject to certain vesting conditions.

On 19 February 2014, total of 588,500 shares of the
Company were awarded to a consultancy company
for their contributions to the hotel project. The shares
awarded shall vest in 5 tranches, as approximate to
20%, 20%, 20%, 20% and 20% on 26 March 2014,
31 July 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 30 June
2016, respectively, subject to certain vesting conditions.

On 3 October 2014, total of 22,000,000 shares of the
Company were awarded to a consultancy company for
its contributions to the hotel project. The shares awarded
shall vest on 31 December 2014, subject to certain
vesting conditions.
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AR 8 ()

(b) Falloncroft Investments Limited (IFalloncroftl) 2 88

RE#E5T 2 (18)
BHE_E—RFEN_F—RF=A=+—HILF
E AR R FalloncroftBE AR HEFTEI$% . 17188k EE
IR,

(o) BRAIDEZRDETE

RIBFEANENANE, AREFMRDEZRF
g, RNERFEBFEALTRGTERAL (S
EAEECES. EF. B SZHRARMAEN
MUARRBRMBVTEIURBICRL, LLERDRE—
LBUREABARSEEEEENRBGRTE
A4 LEo

RTE—ME_B+AH, 2 8R—&EA
B (TR ) 3B T /R F18 46,000,000/ 712 %
R, URBEHBEEE 2SR/, B,
P~ RHE B B EOZER R &M 2 R,
WHE, ITEEERBICEEESTEN (8F
S008RA1R) 5158, FTEERR MDD AR E, 8D
30%. 10%. 10%. 30%M220%7) BIIfA — 25 —PU4E
=B-_+/"H. ZE—MWMELtA=1+—H. =&
—AHAFENAB=+H. _ BE—AFAA=FTEAK_
E—RNFRB=THEB, EIRNETHEEX
5,

RIEBE—MF_B+NH, AR EHE—FREM

NEIE T & F588,500 R R MD1EE), UKRIGEE
BIEEE SR FTEEEIRMEDAMERS, 19
20%. 20%. 20%. 20%)720%7) BlIfS — 55—
=A-+/"H. _E—MWMELtA=1+—H. =&
—RESNA=+H. _B—AENA=ZtHEET
E—RNFARB=THEE, EXRRETHERK
5,

RIEBE—MNE+HA=H, A E8H—FKREBLT
255 1£22,000,0008% & 17 12 B, UFXHZHEH
JRIEEZER/. FTRERMOER -E—NUF+=
B=+—HHRE, HEIERNETHBIEML,

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

34. SHARE AWARD SCHEME AND SHARE FINANCING
PLAN (Conﬁnucd)

(a) Share award scheme (Continued)
On 23 November 2015, 2,100,000 and 1,130,000
shares of the Company were awarded to various
employees and advisers respectively for their
contribution to the hotel project. The shares awarded
shall vest in 2 tranches, as to 20% and 80% on 15
December 2015 and soft opening of the Company's
Macau hotel, respectively, subject to certain vesting
conditions.

These transactions were accounted for as equity-settled
share-based payment transactions in equity over the
vesting period based on the market price of the relevant
shares at the grant dates.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, share-

based payment expense of HK$5,584,000 (2015:
HK$92,045,000) was recognised over the vesting
period and capitalised in hotel under development with
corresponding increase in share award reserve for their
contributions to the hotel project.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, total of
646,000 (2015: 22,219,000) shares of the Company
have been vested upon the fulfilment of specified
conditions. Included in total of 22,219,000 shares
vested during the year ended 31 March 2015, total of
101,500 vested shares of the Company granted to the
Consultant was calculated at the market closing price on
the date of fulfilment of a specified condition rounded to
nearest whole trading lots (500 shares per lot).

Upon vesting and transfer to the awardees, the related
costs of the vested shares of HK$2,452,000 (2015:

HK$93,299,000) are credited to shares held for share
award scheme, and the related fair value of the vested
shares of HK$1,246,000 (2015: HK$88,933,000) are

debited to share award reserve.

(b) Share financing plan
On 6 September 2006, share financing plan was
adopted by the Company. The share financing plan
allows eligible persons (including employees, directors,
consultants, advisers and agents of the Group) fo borrow
funds from the Company or from a company within the
Group to acquire new or old shares of the Company on
a non-recourse basis with the subject shares pledged to
the Company as security subject always to connected
transaction and other relevant provisions under the
Listing Rules.

None of the eligible persons of the Group acquired any
of the Company's shares under the share financing plan
during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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A_E—RAF+—B"+=H, AT HIMAZ
ZiEE N5 A T2,100,0008% 1,130,0008%

1 i2E), MURGHEBEES ZE5/. FTiEE
BRI DMt sEE, 20%Kk80% N R _E—h
F+ "B +AHBNMARNEEFZBIERERS

B, MEXERETREBIES.

ZERXSRARRNINE L Bz BN B
ANRIBIIR N DR B LUR I A BB 2 (TR
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REBEE_E—RE=A=+—RHIEEEA, ER
57 B HAFE SR LURR D A B FE 2 (S B 555,584,000
BT (CE—FAF 1 92,045000/E87T) , WHEETEEE
BHEEZER, BELINET ARKDER R,
KRB EEBEEER 2 Sk

RBEE_E—E=A=+—RHIEEER, F=
B R, EHBEIL646,000% (5 —*H
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F=H=+—HIEFERAEF22219,0008 8 B
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TEBRERBEOICEEEBB N (BF5008A
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REFBNEETEREI AR AR, BBERMDZIE
R A 7<2,452,00078 71 (B —FA £ | 93,299,000
Bt BEt AU BT 2B 2R MM,
538 B0 2 AB RN T (E1,246,00055 70 (B —4
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RZBRREFENANE, ARTHEMARNEBEST
g, RNMEABIBFERAL (SELAEE

EBE. %, B, B AKKEN) ARRE

HAEEN—BRIERUEEREEERFEELR
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RBEEZE—REFER_E-—AF=RF=+—HI
FER, BIEAERSERATREBERNOBEST
EIBEEIALTRM.

THE 13 HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN Gl e

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,

which includes the bank borrowings and convertible bonds
disclosed in notes 29 and 30, respectively, net of cash and
cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As a part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

. BEXRREEE

$$%ﬁﬁé$; DFERAEEE N B8
BRE, BB LB NIERGERAREERE
KO, RIBEEE, AEBCEERRHERS A,

FEBCEREREREER FME, IEDHIRHE
29K 301% BE 2 SRIT AU Pl R (B 25 (HIFRIR & K

HIRSEEEE) RANBHEE NEERELE (HaE
BETRARHER) o

FRBEEERNBERENEE, (FARETZ—
R, ESEREAMAEZEHEAERZ AR,
FEBSIEBES CEZEERMVRE. BITHR
LR EH BRI BH TR BB E A
o

TRITE
() ERT BRI

2016 2015
—B e —=-—ns
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FA7 T
Financial assets ERIEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and EFLER A (23R e
cash equivalents) NMEIBSEEER) 2,985,991 601,396
Financial liabilities TRBE
Amortised cost [ 3iSIn %N 5,148,832 4,144,670
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. Rt T B (18)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other debfors, amounts due from associates,
joint ventures, joint operations/other partners of joint
operations and subsidiaries of a shoreho|der, other loans
receivable, pledged bank deposits, short term bank
deposifs, bank balances and cosh, trade and other
credifors, amounts due to associates, a joint venture,
joint operations/other partners of joint operations and
subsidiaries of a shareholder, loan from a subsidiory
of a shareholder, bank borrowings and convertible
bonds. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risks (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.

Market risks

(i) Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Company have trade
and other debfors, short term bank deposifs, bank
balances and cash and trade and other creditors
denominated in foreign currencies, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities as at the reporting date are as
follows:

(b) &R E R EE B IR REER

AEET BT/ T BRI E S M EMBURUA,
FEIERS NE), A8 b¥E. BEER/SEER
HEMB AN — AR BATNIR. EAME
WERM. BEMRITER EHRRTER. |/IT
meRRIRE. B5 REMENUA, EAHEQ
g, —RHaEbhE GEER SEEBEMNE
HFR—RBRRZHMBLARNIA —AREZ—E
B AEER. RITERROIRRES. &FE
MTECHEMRENERNE. tEE/mT B
i TE2RBRIETS AR (E%ERKRA)X
B2 . EERRAABES AR, HEIEE
B BERE TN TS, BREBERERILER
& LA fR 8 B I B WU B T & 2 $E .

M5 AR

() EmEE
ARBHENBABFEUNE S B E
7 M EMEUGRIA, FHRITER BT
ERNIRE U R E Z R EMENIE, #AE
B AN AR,

AEENBSHUNERBUCEBEENR
ERaRREENT -

2016 2015
TE—RE _E—ATF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Assets BE
MOP TR PG 3,777 6,776
RMB AR 6,732 2,326
SGD FAN T 3 12,761
Liabilities afiE
MOP JELF 8,463 13,589
RMB AR 1,050 -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation of
the RMB and SGD against Hong Kong dollars
as MOP is pegged to Hong Kong dollars. The
following table details the Group's sensitivity to
a 5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB
and SGD against Hong Kong dollars. 5% (2015:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 5% (2015: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss for the
year where RMB and SGD strengthen 5% (2015:
5%) against Hong Kong dollars. For a 5% (2015:
5%) weakening of RMB and SGD against Hong
Kong dollars, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below

would be negative.

36. @Rt T B (18)

(b) £REREEBERREE (8)

Iz ER (1)
() BEREE (B

RIS EE T, HAREETEAR
REANRENFIIR TR AT KB AR,

TREMRPATERNARE IR TR
B LA R N BES% (T B —14F | 5%) ZBUK
E. REBEEASFREINEE RS SR
ERZBUERRD5% (CF—0F (5%, It
EEENr LR G EERSBFL 25
o BURE DT 2 IE LIS 25 BB AL i1 SR
BEBER, TNRBEARE% (CFE—h
F 1 5%) EXBFEEHEEBRE, UTEH
KA RBRFT MR EE 5% (T

—hF 5% MOARFERRBERD. HA
BRI TR BE T Es% (CE—RF !
5%) , RHRMRBIBERFEREBR 2EE,
KLU FE 8RR IR & 82 1B,

RMB AR

SGD #rnse T

2016 2015

= _E—FEF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
5T 5T
237 o7

- 533

This is mainly attributable to the exposure
oufsfqnding on trade and other debfors, short term
bank deposifs, bank balances and cash and trade

and other creditors denominated in RMB and SGD
at the end of the reporting period.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. E Vi),
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) ©REE R EEBZEREBUER (18)
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) HmiEE R (18)
(ii) Interest rate risk (i) 7 & fee

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate

risk in relation to amount due from a subsidiary

ofa shoreho|o|er, other loans receivob|e, p|eo|geo|
bank deposifs, short-term bank deposifs, bank
balances, loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder
and bank borrowings. It is the Group's policy to keep
its borrowings at variable-rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to inferest rate risk on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group's cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
fluctuation of the best lending rate in Hong Kong,
the bank’s cost of funds, Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate and the benchmark lending rate as
announced by the People’s Bank of China.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rate risk for
amount due from a subsidiary ofa shoreho|o|er,
other loans receivob|e, loan from a subsidiary of

a shareholder and bank borrowings. Certain bank
borrowings in which the related interest expense

is capitalised in the hotel under development

is not included in the sensitivity analysis below.

The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis points (2015: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease in interest rates for amount due from a
subsidiory of a shoreho|o|er, other loans receivab|e,
loan from a subsidiary of a shareholder and

bank borrowings is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. After
the analysis performed by the management of the
Company, the 50 basis points change in interest
rates with all other variables held constant would not
have a significant effect on the Group's post-tax loss
for both years.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of prevailing market
interest rate on pledged bank deposits, short term
bank deposits and bank balances. The Group
considered interest rate fluctuation on these bank
deposits and balances is insignificant.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from:

the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position; and

the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed
in note 39.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has
de|egofed ateam responsib|e for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each individual debtor at

the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Due to the fact that there are only a few major property
developers in Hong Kong, the Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in a few customers. In view of
their credit standings, good payment record in the past
and long term relationships with the Group, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk

is not material. At the end of the reporting period, the
outstanding balances from the five largest customers,
which have been included in trade debtors and amounts
due from joint ventures, amounted to HK$975,721,000
(2015: HK$1,593,338,000) in aggregate, of which

the single largest customer represents approximately
21% (2015: 23%) of the total trade debtors and trade
balances of amounts due from joint ventures at the end
of the reporting period.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
In addition, the Group's other loans receivable as at 31
March 2016 amounting to HK$48,000,000 (2015:
HK$91,351,000) (see note 26 for details) expose the
Group to concentration of credit risk. The directors of the
Company continue to monitor and assess the financial
status of the counterparties, and they believe the
exposure to credit risk on these balances is not significant
as the counterparties are of good financial position.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due
from associates, joint ventures, joint operations/other
partners of joint operations and subsidiaries of a
shareholder, the Group's exposure to credit risk arising
from default of the counterparties is limited as the
counterparties have good reputation and a good history
of repayment and the Group does not expect to incur a
significant loss for uncollected amounts due from these

counterparties.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because these
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance its operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures

compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent
that interest flows are f|oc1ﬁng rates, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.
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36. R T B (J8)
(b) &REEMGEIEBEREEE (8)

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mEE Rk (1)

Weighted
average
interest rate

On demand

or within

HK$ 000
TET

91 days - 1 year
n+—8

5 i

HK$ 000
TET

Over 1 year

—EPF
HK$ 000
AT

Total
undiscounted
cash flow

AT

Total

carrying
amount

RE
HK$ 000
TET

At 31 March 2016 ?E;;QE
Trade and other creditors BERHMENTIE 883,319 356,636 044,787 1,484,749 1,484,749
Amounts due to associates FEREE N - 4,698 - 6,272 10,970 10,970
BA— PANFIN
Amount due to a joint venture F:? i 49 49 49
B
i i EMAL N
Amounts due to |om"r ?perohon%/ ENA 5%%{5 =2 } 115,948 . 115,948 115,948
other partners of joint operations ERAMBHRE
Amounts due fo subsidiaries of -
mounts due fo subsidiaries o ey ;%\ﬁ_ﬁ;ﬁz " m "
a shareholder (NGRS
Loan from a subsidiary of —SRE B
7.0% - 39,014 39,014 30,000
a shareholder (NG
Bank borrowings BITED 36% 484,350 71,908 9,840,849 3,397,100 3,000,847
Convertible bonds oBRES 18.8% - - 9,218,542 9,218,542 485,835
1,488,805 460,558 5,310,443 7,259,806 5,148,832
Financial guarantee contract SREREN - 20,000 - 20,000 -
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6. TR L E (18)
(b) £FEAMREEBZRER ()

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEE R (1)
Weighted On demand Total Total
average or within undiscounted carrying
interest rate 91 days - 1 year Overl year cash flow amount
RENEE n+—8 i
METER= | sA+BL 4 —ENE REERSE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
AT TET TEL TET TAT
A==l
At 31 March 2015 E;ﬁ5+—§
Trade Qnd ofher credifors % &E@FEH‘KIE ],483,694 Q]Q,OOB 282,525 ],978,227 ],978,227
Amounts due to associates N =N - 21,919 6,567 28,486 98,486
ENf—fAEM
Amount due fo a joint venture ng]l HEELR 9,868 2,868 2,868
B
o ! (A A
Amounts due to ]omfr ?perahonf/ ERE E¥%§{S S i 86,866 86,666 86,866
other partners of joint operations SEEMBHFE
Amounts due to subsidiaries of Ef—2kEs
" 493 15,300 15,793 15793
a shareholder W& EFE
Loan from a subsidiory of —SRE—B
7.0% - 39,583 39,583 37,000
o sharehlder AR SR ’
Bank borrowings BIER 36% 488,481 497 259,23 1,789,984 1,586,127
Convertible bonds o RRES 18.8% - - 9,218,542 9,218,542 409,303
2,084,321 309,162 3,766,866 6,160,349 4,144,670
Financial guarantee contract SREREN 20,000 20,000 -

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of

the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis have been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on a
discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant
inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk
of counterparties.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate their corresponding fair values.

(d) Financial asset and financial liability subject to
offsetting and enforceable contractual agreement
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the other loan receivable at the amount of
HK$22,000,000 (2015: Nil) and the trade and
retention payable to a subsidiary of this counterparty
at the amount of HK$27,000,000 (2015: Nil) at the
end of the reporting period, irrespective of whether
they are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position. The amounts recognised for the other
loan receivable do not meet the criteria for offsetting in
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is
only enforceable upon an event of default.

37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the schemes
are separately held in funds under the control of trustees.
The cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit

or loss represents contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions. At the end of the reporting period, there
were no material forfeited contributions which arose upon
employees leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the
Group's contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at the rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. Under the
MPF Scheme, there will not be any forfeited contribution
available to reduce the contribution payable by the Group.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at the rates
specified in the rules of the scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme for eligible employee in Macau. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of an independent trustee. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

The Group's PRC subsidiaries participate in retirement
benefit schemes organised by the local government
authority in The PRC. They are required to make certain
monthly contributions based on the local standard basic
salaries. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. B A IR

2016 2015

— == *EE
22 =77
R /\

HK$ 000 HK$' 000
BT FET

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided EEHERNITE TS

in the consolidated financial statements WERANBRBEBLT
in respect of IBEECEARRSE
- hotel under development — & RPAE 596,228 1,724,708
—BEE . v
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment %;#@% L 766,676 1,152,082
Mo g5t fiE
1,362,904 2,876,790
39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30. WAREE

2016

HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET TETT

Indemnities issued to banks for performance A TER C BRRET

bonds gronfed to: BT RITBERS -

An associate —EENT 5,589 5,589
Joint operations BEER 29,414 333,933

28,003 339,522
In addition, the Company provided a corporate guarantee B, NRNBERLER T —EE L5 220,000,000
for banking facilities of HK$20,000,000 (2015: 70 (ZF— A% [ 20,000,000787T) Z IRITRRE TR H
HK$20,000,000) granted to an associate. As at 31 NEER RSB —NEN_E—RAF=—"H=1+—
March 2016 and 2015, such facilities are fully utilised by the H, ZZEfMECERE L BEERAHA,
associate.
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40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented

premises which fall due as follows:

40 IS ETHE AR
RIMEHR, AERENE N2 EREBYEKL
EHEHEEBRRREBENTUAE, tWHFAE
ZZATHIOT

2016 2015

BT TE—R4F

HK$ 000 HK$ 000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 49,584 44,375
In the second to fifth year inclusive %é:%%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ@}ﬁﬁ 79) 93,622 17,789
143,206 62,164

Leases in respect of premises are negotiated, and monthly
rentals are fixed, for terms ranging from one to five years.

Leases in respect of plant and machinery are negotiated
based on individual contracts and the Group had no
significant commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases of these plant and

machinery.
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 4], BEA TS NiEER
(a) The Group entered into the following significant () FA, AEEEARSBA LI IIUTEARRS !

transactions with its related parties during the year:

Class of related party Nature of transaction

REA L 2R RFBME

Construction works charged

%Zﬁcj"\fes by the Group 20,408 3,802
FAEEWEERTEE
Construction works charged
to the Group 926 28,228
AEERNERTES
Interest charged to the Group 19
REEZ AR

Joint vent Construction works charged

oint ventures

o by the Group o 1,115,263 2,110,767
AEEWEERTIES
Project management fees charged
by the Group 3,055 6,192
AEEWREEEES

None of the related party transactions disclosed above BT _E I 58 2 BB A =2 28 =R A1

constituted connected transactions or continuing FTEZE L BER S S FBREER F,

connected transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

(b) The remuneration of key management during the year (b) FRFEEEBAEZEFHTMUOT :

Wwas as FO”OWS:

2016 2015
—E—REF
HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FHET THET
Short-term employee benefits NH R EER 38,970 36,876
Post-employment benefits BRER] 820 1,141
Share-based payment DIRSh AE R 2 (SR 23,059 25,35
62,849 61,332
The remuneration of key management is determined FEEBABCZFMHAFNEES2E@ERA
by the remuneration committee having regard to the BrRBAMTSEBEMEE,
performance of individuals and market trends.
Details of the balances with associates and joint ventures REEHAR, HBE N NEE R ECIGERTEH
at the end of the reporting period are set out in the 1) HA%?\AET?“#/E%:Z&MTTQ%

consolidated statement of financial position and in note 24.
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49 RNE I FERIRFR

COMPANY
2016 2015
“EREF “E—RfF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T FET

NON-CURRENT ASSET JERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RE LB RE 6,066,792 3,882,824

CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Other debtors Hh W RIE 1129 4,997
Loan to a subsidiary mH—EN B B &M - 100,000
Short term bank deposits ZHASRITF 267,495 2,017,714
Bank balances RITHEER 48,426 287,027
317,050 2,409,668
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEas

Other creditors and accrued expenses E%E\ﬁﬁlﬁwﬁ* 2,698 0,488
Amount due to a subsidiary of a shareholder Wg'%;ﬁ %ﬁ%*%ﬂ - 15,300
Amount due to a subsidiary FE—RE M B LB FIE 56,961 56,961
59,589 74,749
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEEE 957,461 2,334,919
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES f@&EERGEHEE 6,324,253 6,217,743

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY JERENARE
Convertible bonds PR (B2 485,835 409,303
5,838,418 5,808,440

CAPITAL AND RESERVES B ARl
Share capital B A 1,841,734 1,841,734
Reserves (Note) & (9 EH) 3,996,684 3,966,706
TOTAL EQUITY TR 5,838,418 5,808,440
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492. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49. KRBZMBARRE (8)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: iS5
Movements of reserves of the Company during the current KNBRAFENBEFEFEREESL T !

Oﬂd pl’iOI‘ years are as FO”OWS:

Shares
held for Capital

Share | Contributed Special | Converfible | share award | Share option | Share award | redemption | Retained

premium surp|us reserve reserve reserve reserve

Gl _ ol i d ‘
HK$ 000 : HK$000 | HK$ 000

an| 1| TRl TE| | T
; REE-é
At1 April 2014 mE—F 1,870,137 3497 (150,000) 1188500 (6117 35720 866 255 15491 2,988,349
Loss and fotal comprehensive FEEERZA
expense for the year BxRE aee et
S i
Issue of placing shares (Note 32(o)) %ﬁ%‘;‘fﬁgﬁ; 497 - - - - - - - - 490
Tromsaction cosfs ottrbutbleto ~ TEER(
issue of placing shares iR ZmE (6054 - ) - - ) ) ) ) s
Issue of convertible bonds BrnREs
(Note 30(i) (FizE300i) i ' ' - i 1
Transaction cost attributable to MRRESRE
the equity component of BHELERS - - - (93,979) - - - - - (23,975)
convertiole bonds A
. . DALEERE
e HURTER
POmeN SR R AR . : : - - 19003 . - - 19003
of the share option scheme of 3
the Company (Note 33(a)) Zﬁﬂﬁﬁi
pany (M5E330)
BRALTRNE
Recognition of equity-settled B +
share-based payment expenses Eﬂn\* EU%E}%K%D
SURHAER - - - - - - 9085 - - 9045
of the share award scheme of 3
the Company (Note 34(a)) Zﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
! (HE340)
Purchase of shares under the e ECIRE]
share award scheme B2 142,000 ) ) ) g R
RERN B
Shares Lesf;d undg\rl ﬂ;e ;i?r; EBLG . ) . R 93,099 B (88,933) R R 4366
award scheme (Note 34(a (#2340
Transfer to retained profits upon RANRIR
lapse of share opinions granted EREINES = © - - - (31) - - 3l
by the Company BERERT
At 31 March 9015 mig;ﬁ%a 9,280,474 3497 (10,0000 1794972 (54,818) 54,692 3978 255 165 3,966,706
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
E_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

492. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. KN B2 AR (18)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: (Continued) st : (G8)
Movements of reserves of the Company during the current ANBRAEENBEEE 2 FHEEE2SIOT © (B

and prior years are as follows: (Continued)

Capital
Share | Contributed Specicl Share option | Share award | redemption | Retained
premium surplus feserve feserve reserve reserve profis

Fihl Rt e i Bl | AT
HK5'000 | HKS$000 | HKS 000
TEn| TEn| TEn

Profit and fotal comprehensive EERNRER

income for the year leavikd 2 2
ERALEER
Recognition of equity-settled GEE e
share-bosed payment expenses  TEE LR A
of the share option scheme of =t ADE N 2058 ’ i ’ H7%
the Company (Note 33(a)) %
(P3E33(a))
ERALERS
Recognition of equity-settled ]
shore-based payment expenses  AFEE LR 5584 o
of the share award scheme of AERIR ' ’ ’ '
the Company (Note 34(a)) Bx
(I5E34(0))
BERDEE
S f“ehd ”"d&ﬂ;e ;T(“;) HHBERG . . . 75 ) - S I06
award scheme (Note 34(a (H2t340)
At 31 March 2016 mig;;\ﬁf : 9,280,474 35497 (150,000) 1794972 (52,366) 75428 8,316 955 4108 3,996,684
The special reserve of the Company represents the KNB R REIEEE S {Egﬁi%ﬁ%'f%%@%”j_%%
difference between the aggregate of the net asset value #587250,000,0008 Tt R R B R #R AR 25T 18
of, and shareholder’s loan to, Paul Y. Management {B4400,000,00078 70 2 B2 17 (1E A 1B1E F E WEER
Contracting amounting to HK$250,000,000 and the issue EREFXRTRECNRE) 2 =58

value of the shares of HK$400,000,000 as consideration
for the acquisition of Paul Y. Management Contracting in

prior years.
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For the yecr ended 31 March 2016
BE_FE—RNF=A=T—HILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43 TENBLE. HELE. GECENGEXEHSE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT el
OPERATIONS
(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (o) ZRBEIEFEMBREIRZZT—ANER_SFT—HF
at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows: =B=+—Hxz ¥| R

Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital/capital

Place of incorporation/

regjstration/ Issued and fully paid share

Name of subsidiary operation capital/registered capital/capital idiari d Principal activity

British Virgin lslands

o ("BVI") US$1 ordinary share Investment holding
Challenge Shore Limited ERELEE 25 550 100 100 100 100 s
(ZBRLES))
China Earth Limited Hong Kong HKS! ordinary share 100 100 5176 5 Investment holding
ENERLE BB 1BLERR ) REER
- BVI US$2 ordinary shares Investment holding
Corless Limited AERLEE QE T Em 100 100 5176 51 s
- BVI US$3 ordinary shares Investment holding
Euro Dynasty Limited SERLEE S EER 100 100 5176 51 i
5400,000,000 ordinary shares
BVI of no par value Investment holding
Foloncoh ARELHE 5,400,000, 000 B 00 00 00 90 g
LAk
The 13 Management Limited
+=EBERLA ) Management and secrefaricl
) Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share )
(formerly known as Louis XIll E% BT EE0 100 100 100 100 services
Management Limited e ERRINERSE
(FIBRS +=EEERAT)
The 13 Management Limited
e INT :
T=EE-ABRA a Macau MOP25,000 capiel Marl'ucgement and secretarial
(formerly known as Louis XIll aee 95 000 E & 100 100 100 100 services
Management Limited) ! e a BERNERS
FRRZT=EE-ABRAT)
o BVI USS! ordinary share Investment holding
I . . e 1 \
Marlink Limited ERELEE 25550 100 100 100 00 g
New Concordia Macau MOP25,000 capital Hotel development
i B socosmgEs 0 00 00 10 mumg
. HK$50,000,000 Provision of electrical, mechanical
;i;%(E ?[;’l)éogrcdors Limied %0%9 Kong ordinary shares 99.9999 99.9999 517599 50.9999  and building services
50,000,000 T EER RESRRBERS
Paul Y. Builders Group Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 5176 5 Investment holding
RERZEEEERAT B AT ERER i RERR
HK$1,000,000
non-voing deferred shares
(Note (i) below) - - R
1,000,000 TEEZE
SEIER (TEE)
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For the yecr ended 31 March 2016
BE_FE—RNF=A=T—HILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43, T E[IE

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

registration/ Issued and fully paid share

Name of subsidiary rati capital/registered capital/capital

Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong HKMOE'OOO': 00

EEEEENE g SEha S

e =5 200,000,000% T EER

Paul Y. Bullding Materiols Company Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares

Limited &l BT ERER

Paul Y. Construction & Engineering Co. HK$180,000,000
. Hong Kong .

Limited 3 ordinary shares
RERETRERAT 180,000,000E 7 28R
Paul Y. Construction & Engineering Pe.  Singapore SGD3,000,000 ordinary shares

Limited EIIb 3,000,0005 15T & &K
Paul Y. Construction and Engineering Sdn. - Malaysia RM1,000,000 ordinary shares

Bhd. FIRAE 1,000,0005% &8k

RMBI20,000,000
Paul Y. Construction (China) Limited The PRC registered capital
RERE (TE) BRAF e AE 120,000,007
Paul Y. Construction Company, Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares
RERZERLE &5 BT EER
HK$50,000,000
non-voting preferred shares
(Note (i) below)

50,000,000 TERE
B (T HEE)
Paul Y. Construction Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares
RERFEBERAT &5 BT EER
Paul Y. Construction International Limited ;EY!E EhEe US$50§2(’)02 O(;rd%n;;ggrﬁz

inary sh

Paul Y. Contracting Limited %0%9 Kong HK$]O?0$%;E§E%Z
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&t

KK

=

BRE. MERE. 6%

# (18)
(o) ARBEEWBREIR_F—
=R=+—HZHFBENT:

Percentage of issued share capital/

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

registered capital/capital

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

5176

5176

5176

5176

51.76

51.76

5176

51.76

5176

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

]

PERGEXBE

NENZE—REF

(1)

Principal activity

Building construction

BTRE

Trading and installation of building
materials

ERMHES RER

Building construction and specialist

works

BFREREELE

Construction

BEIR

Construction

ERTR

Civil engineering and building
construction

IATEREBTES

Civil engineering, building
construction and investment holding

IATE BFRERKREER

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Construction

ERTRE
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For the yeor ended 31 March 2016
BE_FE—RNF=A=T—HILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43, T E[IE

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows: (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

registration/ Issued and fully paid share

Name of subsidiary i capital/registered capital/capital

Paul Y. Facilities Managemenf Co, Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares
RERMERERAT B 2EEER
Paul Y. Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share
RENBERAT &5 1ATERR
Paul Y. Foundation (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 capital
REME (AP BRAF il 25,0008 EEX
BVI USS$! ordinary sh
Paul Y. Foundation Holdings Limited EEELHE : T;;_E%zgﬁz
HK$10,000,000
Paul Y. Foundation Limited Hong Kong $d' )
FEHEERLT & e
% no : 10,000,000 7% &3
HK$300,000,000
Paul Y. General Contractors Limited Hong Kong . dnomdh
EEmEEEEAT . ordinary shares
RERFEEERAT &% 300000000 LER
Paul Y. Interior Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares
REENHTRERAT B AL ERER
Paul Y. Management (Macau) Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS! ordinary share
REEE (BM) BRAF B AT ERR
Paul Y. M  Contracting G
Gt_ ) dcncgemen orrocingBIo gy US$2,000 ordinary shares
Imires
ABRUES 9000570 &K
RERFTEEEARL e
Paul Y. Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares
REEBRERAA B AT ERER
Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares
RERMEEERAT & 2B EER
Paul Y. Project Management Infermational
Lirited ong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares
imife s
B 2ETEER

REERTEEERRAR
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&t

NE. BERE. GEEEREEXEHE
#(18)
() ARBEEMBREAR_F—RERZF—1F
ZR=+—HZHBWOT : (@

Percentage of issued share capital/

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

reg\sfered caplTaVcopwd

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

5176

5176

5176

5176

5176

51.76

5176

51.76

5176

5176

51

5

51

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

Principal activity

Facilities management services
RIERRH

Provision of finance

R{HRE

Civil engineering and foundation
works

TATERMETE
Investment holding

REEK

Civil engineering and foundation
works

TATERRMETE

Civil engineering and building
construction
IATERBFES

Interior decoration works and
services

EREEIRRER
Management and secretarial

services

BERHERS

Investment holding

RERK

Management and secretarial
services

EERNERS

Trading and letfing of plant and
machinery

BRLEGREZ REE
Project management services and

investment holding

BREERERRERR
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BE_FE—RNF=A=T—HILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43 TEBRBRE. BENT. 62 bENGEERE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT 1 (18
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as (o) RRBEIFEMBLREN-ZT—RNERZSF—HF
at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows: (Continued) =BA=+—H Zu¥ |E T (68

Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital/capital

Place of incorporation/

registration/ Issued and fully paid share

Name of subsidiary rati capital/registered capital/capital idiari i Principal activity

peul Y. Soecilist Liited Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary shares 00 00 576 . Construction
aul Y. Specialist Limite RN ; o
° &% 1000 T ER BETE
PY Construction (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 capital 0 - i 0 Construction
RERXEZ (BF) BRAF il 95,0008 EEX : BETE
HK$122,055,899.60
PYE BVI g dnarsh N/A N/A 575 51 Investment holding
. e . ordinary shares . . ; .
RER — TE Nl REE
Epx EBRIEE 199,055 899 6035 - B BA TER REER
PYE General Contractors (Macau) Limited  Macau MOP25,000 capital 00 - i . Consfruction
BRECEDERLE il 95,0002 E A : BETE

Manufacturing, trading and

installation of concrete products and

Unistress Concrefe Products (H.K.) Limited  Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary shares

BNZELUA(EHERLT  BR woooozraay 0 0 Tk s
WRERETR
HK$1,000,000
non-voting deferred shares
(Note (i) below) 100 100 5176 5]
1000,0002 TERZE
SEIERR (T M)
All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the LRPREMBLABYHARNEBERE, HRERE
Company except PYE which is directly held by the EHANBEEFB,
Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE_E—NF-RB=1t—HILEE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows: (Continued)
Notes:

(i) The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are
not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends
for any financial year and are, on winding up or
otherwise, only entitled out of the surplus assets of
the company to a return of the capital after a total
sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares of
the company.

(i) The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are
not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends
unless the net profits of the company available
for dividends exceed HK$100,000,000,000 in
which case they should be entitled to fixed non-
cumulative dividends at the rate of 5% per annum
for any financial year and are, on winding up, only
entitled out of the surplus assets of the company
to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to the

holders of the ordinary shares of the company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group as at
31 March 2016 and 2015 which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during both
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries, whose
place of incorporation/registration/operation are
mainly in Hong Kong or BVI, are construction, property
deve|opmenf management, other business, investment
holding or inactive.
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() KRB EEMBRANR_-F—NER_SF—HF

=B=+—HzZ=B0TF : (&
MEE -

() HHEERERRELERRSE AEERE, 75
ﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁift%%,ﬁ 1B i
AN B ERFNEAEMBR TS ﬁ%
1oooooooooooooo%bz%m2 NEIR=PE:Y:
%EA&WEEM“FZEE?,%EEN
Ao

(i) WEEREZBLRTEABERE, ME
BERRKE, BRIFZA B AR EFF &
100,000,000,0008 7, TEUIBERT, kS
ERERTAT B EEER—IBE R A5%2 5
E%%%%E,EQE%E%@TﬁM%
JRAEZE10,000,000,00078 75 F 4 /A pIE:1ir%
B AREBFE éFZEET,#E*W
Ao

U EBRFMIIRESEAETETEALREN_F

—RNER_EBE-AHAF=A=1+— E%%%fﬁz
FEBENBLE, ESEN, FHEMABL
ZERETREITR.

Fﬁ¢%$iﬂﬁm¢WZE@%%W,ﬁﬁW
RNEHEB R PIEFE S

RBEIR, ARFHEHAEEMENLIFBE
AONEMNBLE. ZEMBLR ML 5
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BHE_ZS—NF-B=+—HILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

Proportion of ownersip ofssued

43 T2MBLE. BER
#t (8

il
op

. BELERAEEER

(b) EEEAFERED CIFEEMBRBZFE

TREFEEEANFERER CASEIF2EN
BREZFHE:

ordinary share copitl held by (Loss) profit alocated fo Dividends paid o -
. - Accumulated non-controling inferest
non-cortroling nerests non-cortroling nerests non-cortroling nerests %ot
Norme of subsiciory Place of incorporafion
] RAAIEL
9015 9015 2005
TE-nfE| ZEéE| ZE-If “E-R
HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
TETL TET TETL TEn TEn
PYE BvI Hong Kong
" ¢ 4604 49 35,939 23] 14931 - 304776 31953
= MmEEs 8 o e
Individually immotericl
subsidiares wih
non-controllng nferes's 484 840 (88) - 36,837 30,65
i 2l e
EflELE
(35455) 297 (1509) - 34,013 401909
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BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

. BERENGEXHE

il

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43 TERBRE. BERN =

ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT Kl (1)

OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) EEEARFERERCIELEMB AR ZFFE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) (18
Summarised financial information in respect of the BEEAIERERCAEENBE RN ZHEE
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling B0 T U THBERBEESEEAN LT HE
interests is set out below. The summarised financial HIEF 2 5o

information below represents amounts before intragroup

eliminations.

PYE RERX
2016 2015
Rt S -
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Fi F
Non-current assets ERFEE 295,999 394,472
Currents assets REEE 4,126,606 5,269,519
Current liabilities mENEE (3,563,900) (4,742,328)
P
Equity attributable to owners of PYE {%gﬁéﬁﬁj\ 857,821 851,175
Non-controlling interests of PYE RER IR ER 884 488
Revenue WA 9,960,043 10,695,573
Profit for the year FEPRA 57,025 85,538
E E
Profit attributable to owners of PYE T%?%%%?%EAKTi 56,541 84,698
/
Profit attributable to the non-controlling RERE IR IER 484 840
interests of PYE ==yl
Other comprehensive expense attributable to REERZEYER AFEIL
owners of PYE Hthemix (10,098) (409)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEHMEERSE (10,098) (409)
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BE_E—RNFZA=1+—HILEFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43 TEMBLE. BMERE. QELERCEEHRS
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT ( g)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have (b) EEEARFLERERCIELERB LR ZFHE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) (18
PYE (Continued) IREEFRZE (J8)

2016 2015
S —RE

HK$ 000 HK$ 000
5T FEIT

Total comprehensive income attributable to RERZZEHEB AFEML

owners of PYE SEW e AEALS 84,289
Total comprehensive income attributable to RERZIEIERE LS 484 840
the non-controlling interests of PYE eSS
Total comprehensive income for the year FELEBRIEZE 46,927 85,129
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B REREIEZER (88)
of PYE LR B )
N = $ 273
Dividends paid to owners of PYE E’ngj%L%;%EA (30,472) -
% /=
A R
Net cash used in operating activities ﬁﬁ%;ﬁ EXBRE (81,853) (105,2492)
. . RE AR ®REGH
Net cash from (used in) investing activities 194548 62,855 (14,290)
. o . (BR) RERMEEFZ
Net cash (used in) from financing activities 14848 (179,088) 62,115
Net cash outflow IBE M FEE (198,086) (57,417)
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BE_FE—RNF=A=T—HILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT
OPERATIONS (Continued)

(c) Particulars of the Company's principal associates as at
31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

L/ S

43 FE[E

RIS M 5E

I

SEPEREGEER

]
D>

UN=INE: 4 —§/N=IN

\

# (18)

() RRBEBRERAR_B—NER-FE—RF
=R=+—HZHFBENT:

attributable to the Group
ASEEL

RMB200,000,000
regis‘rered capita\
_ 1 . ThePRC (Nofe (i) below)
TSI e AR #200,000,0007
(FaehizH)
US$500,000
Zhong Yu - Paul Y. Project Management registered capifal
Company Limited The PRC (Nofe (i) below)
IRPFREIREEEE el 500,000% 70
BRAE ERER
g
All of the above associates are held by the Company
indirecﬂy.
Notes:

(i) These companies are sino-foreign equity joint venture

companies.

(i) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over
i BB —ERTIZBIR/NE because it has the
power to appoint three out of the seven directors of that
company and it is required to have above two-thirds of
votes of directors to have the resolution over the relevant
activities passed under the Articles of Association of that

company.
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14.39 1439 745 12
(Note (i)~ (Note(i) ~ (Nofe(i)  (Note(i) Civil engineering and building
below) below) below) below)  construction
(P (Fx (FX (PN tAIRRETRES
WiEG)  WERG) MR  BOEG)
Project management and
40 40 207 204 consultancy services
BEEE LBk

EARAMENEIHANEBERB.

Py &L -

() ZENTEADNSESENE,

(i) ERAEEEREETRE_RBE—ERIIEER
RETCHEFHP=%, BRBEXNAZEBE
EMAREEREECRBERAU =22 " UL
ESZHEB, HHZNAEEEARTE .
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For the yecr ended 31 March 2016
BE_FE—RNF=A=T—HILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43 FBRE NG, HENE. aEPENGEERE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT F (18)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(d) Particulars of the Company's principal joint ventures as (d) ZRNBEEFBEECER_S—ARNER_S—HEF
at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows: =B=+—HZ=FEBEWT :

Percentage of issued share capital/

reglsf dcaplfc\/copwd
/

Issued and fully paid

Name of joint venture
N

) Singapore SGD300,000 ordinary shares Construction
Paul Y. Lion B Pte. Ltd. . BN 2. 9. .
oY Lin Beng Y e 0 VOOEIIEREEE 0 BB B0 aure
PGE! Yf- dOmosJoinf Ventue Company Macau MOP100,000 capital % %0 9588 %50 Construction
e # 1000002743 ' > BRIE
PE_BENSEEAT g 000 EFEER ERIRE
RMBS53,000,000
R The PRC registered capital Investment holding
mIxKE A ) 1 — 0 5 25.88 2550 s
ks e ki ABESI000000% ° FEnR
RMBI0,000,000
" . _ The PRC registered capital Property holding
M EFER éﬁ AN y - ! !
INEERRREERAT - JRH10000000% 50 0 BB B0
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BHE_ZS—NF-B=+—HILFE

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 43 TERBRE. BENT. 628 bENGEERE
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND JOINT 1 (18)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
(e) Particulars of the Company's principal joint operations () ARNBIFEREXFNR _ZS—ANEN_SFT—HEF
as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows: =B=+—HZEFBWOTF .

Percentage of issued share capital/

registered capital/capital

i L 2

Issued and fully paid
share capital)/

regstered capital/

Laing O' Rourke - Hsin Chong - Paul Y. Hong Kong

Civil engineering

(Note (i) below) 9225 225 1165 1148

Joint Venture &5 (F3hE) TATE
Laing O’ Rourke - Hsin Chong - Paul Y. Hong Kong A Civil engineering
} . (Nofe (i) below) 225 9225 165 1148 -
(WKCD) Joint Venture oy (Pt ITATE
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture Macau i Construction
St \ (Note () below) 50 0 %588 5550 o
—RERELR 4 - EETRE
RE-EEHELT i (FhE) ERTRE
(Note (i)
Paul Y. Penta - Ocean Joint Venture Ho\\ng Kong (Nofe (i) below) - 50 belo) 9550 Gl eng|geermg
= (Fsch) - SR
’ GEED)
} Macau i Construction
Poul Y. - Yau Lee Joint Venture 2P (Note (i) below) 60 60 31.06 30.60 BATE
- I G T
Notes: Mt -
(i) There is no issued share capital/registered capital/capital () HARZENTAEEABELE, RIMELELE D
for the joint operations as they are unincorporated bodies. BITRRA SHMEBE A B,
(i) The joint operation ceased business during the year. (i) ZEEEBENRNERRLEEE,
The above tables list the associates, joint ventures and BERAU LR ERFIATEEZERERFTEER
joint operations of the Group which, in the opinion of the AN AEBAES D B EFBCAEBRZE/NE).
directors, principally affected the results for the year or EEPETLOLEFE BERE, 5 HMEE N
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. B, B8 PENEE X IBRESERTE.
To give details of other associates, joint ventures and joint
operations would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RIS

the year ended 31 March

92014
“E-mE ~
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FTET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS e
Revenue N 4,540,677 7,131,575 8,579,708 9,393,418 6,811,519
Profit (loss) before tax Brigaaf (858 37,064 95,799 (2,906) 95,944 (210,339)
Income tax expense FSRER (4,068) (3,624) (27,036) (33,856) (29,484)
Profit (loss) for the year a1 (E518) 39,996 99,175 (29,949) (7,912) (232,816)
Profit (loss) for the year FE{LEE AR
attributable to: (Eﬂé) .
Owners of the Company AN EIHEAE A 30,303 17,632 (50,586) (29,883) (197,361)
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E12 % 125 2,693 4,543 90,644 21,971 (35,455)

32,996 92175 (29,942) (7,912) (232,816)

As at 31 March

BA=+—H
2015
=F —E-mE —hE —FN
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT FATT FATT FET
ASSETS AND .
BERGE
LIABILITIES HERAR
Total assets REE 3,445,729 6,677,957 9,003,511 19,375,203 19,546,594
Total liabilities = (2,804,678) (3,287,403) (4,649,482) (6,087,387) (6,496,199)
Total equity TR 641,051 3,389,854 4,354,029 6,287,816 6,050,395

Equity attributable to: JEHIEL .

Owners of the Company ~ ANEIHER A 639,430 3,048,571 3,983,236 5,885,907 5,709,382
Non-controlling inferests ~ FFHZEAR 248 1,621 341,083 370,793 401,909 341,013
641,051 3,389,854 4,354,029 6,287,816 6,050,395
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Stephen Hung
Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Walter Craig Power

James Chiu, OBE, JP
Lee Chack Fan,

GBS, SBsS, JP
lain Ferguson Bruce
Francis Goutenmacher

CORPORATE INFORMATION
N=ii=vs

Joint Chairman (Executive Director)
Joint Chairman (Executive Director)
Deputy Chairman (Executive Director)
Chief Executive Officer

(Executive Director)
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny  Independent Non-Executive Director

AUDIT COMMITTEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP
lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

Chan Kok Chung, Johnny

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP (Chairman)
Stephen Hung

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

lain Ferguson Bruce

Francis Goutenmacher

FINANCE AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman)
Stephen Hung

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Walter Craig Power

DISCLOSURES COMMITTEE

lain Ferguson Bruce (Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

lain Ferguson Bruce

BTET

Paviidiai BEFE (BiTEE)
Peter Lee Coker Jr. BELTE (BITEF)
=Y B F/E (BiTEE)
Walter Craig Power TTERE% (B1TEE)
A, OBE, JP B ITEE
)=, GBS, SBS, JP B ITEE
mEL BIIFPITEE
Francis Goutenmacher B IFHITEER
[RE R BIIFPITEE

, OBE, JP (L))
, GBS, SBS, JP

Francis Goutenmacher

BRE D

TMEE S

HWHE, OBE, JP(T/E)
ER
xJs5, GBS, SBS, JP

RrEAE
lﬁ , GBS, SBS, JP(F/%)

SR

mELT

Francis Goutenmacher
HBRIEEES

mELT (EE)

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

SR

Walter Craig Power
REEEE

mELT (FE)

Peter Lee Coker Jr.

=

PEEALREET

S, OBE, JP(F/E)

R

Bt
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

L\

PYE COMMITTEE
James Chiu, OBE, JP (Chairman)

Lau Ko Yuen, Tom
Lee Chack Fan, GBS, SBS, JP

lain Ferguson Bruce

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Stephen Hung (Chairman)
Peter Lee Coker Jr.
Lau Ko Yuen, Tom

Walter Craig Power
Richard Liao

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Richard Lico

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mui Ching Hung, Joanna

SOLICITORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Bermuda)

DLA Piper Hong Kong (Hong Kong)
Leonel Alves Law Firm (Macau)

Reed Smith Richards Butler (Hong Kong)
Winston & Strawn (Hong Kong)

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Banco Nacional Ultramarino

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China, Macau Branch

Bank of Communication Co., Ltd, Hong Kong Branch
Bank of Communication Co., Ltd, Macau Branch

BNP Paribas

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

DBS Bank (China) Limited, Beijing Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited, Beijing Branch

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank, Limited

Eli=¢=

REREFTED
I, OBE, JP(F/Z)
SR

825, GBS, SBS, JP
mEL

HTEEY
HKE (/)
Peter Lee Coker Jr.
=R

Walter Craig Power

Bt+H

FATSHR AL

Bt+H

28m

Conyers Dill & Pearman (£ 5=Z)
BUERENEBAT (B2

Leonel Alves Law Firm (#F5)
TBEBETEEMT (&)
Winston & Strawn (2 &)

MENIRTT (BFB) BRELRH
TRESRTT, RPIDTT
BRITRNERRE, HED
BRITRMEBERRE), BFID
EE ERRERTT

FREIRZERIRTT (F2M) RN BIRAE)
PERT (BER) BREAH

ERIET (PE) BRLFE, RO
ERIET (&) BELH
BERTERANF

tRE A ER1T () BIERF

"Bl TAiR1T CRPI) RIDERLE
RERIRTTARAE

REERTT (PR BRRAE, IERDIT
BELBESRTERANT
E/KFIRITERAF

T

'/f
17
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
INEIER

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

2901 AlA Central

1 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Tel : +852 2577 6113

Fax: +852 2577 6213

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.thel3.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 577
Reuters 0577 . HK
Bloomberg 577 : HK
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S
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

FEEEMEL
5%
FEEEFER
RHERFO
2901%
2% 1 +852 2577 6113

B E . +852 2577 6213

B 178 P SRR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO8

Bermuda

2

=

AN

AR c =kt
BEEZEERR
55
EEAEERI835f
B FI0201E

g

C

=

L\\

AL

www.thel3.com

A AU5R

EE AT 577
2SN 0577 . HK
218 577 : HK
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2901 AlA Central, 1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
EHETHERIFAHETRFIO2901F

BEh:+852 25776113 | F{EE:+852 2577 6213

www.thel3.com
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